PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
Regular Commission Meeting
Tuesday, December 17, 2019 ¢ 6:00pm
Port Conference Room Suite 202
16350 Lower Harbor Road, OR 97415

TENTATIVE AGENDA

CALL MEETING TO ORDER Page
e Pledge of Allegiance
¢ Roll Call
e Modifications, Additions, and Changes to the Agenda
* Declaration of Potential Conflicts of Interest

APPROVAL OF AGENDA - CONSENT ITEMS
A. Approved Minutes of Regular Meeting Tuesday, November 19,2019...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiniiici e, 2
B. Approved Minutes of Special Meeting Friday, November 22, 2019..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiicec e, 7

PUBLIC COMMENTS (Limited to a maximum of three minutes per person. A *“Public Comment
Request”, located near the entrance, must be completed and turned into the Chairman prior to the
beginning of the meeting.)

MANAGEMENT REPORTS
A. Financial Report — November 2019.. ... ..ottt s et e ee e e e e e e eens 9
B. Port Manager Report — Novemnber 2019.........o i it rre e eerareans 23
C. Harbormaster Report — November 2019. ... .. e e 28
. ACTION ITEMS
A. Port Draft Audit Report - Fiscal Year 2018-19...... .ot er e es e e 31
B. Curry County Draft RV Park Lease.........cocooniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir i e e e e eaen e en e 111
C. Zola'sonthe Water Draft Lease. ..o e e e e s et e e s 112
D. Pacific Fishing Lease EXteNSION. ........iuiiitiiiiiiiiiiiieatireeteneerteensneentenenearatnensnenseneeeesan 132
E. Satisfy Debt to Tidewinds Sportfishing........cooiiiiiiiiii i et s e v na e eaens 135
F. Service Contracts for Calendar Year 2020........ccoiriiiiiiiiiiiii e ee e e e aeaaens 151
G. Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy.........ccvvvuviiiiiiieniiiiir e, 152
H. 2020 Holiday Schedule........ .o e et et e e e e et et e e et s aaebersraanns 168
I. SDIS Longevity Credit and Rate Lock AZreement. ... .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiietieierrreiererreeessasanensn 170
INFORMATION ITEMS
A. Project Work Orders 2019.. ...t r e e e e st e e e e e ea et ear e et reaaaans 172
B POIt a5 it ini i e e e e et e ae et e e e e e et et r e raets 174
C. New Marine Fuel Dock Station. ... .....vuiiiiiriiiiiiiiiie e r e e et et ea e e e et e e aaaeaneaanes 176
D. Kathy’s Commer Market. .........coeieieiiiiiiiiii i ie s ern e an e raa e aesraseneneasnsrersasreresnnsnnrans 177
E. Port Manager Performance Evaluation 2019, ... e eae st snr e e reaens 178
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE - January 21, 2019 6:00pm

ADJOURNMENT

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider



DRAFT MINUTES
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT

Tuesday, November 19, 2019

The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in regular session on the above date at 6:00 P.M. open
session at the Port Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415.

1. Call Meeting to Order:
I.  Pledge of Allegiance
II. Rell Call:
e Commissioners present: Treasurer Joseph Speir, Secretary Sharon Hartung,
Vice Chairman Richard Heap, and Kenneth Range. Chairman Roy Davis was
absent.
e Staff present: Port Counsel Martha Rice, Port Manager Gary Dehlinger,
Harbormaster Travis Webster, and Administrative Assistant Danielle Shepard.
III. Modifications, Additions, and Changes to the Agenda:
» Heap requested that since we do not have the port audit yet that we move
Action Item L to the top and Action Item J next.
e Port Manager requested to postpone Action Item A until next meeting and add
Information Item G, update on 36’Culvert Cleanout situation.
e Range made a motion to approve the agenda with the modifications just
discussed. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.
¢ There was no other modifications, additions or changes to the agenda.
IV.  Declaration of Potential Conflicts of Interest:
¢ There was no declaration of potential conflicts of interest.

2. Approval of Agenda — Consent Items:

A. Approved Minutes of Regular Meeting, Tuesday, October 15, 2019:

B. Approved Minutes of Workshop Meeting, Wednesday, October 16, 2019:

C.  Approved Minutes of Special Meeting, Thursday, October 24, 2019:

1. Hartung made a motion to approve the meeting minutes for regular meeting,

Tuesday, October 15, 2019, workshop meeting, Wednesday, October 16,
2019, and special meeting, Thursday October 24, 2019. Second by Speir.
Motion passed 4-0.

3. Public Comments:
I.  There was no public comments.

4. Management Reports:
A. Financial Report — October 2019:
I. Port Manager presented Financial Report.
II. Range made a motion to approve the Financial Report for October 2019.
Second by Speir. Motion passed 4-0.

November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5



B. Port Manager Report — October 2019:
I. Port Manager presented Port Manager Report.
II. Commission discussed item.
III. Speir made a motion to approve the Port Manager Report for October 2019.

Second by Range. Motion passed 4-0.

C. Harbormaster Report - October 2019:
1. Harbormaster presented Harbormaster Report.
II. Commission discussed item
III. Speir made a motion to approve the Harbormasier Report for October 2019,

5. Action Items:

Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

L. Zola’s on the Water Lease Proposal:

L
IL
IIL.
IV.
V.

VI

VIL

VIIL

XI

Eian Savas, owner of Zola’s, presented item.

Commission discussed item.

Vice Chairman allowed public comments.

Vice Chairman moved the discussion back to the commission.

Range made a motion that the term would be 30 years with renewable 5
year options. Second by Speir. Motion passed 4-0.

Hartung made a motion on the dollar amount for the building at $1200.00,
the patio at $.08 a square foot making an extra $200.00, a $1400.00 total.
Second by Range. Motion passed 4-0.

Range made a motion that there be no rent charge for 2 month of the
remodel. Second by Hartung.

Commission discussed item.

Motion passed 4-0.

Commission discussed item.

Speir made a motion that CPI rate at 2% for every 5 years, with a 10 year
review. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

J.  Curry County Leasing RV Park:

L
II.
IIL.
IV.
V.

VL
VIL
VIIIL.
IX.
X.

November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes

Josh Hopkins, Curry County Parks Director, presented item.
Commission discussed item.

Chairman allowed public comments.

Chairman moved the discussion back to the commission.

Range made a motion that we have a workshop to discuss the details on
these forms as soon as possible.

Commission discussed motion.

Motion failed due to lack of a second.

Hartung made a motion to proceed with the park ourselves.

Motion failed due to lack of a second.

Range made a motion that as soon as possible we have a workshop that
includes our commission and county parks and we work out a master plan
that has details. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

Page2 of 5 3)



Port Audit Report - Fiscal Year 2018-19:
I.  Postponed until next meeting

Business Oregon Contract for New Marine Fuel Dock Station:
I.  Port Manager presented item.
1. Speir made a motion to approve contract with Business Oregon for the
Construction of a new marine fuel dock station. Second by Hartung.
Motion passed 4-0.

Supplemental Budget Approve & Adopt:
I.  Vice Chairman presented item.
II.  Speir made a motion to approve and adopt Resolution No. 529, Resolution
adopting the budget. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

Credit Cards and Credit Increase:
1. Port Manager presented item.
II. Commission discussed item.
III.  Speir made a motion to approve Rogue Credit Union credit card account
from $10,000 to $15,000. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.
IV.  Speir made a motion to approve three additional credit cards for Gary
Dehlinger, Travis Webster, and Brent Ferguson.
V.  Commission discussed item.
V1.  Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

Budget Calendar 2020-21:
[.  Port Manager presented item.
II.  Speir made a motion to approve Budget Calendar for Fiscal Year 2020-21.
Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

Strategic Business Plan Review 2020:
I.  Port Manager presented item,
II. Commission discussed item.
III.  Speir made a motion to approve draft Strategic Business Plan, Table-14
Capital Improvement Plan for 2020. Second by Hartung. Motion passed
4-0.

Port Security Contract Amendment:
1. Port Manager presented item.
II.  Speir made a motion to approve South Coast Knight Security Service
Agreement Amendment No. 1. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

Port Security Cameras:
I.  Port Manager presented item.
II. Commission discussed item.
III.  Vice Chairman allowed public comments.
IV.  Vice Chairman moved the discussion back to the commission.

November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5



V. Range made a motion to delay action on this item until RV Park issue is
resolved. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

I. = Port Manager Performance Evaluation 2019:
I.  Port Manager presented item.
II.  Commission discussed item.

III.  Heap made a motion, with Gary’s approval, we schedule an executive
session in January with full commission and Port Manager to discuss the
annual performance evaluation, and follow the procedures outlined in
Resolution 497 on how to proceed forward. Second by Hartung. Motion
passed 4-0.

K. RV Park Conceptual Reconstruction:
I.  Port Manager presented item.
II. Range made a motion to postpone Action Item K, until the RV Park is
resolved. Second by Hartung. Motion passed 4-0.

6. Information Items:
A. Flagpoles on Boardwalk:
L Port Manager presented item.
IL Commission discussed item.

B. Handrail on Boat Launch Ramp:
L Port Manager presented item.
IL. Commission discussed item.

C. DOJ Letter to DA September 17, 2019:
L Vice Chairman presented item.
IL. Commission discussed item.

D. Port Website:
I.  Port Manager presented item.
II. Commission discussed item.

E. Fish Cleaning Station Discharge:

I.  Port Manager presented item.
. Commission discussed item.

F. Purchase Containment Boom:
I.  Port Manager presented item.

G. Culvert Clean Out:
I.  Port Manager presented item.

7. Commissioner Comments:
[.  Commissioners reported on their recent activities.

November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes Page4 of 5 S



8. Next Regular Meeting Date — December 17, 2019, 6:00 pm

9. Adjournment:
Vice Chairman adjourned the meeting at 9:02 pm.

Secretary, Sharon Hartung Date Signed

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording and the full commission
packet are available on the Ports website: www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

G

November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5



DRAFT MINUTES
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT

Friday, November 22, 2019

The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in regular session on the above date at 2:01 P.M. open
session at the Port Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415.

1. Call Meeting to Order:
I.  Pledge of Allegiance
II.  Roll Call:
e Commissioners present: Treasurer Joseph Speir, Secretary Sharon Hartung,
Chairman Roy Davis, Vice Chairman Richard Heap, and Kenneth Range.
o Staff present: Port Counsel Martha Rice, Port Manager Gary Dehlinger,
Harbormaster Travis Webster, and Administrative Assistant Danielle Shepard.
III. Modifications, Additions, and Changes to the Agenda:
» There was no modifications, additions or changes to the agenda.
IV. Declaration of Potential Conflicts of Interest:
e There was no declaration of potential conflicts of interest.

2. Approval of Agenda:
L. Speir made a motion to approve the agenda as written for November 22, 2019.
Second by Hartung. Motion passed 5-0.

3. Public Comments:
I.  No public comments.

4. Action Items:
A. Curry County Lease for RV Park:
I.  Commission discussed item.
II. Heap made a motion the Port of Brookings Harbor Commission approve
entering into a lease with Curry County for the Beachfront RV Park.
Second by Speir.
III. Commission discussed item.
IV.  Commission allowed public comments from Curry County Commissioner
Chris Paasch, and Curry County Operations Director Julie Schmelzer.
V.  Chairman moved discussion back to the board.
VI.  Motion passed 4-1. Yes: Speir, Heap, Range, Davis. No: Hartung.

VII.  Heap made a motion to direct the Port manager to work with Curry
County staff to negotiate the lease agreement, which will be brought back
for review and final approval. Second by Range.

VIII. Commission discussed item.
IX. Commission allowed public comments from Curry County Parks Director
Josh Hopkins, and Chris Paasch.
X.  Chairman moved discussion back to the board.

November 22, 2019 Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2



X1. Motion passed 4-1. Yes: Speir, Heap, Range, Davis. No: Hartung.

5. Information Items:
A. None.

6. Next Regular Meeting Date — December 17, 2019, 6:00 pm

7. Adjournment:
Chairman adjourned the meeting at 2:43 pm.

Secretary, Sharon Hartung Date Signed

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording and the full commission
packet are available on the Ports website: www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

November 22, 2019 Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 8



FINANCIAL REPORT

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Month End Report of Financial Activities for November 2019
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

Cash Basis — November 2019

General Port Operations — Net Income ($72,398)
s Program Revenues $126,040
¢ Operation Expenses & Capital Outlay $198,438

Non-Operation — Net Income $19,228
+ Non-Operating Revenue {Tax Appropriations, Interest & Dividends, Inter-fund Transfers,
FEMA & Grant Revenue & Misc. Income} - $246,090
¢ Non-Operating Expenses {FEMA & Grant Expenses & Loan Payments Expense, Inter-
fund Transfers, Capital Qutlay} - $226,862

November — Net Income ($53,169)

Breakdown of General Port Operations

ADMINISTRATION - Operating Net Income $162,195
¢ Revenue $213,339
e Expenses $51,143

HIGHLIGHTED REVENUE
Curry County Tax Appropriations $213,339

HIGHLIGHTED EXPENSES
$38,039 for Personnel Services — includes payroll and benefits

$1,350 for Advertising in 101 Things to Do

$1,682 for office expenses, includes monthly lease payment to Xerox

$3,591 to Black, Rice & Luna for legal services for months of July, August, September and October
$2,500 to C.J. Huntsman for Audit - Progress billing

$718 to ADP for payroll services

$388 to Dept of Revenue for Oregon Hazardous Substance Fee- For having Oxygen on the premises

BEACHFRONT RV PARK - Operating Net Income $3,519
+ Revenue $18,408

o Expenses $14,888
{Reserve Amount for Depreciation $1,702 and Loan Payment Amount $5,063, not factored)

HIGHLIGHTED EXPENSES

$3,800 to CTR, Harbor Sanitary Dist. and Roto Rooter — water, sanitary & waste
$2,006 to Coos Curry Electric — electric service for November

$1,051 to Crow/Clay & Associates — Architecture for RV Park Restoration for October
$940 to EMC Engineering / Scientists for Seawall Alternatives

$2,074 to South Coast Knight Security - Security Patral for October 2019

$979 to Curry County for Park/Camp - Recreational Park - Annual Permit

Pagelof3



BOAT YARD - Operating Net Income ($1,929)
» Revenue $6,430

o Expenses $8,359
{Reserve Amount for Depreciation $2,275 and Loan Paymant Amount $6,024, not factored)

HIGHLIGHTED EXPENSES

$3,848 to CTR - trash removal.

$2,953 to GEIl Works for purchase of Type 2 DOT Silt Barrier & Turbidity Screen
$361 to Pape’ for 10/29/2019-Repair/Hydraulic Leak EQ#4605 50T Marine Travel Lift
$496 to ULine for OIL SORBENT BOCMS & PADS

COMMERCIAL / RETAIL LEASES - Operating Net Income $23,565
e Revenue $38,342

s Expenses $14,777
{Reserve Amount for Depreciation $10,727 and Loan Payment Amount $11,236, not factored)

HIGHLIGHTED EXPENSES

$3,405 to Del-Cur Supply for Fencing Material for Secured Boat Storage

$3,026 to Harbor Sanitary District for sewer

$701 to Coos Curry Electric — Electrical Service for November 2019

$839 to CTR - trash removal

$595 to Flags.com for Back up flags for Retail Boardwalk area

$3,745 to Oldcastle Infrastructure for 6" Concrete Curb Stops for Commercial Retail parking lot
$882 to City of Brookings for Street Sweeping — Port

$266 to Black, Rice & Luna for legal services for months of July, August, September and October
$1,130 to EMC-Engineering for Engineering & delivery of "Jaint Permit Application” for cleaning of 36"
culvert under Retall Parking Lot

FUEL DOCK - Operating Net Income ($14,466)
e Revenue $21,756

¢ Expenses $36,222
(Reserve Amount for Depreciation $833 and Loan Payment Amount $1,754 not faclored)

HIGHLIGHTED EXPENSES

$33,132 purchasing petroleum product from Carson and Tyree Qil.

$1,204 to Harbor Logging for Piling Hoop, Culvert Cover, Storm Drain and Fuel Dock supplies and New
fuel line to replace supply line at gangway to dock connection

$577 to Pump Pipe & Tank for 10/17/19-Replaced Des-Case Institutional filter

$792 to Elavon for Merchant Service Fees

$371 to Coos Curry Electrical Coop, Harbor Sanitary Dist. and CTR for utilities for November

Gas and Diesel Pumped in November:;
e Diesel - 6,541 gallons
+ (as - 281 gallons

MARINA — Operating Net Income ($91,012)
e Revenue $42,010
s Expenses $133,022
*  (Raserve Amount for Depreciation $14,867 and Loan Payment Amount $14,913, not factored)

HIGHLIGHTED EXPENSES
$84,350 to Allied Roofing for Demolition of Green Building, Project not completed and check not issued to
vendor

$3,800 to Gowman Electric for Job Materials - Replacement pedestals for dock

$19,167 — PayrollWages only

$4,777 to Del-Cur Supply for Fencing Material for Secured Boat Storage & Storm Drain Projects

$4,682 to Coos Curry Electric - electric service for November

$2,074 to South Coast Knight Security - Security Patrol for November 2019

$1,183 to Harbor Sanitary District for sewer service

Page 2 of 3



$718 to Harbor Water District for water service

$133 to CTR - trash removal

$281 to ORRCO for 11/18/2019-Removal of all spent & used Oils & Filters from local fleet/clients
$4,800 to State of OR DAS Property Dist. Center for purchase of 2007 Chevrolet CK2500

$374 to My Parking Permit for Marina Parking Passes, Qty 100 for remainder of 2019

PROPERTY GROUND USE - Operating Net Income (119)
¢ Revenue $0
» Expense $119 (Electrical meters)

Other Port Funds

Misc. Non-Operating & Transfers from General Fund
» Total transfers to Debt Service Fund $30,292
e Total transfers to Bond Debt Fund $10,843
s Total transfers to Capital Projects Fund $1,073
e Total transfers to Reserve Fund $10,417

CAPITAL PROJECTS - NET INCOME $150
e Revenue & Transfers $1,073
* Expenses & Transfers $923

Projects in progress:
1. Basin 1 Piling, Project 65 - FEMA PW319 Basin 1 Piling Projects expenses, to be reimbursed 100%
2. Marine Fuel Dock Station C20193
3. DR-4432-OR 02/24/2019 DISASTER
4. DR-4452-0R 04/06/2019 DISASTER

DEBT SERVICE FUND - NET INCOME $24,293
s Revenue & Transfers $30,489
+ Expenses/Loan Payments including principal & interest $6,196

USDA REVENUE BOND FUND - NET INCOME ($119,233)
* Revenue & Transfers $10,887
o Expenses/Loan Payments including principal & interest $130,120

RESERVE FUND — NET INCOME $10,578
+ Revenue & Transfers $10,578
¢ Expenses & Transfers $0

DOCUMENTS

¢ Fund Balance Repont, 1 page
Finance Debt Monthly Report, 1 page
Profit & Loss, 3 pages
Profit & Loss Budget Performance, 3 pages
Check Register, 3 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

Recommended Motion:
Motion to accept Financial Report as presented.

Page3of 3



Port of Brookings Harbor
Fund Balance Report

e GENERAL FUND
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS, AS OF 11/30/2019.

o $227.114.76 General Fund (Umpqua Bank $66,159.60 & LGIP $160,955.16)
o $754.96 Petty Cash
e $1,300.00 Cash on Hand (RV Park, Fuel Dock and Office Drawers)

$229,169.72 UNRESTRICTED FUNDS, 30-Day reserve amount needed 181,789 (without depreciation)

RESTRICTED FUNDS, AS OF 11/30/2019.

Capital Projects Fund
« $2,500.00 FEMA PW319 Basin 1 Piling Project — Project completed and Payment Requests to FEMA submitted

Debt Service Fund LGIP
e $67,329.51 Debt Service Fund $72,500 Quarterly (IFA Business Oregon) Payment due December 31, 2019

Debt Service Fund Umpqua Bank
o $2,507.31

s Monthly (Travel Lift Lease - $4,659)
Payment due 22™ of each month -Next payment due December 22, 2019

¢ Monthly (2018 Genie Reach Forklift Lease - $1,464.71)
Payment due 15" of each month - Next payment due December 15, 2019

Revenue Bond Fund
e $25,100.90 Revenue Bond Fund $143,132 Year ($13,012 must remain in fund)
USDA Loan - $130,120, payment due Nov 6, 2020

Reserve Fund
e §85,865.32

$183,303.04 RESTRICTED FUNDS, AS OF 11/30/2019.

o $229,169.72 UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
o $183,303.04 RESTRICTED FUNDS

TOTAL CURRENT CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS $412.472.76

\ 2

APPROXIMATE END OF MONTH QUICKBOOKS BALANCES - NOVEMBER 2019



PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR
FINANCE DEBT MONTHLY REPORT
Date: December 17, 2019
Period: November 2019
To: Gary Dehlinger, General Manager
Issued By: Kim Boom, Financial Officer

Debt Service and USDA Revenue Bond Payments

o IFA

= L98004/Basin 2 Dock Improvement
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...$105,963.17  INTEREST BALANCE...$312,338.92

e  X03004/Eureka Fishery-Property Improvement
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...$196,767.18 INTEREST BALANCE...$197,881.55

e 520139/Boardwalk
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...556,901.77 INTEREST BALANCE...5175,540.26

e 525172/RV Park Improvement
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...5119,732.13 INTEREST BALANCE...5138,594.25

e 525176/Green Bldg.
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ..$277,108.49  INTEREST BALANCE...$263,665.71

e 525181/Eureka Fishery-Property Purchase
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...5183,909.82 INTEREST BALANCE...5347,562.39

e L02001/Marine Fueling Dock
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...5178,939.56 INTEREST BALANCE...5240,371.49

e L02009/Cold Storage
PRINCIPAL BALANCE ...5725,224.34 INTEREST BALANCE...$1,025,118.15

IFA TOTAL PRINCIPLE BALANCE as of June 30, 2019...$1,844,546.45
IFA TOTAL ACCURED INTEREST as of June 30, 2019...$3,045,171.28

e Travelift - $4659.00 paid to m2Lease
BALANCE...5196,308.29

® 2018 Genie Reach Forklift - $1464.71 paid to Umpqua Bank
BALANCE...$78,798.76

¢ Land Purchase — paid to Kyle Aubin/Tidewaters $72.00
BALANCE... $14,760.00

e USDA Revenue Bond - $130,120 paid November 6, 2019 to USDA {72,487.38 to Principal)
BALANCE...$1,080,568.00



4:11PM

12104119
Cash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor

Profit & Loss
November 2019

Income
400 - REVENUES
410 - GENERAL REVENUES
10412 - Property Tax Current
10413 - Property Tax Prior
10414 - Interest General Fund
10418 - Miscellaneous
10419 - Transfer to General Fund
20414 - Interest Revenue Bond Fund
20419 - Transfer to USDA Bond Fund
30414 - Intarest Debt Service Fund
30419 - Transfer to Debt Service Fund
40419 - Transfer to Capital Project
50414 - Interast Reserve Fund
50419 - Transfer to Resarve Fund

Total 410 - GENERAL REVENUES

420 - PROGRAM REVENUES
10421 - MARINA
10421.2 - Moorage

10421.3 - Commercial Slip Rent
10421.4 - Recreational Slip Rent
10421.5 - Translent
10421.6 - Liveaboard
10421.7 - Balance Forward
10421.2 - Moorage - Other

Total 10421.2 - Moorage

10421.8 - Storage
10421 - MARINA - Other

Total 10421 - MARINA

10421.9 - Administration Feas

10422 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK
10422.1 - Space Rental
10422.2 - Wood Salss
10422.3 - Other Sales

Total 10422 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK

10423 - BOATYARD
10424 - COMMERCIAL RETAIL

10425 - FUEL DOCK
Total 420 - PROGRAM REVENUES
Total 400 - REVENUES
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

10501 - Port Manager
10502 - Port Cffice Staff
10503 - RV Park Office Staff
10504 - Operations Staff
10505 « Overtime

10505.1 - Offica

10505.2 - Operations

Total 10505 - Overtime

10506 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits
10506.1 - Paid Holldays

Nov 19

211,140.70
2,048.00
176 86
3,012.00
923.24
4421
10,843.00
125.29
6,123.71
1,073.20
162.97
10.417.00

246,090.18

8,994.32
2(,888.55
300.25
245.00
141.43
300.00

31,869.55

3,150.23
2,321.55

37,341.33
356.91

18,252.76
115.00
40.00

18,407.76

7,965.00
40,212.80

21,756 20
126,040.00
372.130.18
372.130.18
372,130.18

6,058.08
9,035.77
2,766.36
19,021.26

189.51
246.07

435.58

1.417.76

]



411 PM Port of Brookings Harbor

12104119 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis November 2019

10506.2 - Sick Leave Benefit

10506.3 - Vacation

10506.5 - SEP Retirament
10506.6 - Office
40506.7 - Operations
40506.8 - Port Manager

Total $0506.5 - SEP Retirement
10506 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits - Other
Total 10506 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits
10509 - Health Care and Dental
Total 500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

600 - MATERIJALS & SERVICES

10601 - ADVERTISING & NOTIFICATIONS

10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
10602.1 - Maintanance & Repairs
10602.2 - Sarvices/Supplias/Contracts
10602.3 - Tools & Equipment Purchases
10602.4 - Supplies & Sarvices
10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE - Other

Total 10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

10603 - FUEL purchased for resale
10605 - UTILITIES
10605.1 - Electric & Propane Gas
10605.2 - Water, Sanitary & Waste
10605.3 - Telecommunicatlons & Cable TV
10605 - UTILITIES - Other

Total 10605 - UTILITIES

10606 - OFFICE EXPENSE

10607 - BANK SERVICE & FINANCE FEES
10608 - TRAINING & TRAVEL

10609 - PERMITS, LICENSES, TAXES & MISC

10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES
10611.2 - Attorney
10611.3 - Audit
10611.4 - Engineering/Consultant
10611.5 - Architecture & Planning
10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES - Other

Total 10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES
Total 600 - MATERIALS & SERVICES

700 - CAPITAL QUTLAY
10704 - Equipment
40702 - Land improvement - Capt Proj
40702.1 - Engineering/Consultants
40702.2 - Materlals & Services

Total 40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj
Total 700 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

800 - DEBT SERVICE
801 - Principal
20801 - USDA Revenue Bond Principal
30803P - 50 BFMI! Travelift Principal
30804P - 2018 Genle Forklift Principal
30805P - Property Purch-Kyle Aubin Prin.

Nov 19

1.219.05
4,926.80

1,451.84
1,496.35
984.40

3,932.59
4,116.01
15.612.21
7,163.64
60,002.90

2,043.77

07,249.95
17,943.90
3,035.86
1,306.73
577.00

120,113.44
33,131.60

7,726.33
14,001.66
1,504.61
41.28

23,272.98

1,846.03
2,283.38

98.09
1,367.00

3,933.00
2,500.00
1,130.00
1,0561.25

867.12

9,481.37
193,637.66

4,800.00

393.75
679.45

1,073.20
587320

72,487.38
3,740.59
1,070.63

72.00

Page 2 \S



4:11PM Port of Brookings Harbor

12104119 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis November 2019
Nov 19
Total 801 - Principal 77.370.60
810 - Interest Payments
20810 - USDA Revenue Bond Intarest 57,632.62
30813P - 50 BFMII Travelift Interest 918.41
30814P - 2018 Genie Forklift Interest 394.08
Total 810 - Interest Payments §8,945.11
Total 800 - DEBT SERVICE 136,315.71
900 - Operating Transfars Qut
10900 - Operating Transfers Out Generaf 28,456.91
40900 - Operating Transfers Out Capital 923.24
Total 900 - Operating Transfaers Out 29,380.15
Total Expense 425 29962
Neat Income -53,169.44

ros |10



10:54 AM Port of Brookings Harbor

12/0519

Cash Basis Profit & Loss Budget Performance
July through November 2019
Jul - Nov 19 Budget % of Budget
Income
400 - REVENUES
410 . GENERAL REVENUES
10411 . Cash Carry Over 442,386 00
10417 - Assets Sales 100.00 5,066.00 1.97%
30414 . Interest Debt Service Fund 571.03 600.00 95.17%
20414 . Interest Revenue Bond Fund 1,108.23 700.00 158.32%
10414 . Interest General Fund 1,272.74 7.304.00 17.43%
10413 - Property Tax Prior 4,150.82 9,000.00 46.12%
10418 - Miscellaneous 6,067.87 20,657.00 29.37%
40419 . Transfer to Capital Project 11,572.53 625,000.00 1.85%
50419 - Transfer to Reserve Fund 52,105.00 125,000.00 41.68%
20419 - Transfer to USDA Bond Fund 54,215.00 130,120.00 41.67%
40416 - Government Funding
40416.3 - State Lottery Funding 600,000.00
40416.1 - Grant Funding 4,825.00 4,785.00 100.84%
40416.2 . FEMA Funding 63,810.75 182,000.00 35.06%
Total 40416 - Government Funding 68,635.75 786,785.00 B.72%
10419 - Transfer to General Fund 81,335.90 795,500.00 10.23%
30419 . Transfer to Debt Service Fund 151,458.55 363,748.00 41.64%
10412 - Property Tax Current 214,141.18 225,000.00 95.17%
Total 410 - GENERAL REVENUES 646,734.60 3,536,866.00 18.29%
420 - PAOGRAM REVENUES
10426 - PROPERTY GROUND EVENT USE 5,169.15 8,926.00 57.91%
10423 . BOATYARD 55,517.47 93,974.00 58.08%
10424 . COMMERCIAL RETAIL 212,590.78 519,402.00 40.93%
10422 . BEACHFRONT RV PARK 305,609.30 556,869.00 54.88%
10421 - MARINA 306,528.44 654,707.00 46.82%
10425 - FUEL DOCK 491,979.34 561,596.00 B4.59%
Total 420 - PROGRAM REVENUES 1,377,394.48 2,415,474.00 57.02%
Total 400 - REVENUES 2,024,129.08 5,952,340.00 34.01%
Total Income 2,024,129.08 5,952,340.00 34.01%
Gross Profit 2,024,129.08 5,952,340.00 34.01%
Expense
920 - OPERATING CONTINGENCY 10,149.00
930 - Fund Balances
10930 - Unappropriated Balance GF 83,500.00
20930 - Unappropriated Balance-USDA 99,095.00
30930 - Unappropriated Balance Debt 23,602.00
40930 - Unappropriated Balance Capt Pro 2,500.00
50930 - Unappropriated Balance Reserve 149,390.00
Total 930 - Fund Balances 358,087.00

n

Page 1 0f 3



10:54 AM Port of Brookings Harbor

12/051%

Cash Basis Profit & Loss Budget Performance

July through November 2019

700 - CAPITAL OUTLAY
10702 - Land Improvements
40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj
40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj - Other
40702.2 - Materials & Services
40702.1 - Engineering/Consultants
Total 40702 . Land Improvement - Capt Proj
10704 - Equipment
Total 700 - CAPITAL OUTLAY
800 - DEBT SERVICE
810 - Interest Paymentis
30814P - 2018 Genie Forklitt Interest
30813P - 50 BFMII Travelift Interest
20810 - USDA Revenue Bond Interest
Total 810 - Interest Payments
B01 - Principal
30805P - Property Purch-Kyle Aubin Prin.
30B04P - 2018 Genie Forklift Principal
30803P - 50 BFMII Travelift Principal
20801 - USDA Revenue Bond Principal
30802P - IFA PRINCIPAL
Total 801 - Principal
Total 800 . DEBT SERVICE
500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES
10505 - Overtime
10505 - Overtime - Other
10505.1 - Office
Total 10505 - Overtime
10503 .- RV Park Office Staff
10508 - Workers Compensation
10501 - Port Manager
10509 . Health Care and Dental
10502 - Port Office Staff
10506 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits
10504 - Operations Staff
Total 500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES
900 - Operating Transfers Out
40900 - Operating Transfers Qut Capital
10900 - Operating Transfers Out General
Total 900 - Operating Transfers Qut
600 - MATERIALS & SERVICES
10604 - DISPOSAL of Abandon Vessels
10608 - TRAINING & TRAVEL

Jul - Nov 19 Budget % of Budget
80,000.00
679.45 604,785.00 0.11%
10,676.25 20,000.00 53.368%
11,355.70 624,785.00 1.82%
29,724 41 30,000.00 98.08%
41,080.11 734,785.00 5.59%
2,071.87 4,773.00 43.41%
4,810.13 10,706.00 44.93%
57.632.62 57,633.00 100.0%
64,514.62 73,112.00 88.24%
360.00 B64.00 41.67%
5,251.68 12,803.00 41.02%
18,484.87 45,202.00 40.89%
72,487.38 72,487.00 100.0%
72,580.00 290,000.00 25.03%
169,163.93 421,356.00 40.15%
233,678.55 494,468.00 47.26%
4,316.00
1,916.78 6,512.00 29.44%
1.916.78 10,828.00 17.7%
15,108.52 46,585.00 32.43%
15,447.61 14,205.00 108.75%
33,319.44 84,018.00 39.66%
36,452 67 85,964.00 42.41%
53,725.03 153,838.00 34.92%
62,107.73 157,710.00 39.38%
109,228.11 248,578.00 43.94%
327,306.89 801,726.00 40.83%
81,335.90 795,500.00 10.23%
269,351.08 1,243,868.00 21.65%
350,666.98 2,039,368.00 17.2%
40,000.00
1,338.77 2,629.00

50.92% l e)

Page2 of 3



10:54 AM Port of Brookings Harbor
12/05M19

Cash Basis Profit & Loss Budget Performance
July through November 2019

Jul - Nov 18 Budget % of Budget

10601 - ADVERTISING & NOTIFICATIONS 5,256.07 12,928.00 40.66%
10608 - PERMITS, LICENSES, TAXES & MISC 8,012.36 29,317.00 27.33%
10607 - BANK SERVICE & FINANCE FEES 20,986.20 28,804.00 72.86%
10806 - OFFICE EXPENSE 27.613.58 34,365.00 80.35%
10610 - INSURANCE; PROP & CAS, BOND 34,363.60 83,8940.00 40.94%
10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES 43,475.56 99,570.60 43.66%
10605 - UTILITIES 136,471.85 281,292.00 48.52%
10602 . REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 381,883.47 408,780.00 93.42%
10603 - FUEL purchased for resale 456,738.02 492,132.00 92.81%
Total 600 - MATERIALS & SERVICES 1,116,139.49 1,513,757.00 73.73%
Total Expense 2,068,892.02 5,952,340.00 34.76%

Net Income -44,762.94 100.0%

4

Page3of 3



| efied

68'18900p"s-
68°959'00t"L~
19°0p2'96E"L-
SI'ESL'96E'L-
89996 L6E1-
¥O'594'SBE" L~
L0'2LY'PRE L
LO°ZLE'LBE"L-
SL088'18EL-
L2°808'18E"L-
EE€5L'18E )"
L5°9L9'2RE)L-
OE'E92'0LE"L-
ZL1B2'09E")-
16°209'6SE' 1~
£6'289'652")1-
16°188'60Z' 1~
01'809'602"1-
YE'ZEB'602' 1~
£8°2E1'502"E-
12'698'964 '1-
LZre0'eas't-
95'629°'18L't-
95 0L6'04L L
LL698'9LL -
CESEL'DLLL-
OF SEF'9LL"L-
OLESL9LL L.
18°966'6LL -
9 1LB'SEL L
05 LLLGLL'L-
2YIES'GLLL-
SE'BOP'GLL L
SE'SOL'SLL |-
SULLERLL L~
BLIBLFLLL-
SS'6Ya'RLLL-
12°0v8PLLL-
19181 pLL -
09'220'v 2L )~

LYELSO5L -
S2'5LE0SL'L-
L£'56L0SL'L

LPELG'ERL )L
6E'LEF6YL L~
LE6Eg'abL L.
90'PET'LPL'L-
LIOSS'2PLL

ZLEBE9EL'L-
GO'EBYSEL'L-
S9'6B9'GEL'L-
S9'669°0Z2'1-
$9°'669°052'1-
968950901~
ELPPLORO'L-

00522
B2'9tr'Y
ar'ie
v'902'y
ve08L'9
LLEBD
00'005°2
2816

j: . ¥
L]

LZEIN'D
8518651
SL'E8E
00'000'001
00°000°05
86421
94'S6L'E
S¥'6L9
89'492'9
PE0LL'SL
VAPl
00659y
Sp'L0L
IFEEN
00'00g
ozLe
62651
59221
99'651
BE'bLL
LLEEL
06'20€
og'ezL
L6581
£9'1Y1
$EE0L
09'B4E
16°EEL
0525082
9z'geL
SPLOL
84092
0z’ Lie
L1958
[74: 143
9L'prt
PS6LL
06'20¢
WL
£6°164
BO'EVL
20262
LE'500's
S6'ER
=g
20'rL9'01
2508
20'vE9

Wpau)

1abuy xop 5o} saiBuew) u) $810Yy N9 pur dooy Bu)d ele2qe.-51/62/01
g Areyues 6102 H380L30

seulua AemBueD 12 $8x0q ¥O0) 10} jBUBIEW

sueday [eaReg

siejoig uesg uueis ¥ efielolg ieog painoag 10) jepsiew Buoues
SONION 101td 181580 AUnD LpZBE #1SND

Guupq ssaibary - upoy

sanddng ey ¥ Aedey dinb3 2501 Munoay

BLOZ/Z1/Z UO JUnC30B uo Juswidedisad J0) punjey

afieioow [enuue-Iuas 10} JuswAiediono Jo) nparn

FETER g 35v1 6102 AON
liosied L0202/ | 28y

josted 6LOZ/0Z/L L 29H

130l01 | SR GLEM J0} B8 SHIOM AN 1TOF 01 Iwswded J0) Soajtuy jepdes o) Jasuer)
SpuUN [BBUBE) - d1D) O} HUBE BNbdwiy W H000SS 19jsUBLL

SpuUNd |BIBUSE) - 157 O} yusg enbowy) W} DOD'0SS 18jsues)

A1e9) - GLOZ SINOH UoNEIRA N0 Avy -losded §L02/5L/L L 38U

AeD) - 5102 SINOH UXEIEA 100 ABd -|loshed GLOE/SLIL L 98

Rsloid | wseg 61EMd 10} 83 SYIOM AN (MO 01 luBwAed 10) S198{0u (BideD) o Jajsues)
ltosked 6LOZ/90/1 | 98U

Iiouked §LOZ/DO/L L 38H

1usuiieg Y %04 Jo) pund BRARS G8( O] 1BjSuRLY

—:Ean_ BiBARI ] IO PUn L BMAISS 1G9 Q) JOJSUBIE

¥O[SUKL 00F JaV/e0BUBNI0GR 120 pLYLrrarSE IQEG 1O BotApY
6102/02/1 L "818q 10l /9G52905H 1GS( 10 SaApy
6816-ZE0-0006-0009 #1239y 60EISOY Jemog
ZLdSH-HIADUOBWLNLOY) 51020/ | Uoinquiucy 184oidwy
MXISHHLZADUOIBULYUOD 61020271 | UOIINGUIUCY 18Aniduw]
GOLHH-HLADAUOIRULYUOD §LOZ/D/ L | UOHRQUIUDY) 18dojdurgy
IEISHHLIADUOBULINUGS §10202/1 | UOlnquiuaQ Jakoidus
DZXSH-HLADUOBULNUCD SL0Z/02/L | UONRQUILG) Jakoidurg
SDHSH-HIADJUONRLUILCD 5LOZ/0Z/L ) Uolinquives) 18Aoidury
GADLH-HLADAUOIBWIIUOD 10202/ L uolinquiuay) 1ekodurgy
DBESHHLADJUONRULIUCS SLOZOZ/L | UOlINquICD) 18Aoidury
DMASH-HLADAUGHBULYUSD SLOZ/02/L L uolinquing) 1eiodu
BSHSH-HLADJUOIBULNLOD S1L0ZN/L | UOIRQUIV0Y) 184oidury
S102/51/1L1 BIEQ JI0IARy G129185pS# 1Gad 10 eMApY
LPANW-PSQ0JUSIRUENUCT GLOZSL/L | LoNRquIue) Jedoidu]
6102/90/1 | -91eq lIosked ZIIZEYSESH HGQ JO BAUADY

S3ISVHIUN 13N 2921192 # HANOLSND

Bi02/E2/01 B1e(] kB 6251 LEYPS# e 10 BapY

¥0R0wWr) 00E dQv/rebeuepioqe(ze GOOSIEYESE HGAQ |0 BXAY
SMISE-EHHAJUOIRWHILCD §L02/30/1 | IIoME] SUoNnquive) Jedoidws
SHPAL-dIHD UOIRULIIUOD §10Z/S0/L L UoInguiuay) 1sdodurg

B LL-d THd d U ITULyue) §10Z/B0¢E | UoNnquIuoy) Jehojdury
PZISL-dIHdd UOIBULLOT §1LOZ/30/1 1 uounguIve] sedojdwg
dOOAL-dIHD G VOIBULU0D E1DZ/A0/LE UCINGUILDY) JeA0jdury
ASBAL~dIHdd UOIRULIUCT GLOZ/IO/ & LONNQUILCY JBADIWT
NXOAL-dOHdd UiBwsjue] §10Z/00/1 § toanguiun?) Jedoidwy

Odd L-dDHdd UOIEUILUOD 6102/80/1 ¢ UOUNGHILD J8A0jdws
HMS L -dOHdd SoiBulguo 6102/0/1 L uonnguiuog Jadojdws

12X 11 -dDHdd HoNBUILOD S1LOZ/A0/1 | wounguiuo] Jadojdwm
LSENLD0V 232 3DIAYTS AINYHIUIW 6102 H3IB0LI0

2060100V 332 30IAWIS INVHIUIN 6102 HIAOLDO

YUNE] IR0F YOIUSA ELBILOTV ITF INAHIS LINVHIUIN 6102 H3A0L00
SLENLIOY 333 IDIAKIS LINYHOHIN 6402 H380LD0
S3SVYHIHNG 13N 2921192 # HAIWOISND

6102/92/1 | 10} spuney

Buipiam ejgenod S,uHOrAUNBY LYo
RS AlBYUES JOQIBH

‘out ‘fiddng Bubo soqueH

“SU| 'MR9F UBWMOT)

do-09 Addng 1nD-eQ

au) ‘Bipay Auncg

'O'd "VdD UBWSIUNK D
weawdinbg Aung

Aigg "uoung

esng ‘yerpuicy)

davy

dav

U} ‘semog Aeig
SOUOT pEMp3
SOUNf pEmp
SaUOf pUEMp3
SaUDr pIEMp3
spenuswy gL
B3URINSUY| BN BPMALCIEN
Vi -deg queg SN
SBUO pUEMP]
SOUO praMp3
SBUOr prEmp]
a0V

vl ~des yued S
dav

uosey

day

daQv

BAUINSY) 81 BpMUD)eN
SOUOF ueMpg
SaUOT premp3
SVl piemp3
SBUO pUeMp
epesusuny Q)
vuI 085 jueg SN
SOUQ puemMps}
SOUAI" PIEMP3
SBUOT puemp3
uoARTy

uoatry

uoABrg

[E0h: ]

uasie)

Hed AH 18

Wed A N8
Uasien

BLOZ/LONLL
G10Z/L0N1L
6L0Z/LOML
BLOZIONL
GLOZ/LLIL
6L0E/L0/11
61020/
GLOZ/LO/LE
G10&90/11
€102/30/11
Glozree/tL
6L020Z/L L
GLOZ0C/ s
GLOZILEN S
G1DZ/TLL
GL0ZELLL
GL0ZSHLL
6LO02/SLILL
GLOZ/LO/
6102/80/1L
GLOZ90/LL
61020 L
GLOZIPOILL
GLOZHBT/LL
GL0Z/B2/11
B10Z/BL/1L
Gl0Z0Z/1LL
Gi0c0Z/NL L
610202 L
Gi0Z0Z/LL
GI0ZNZ/LL
610TENL
6i0Z02/11
61020211
6202011
BiOZ0ZN L
6l0TEEN L
GLOZSELL
GLOZGLLL
BlLOZREEIL
aLoznotL
6L02/10/L)
6Loz/su L
GLO/TL
BLOZBOM L
elLoz/surtlL
6L0Z/30/11
GLOZrB0/L1
610230 L
sloe/RLL
6102/30/11
SL0Z/30/11
610201 L
102D Y
6Lo2/FONL Y
810Z/v0r1L
6L02NO0LL
BlLoz/Lent
6LoziLen
6102551111
6102FLILL
BL0256/11

0956

6556

8556
1556

9556

5956

556

€456

2556

L1556
ga/t Bosn
01 XV1
0211 Avd
BLiLENL
G921
BL/ELLL
SHLL XYL
SULL Avd
i dd
90/11 XV1
S/LL Avd
¥/LL 1830
¥/11 1930
11930
11a3a
11a3a
11930
11930
lig3a
1830
1830
11930
ug3a
11930
830
11830
11§30
Lg3ag
11830
11830
1130
11830
11830
Lg3a
11830
1630
11830
11830
11830
11830
1830
11530
1830
Lg3aa
g3a
11830
1i93a
meq Il
na2a I

20

HeyJ- i Il
¥38YD- kid g
¥38yD- hud 19
3D g 18
Payd- wd g
¥eu]- g g
#04J- Hg G
MIFUD W
=)

Ay

(BWnor jiBus)
|[PWwnop (reuet)
[BUINOF (RIBUSY)
[BWNor [2i0UeD)
[Rundy [e1euen
|BUINOp |BIBUSL)
[BLLNOf" [RIGUSS
[BUINGP [R10USE)
[EWNOr [210USD)
[RWINOf [HBUSE)
|BUINOp (BIBUAY)
[EWnor [B1BUBGE
IBUINOP [BIGUAE)
%euD

Uy

PYD- g g
HBUJ

Heyd

weud

Reud

$20UJ

8

#oayD

¥8uY

¥¥aug

Py

WIBYJ

BT

¥oeug

¥auD- kg 119
¥30uD

WEYD

¥

¥o8y7

WeyJ

wasyy

¥oeyg

Woug

%2842

¥B[ug

WD

¥3/y3

YD

P8y

3|y

PID

poayd- wy g
¥38y)

Ry

¥I|/uJ- wy g
Jajsum)
JesuR|

¥£9¢ enbdwin B3 spuny [suan - EOLOIL
diD7 7 ONMITHI ONNA TYUINID - LOL
SINITVAINDI ¥ HSVYD QALDMLSILND - 001

g

odiy

BLOZ/SEL L J0) SpUNySY
000 ams wewdied 1pq 20) VoNoESURI| JUNOWE (18T pajesausl syoogRHND
00°000°58 puNy 25USY yueg enbdwn Q) puny JRIBUAY JIS WO JBjSUBIYL EpUN
DO'000'0E yueg Bnbduin pung |1auat) ) dIE) PUNd (eI0USL) J9jSUR)) SpUN
naeq sy
G10Z 'OF JOqLUIBAON JO SY
sia)s1Bay yoayn

Jogiey sBujooig jo uog

s188g Yse
GISO7L
Wy 8L



~

T fug
$Z'152'06E"1- SL'629'0L5 v E26'592 SINFVAINDT ¥ HSVI A3LHHISIHNN - 001 1I0L
SZ'rer 0002 000 ysed Aiad - 10101 o)
sZrzy 0002 usodaq predssday ONNI3H X0} 'U0SIBIBd  BLOZILOML uyseJ el
S riy yseJ Aned - 10101
6P GLE'IEE L SLE000L5 v2'E26'592 dID7 T ONDIDIHI ONNY TYHINAD - tOL 1oL
2r 299'651 SZ'BZr'0gL 00°000°051 2109 197 pund |RIGUBE) - SOLOL IBIOL
2P 289'851 00'000'001 Spun jE18UBD - |5 C) ¥uBY Bnbdwn woy 000'0SS J8jsuBs sL0Z/92I L BLOZN |ewnof jeaues
2r' ZRO'6E 00'000°05 SPUN |BIBUSD - 4D C) YuBE BRbAWN Wey; HOO'DSS Jajsuri) 8LOZ/BLIL L BHEL/LL [RLLIROP jR18USL)
2rZeo's D0'EYE0L wewidiy 0202 19GWBACN JO) PUNJ PUOE BNUBASY YOS O) JAJSUES 0L §L02IPO/LL #i11 vasn [BWNOY [R2BUBE)
2p Ses'0e 00'ZLp'DL pungj eaissay of sgjsues) SL0ZPONIL v/LL §3H [BWNOY (Bs8UBL}
2P Ere'oe 00'891L°v2 Wug §LOZ MO Wi 10} BAIES 1980 V| OF 19SUBI ) 8LO/PONL v/ WAl [BUINOT [B1BUBE}
2rOILSE 520 %5P'2 - 6102 HIBOLIO 10 5383 g1 6L0ZN0/11L 183a »BUY
1901158 00°000'58 Pung jerouet) yueg enbdiuin o) pung JRIBUBE) IS WO JBISURIL SPUN. sL02iPLILL wysuRy
908 1°0pt 0000008 jukg enbown puny |B:8USY) 0) JIDT PUNS [BISLSL) JSISULI] SPUN, BLO2/SO/LE wsue)
190L1'0LL 1109 dID7 pung [R18UsY - SOL0L
16256055t~ 05 191'3ly YZETE'SEL rEge enbdwn 6y spuny e1BusD - COLOL (E10L
16'£56095'L- £5°222'1 Senddng BIEMpIBH OERIBWOISNT) U IBWEH BJY S,U8)  GLO2/OE/L 2086 »eyd- lud g
8¢099'605'1+ 26'L5P'E 18v2#0QHVD 110340 68-S0E# LOOV uon wpasp enoy  BLOZ/LEILL 1096 ST~ Nt D
Ly 222 Lrs L 21°99% sanddng edN0 ASL2EELNLIDV volEIodIoD D BLOZ/LELL 0096 WD~ lwd ma
$9'55L'0P5' L~ LIt §120201 "ON 10WOISNY Gunpuey rpusiewy eded  6LOZ/LELL 6656 NI~ Jwd e
25'PEC'OPS'L- 0516 18nJ pue S181J SID) PESN 5§ Jusds B JO |eADWeL 0JHHO  GL0ZLENL 8656 OUI- wd g
20'LIV'SPS 1 85925 s811king %000 [9n4 PUR UIBIQ ULDIS 18ADT) UBARY "dooy Bumg ‘ou) “Addng BuiBBosoqieH  gL02rERLL 1656 %3840 Wid g
PYOS6'TPS 1~ 252P5 S|EpeIEN 7 SOlIddNG BIBMPIBH 0428 JuNodaY '0U) ‘pIBA JBOWNT OESY POD  BLOZLENL 9656 *IBUJ- Mg FG
26 LOV'YPS - 9E¥6E"L S8|i0dng JeyI0 ¥ SIeMpIeH 00LGE ION J3WOoISnD do-00 Addns anD-00  S10ZLR/LL G656 HauD- wid (g
95 EL0'ErS - BE'LSL se|tddng ‘liew ¢ Jjedey dinb3 2501 munoooy luewdinbg Aung G102/ ¥656 ¥8UD- g g
B9°198'2K5'1- 00626 WEd AH UQNjyIBeg "5 YIRS (BlUsWUoIAUT Aunog AunD  LOZ/L2/LL €656 HD- Wd 19
BOZRA'IYEL- EES3L'L B31BS [RIIDST 1090 # LDDY DU ‘BAiBIBd00Y) DAL AunD-S00D  GLOZLE/IL 2656 BPEYD- wd g
ST 251 PESL" v568 saIddng @ Jaips LBYLEGH IUNoSTY LHYW-IE L0221 1656 WBUA- Wd g
18°290'FES L - 00°0E}L “Bd (1B19Y J9pUN LBAIND 5E J0 Burueeo Jof uoneoiddy Iunag juor, Jo AlsAlep ¢ BuussuiBug 07 'sislvaps/siseulbuz-on3 6102 0656 ¥y~ it g
18°£E6'2E5 - 521501 138101d UBHINUIISLBISY W AH SBHAIBE 5102 18q013() S30AIES [BInakyany | ‘sEIEDOSSY ¥ ABDMOID  GHOZNENL 6856 8- W I
95 9991651~ OOEEEE G102 i8q0I100 pur saquisides ‘tsniny ‘AInp 10) saseg jefia dTIBUNT P800 OB BLOZ/LE BESE 8- g g
95'E66'225'L- o0o'skL'e ZZ0200-0204 1unooay U AMPASRIU) GISEIDIO  BLOZ/LEZ/IL 2656 #32YD- iid g
95'BOZ'PES'1- 00ese 02-1 L BEES500:QI £-550V620 NI anusAsy jouawledeq  GLOIELL 9856 PayY- td |1g
95'62Z8'E2S"L- oozee uod - Buidasms wans sBupooug jo A9 GLoeen S6%6 WYY~ Wid g
96 BE6'ZES 1 00°000°r 18rZHadYD LI03WI 68-90Ek 100V uown ppas) enbod G102/ ¥856 »8uD
95'6E6'A15'L- 00964 seass dwng) 10 pue ebeiolg (any 10 Jeysinbunxg aif4 W 'sedneg BN ABjjea enbdwin  LOEL/L £856 %040 Mg JIig
95'ZhL'B15 - Li'B6L'L WNIW3HL SHYIHLTVEH - PIFOL00-E0 1§ 10wosn) BIB3YIILSH -HO 10 J0SSY 1510 9805 BLOZEL/LL 2856 PAUD- g (g
SbbPE'015 L 00'LEV pousd Buig Arenues Spyzes-0veENTY J9I00H OIOH  BLOZEL/LL 1856 VYD~ Wud (1
Sp20S'DIS'L- 00052 138i01d Ljer uOlS ¥ SBIEE | LISeR BINDSS O] SPBIYS PUB SEX0G 30| JO UCHE|EISY| Bupiapm elgeucd S,UNOTALNESY UYOT  BLOZEL/LL 0856 U3 g (g
SF2SL'605')- ooovL O0SEHO 19194840 L00Z OL 11903 uo 5,0807 Bog |eisu| 271 ‘vbiseq puE SHUORID) UOOW-I1  BLOZEL/LL 6256 ¥0uZ- g g
SPL19'609'1- 6002 COSTHI V9I0IA6UD L00Z O1 1 L NI SPRY pue S1adijeD exesg eoBjday SANOWIOINY WOWMUBH  GLOZEL/LL 8256 ¥8yJ- Wid g
5€°266'805'1- aeolr'L I8 H31VYMBINAKIS 0201 - 026 ‘O'Vd FISI JeTEM JOGIBH  BLOZEL/LL LI56 ¥08uD- Wd 1me
BYOgY' 205"t - 00'5e9 UO1138UL02 ¥00p 01 AeMBuEG 18 sur Addng eoeides o) aul [Bn) meN ‘o ‘Kiddng BuiBbo soqeH  sl0EELALL 9156 #9UJ- W g
BY'159'805'L- 12'e8 64p Jeaei) ‘a0 UMRIP ULOLS REEOZL LN JBWOISNT "ou) 'saspdigiug vesnfley BIOZELNLL Si56 WBYD- I i
£2895'905"1- 60°DZ $4310 BININ} 10} AlieND uLluGD ) paIspua 1 vE1D Addng supeyy puniBu  s102E1/1LL vLS6 Weyg- lug Ing
BL8P6'005"L- 052842 Siejsdwing ysel L 100-PERZ-OPOZE IUNDSIY Butisdsay v 18jsurly Aung B102EL1L1 €456 WEYJ- lud g
9°0LG'BEY'1- 00°05€°L pe afied gy) surzelew sonsip vobaig wayinog - oy sBuy) 101EY) Busiand Aewelg  BLOZ/ELILL 2I56 RIBUD- g g
BY 09" L6Y'L- 00'05€'vE 10GE PUE (BUBIEN (|B SBpNoU BuiPnng usen Jo vonjowag I uoBsue) ¥ Bujood pauty  GLOZ/ELALL 1256 yoeud- g g
8FOLLELY'L- 0002 lsodaq predsAey QNNI3Y paLNOW  GLOZELAL 0456 b1l
BYO60'ELY'L- 00052 Buip|ing uaeIg) |0 LOIIDWA( B8 SWOM HiANd HM 08 6102201 6956 HIBUJ- W (g
SYOFE'ZIV'L- 00ZER'y DOSEND 12401ABYD £002 jO 65BUANG GLOBOHMSWOISND 1ol 1510 Auadold SYO YO I0 BIRIS  GLOZ/ZOVES 0956 WD- I |18
9'B00'BOY" 1+ 02226 BIUBUBIUIEY PUR S858E7 Jad0)) O 'sexweg |eyden xouax  GLOZ/LOVLL 1956 #AJ- wd Ing
86'580'20¢'1- 05'265 BIIIes P UOHDedsY 1XF-60HE/0t | ‘sEARS Bl ABfep Bnbdwn  GLOZVLONLL 9956 %384 ud (g
81 EBY'O0Y'L- £5°68S Savd ¥ SWO08 INISHOS 110 - SELOFESL aurn  GIDZ/LLL 5956 ¥I8UD- hug 119
SE'E06'50r'L- 001y 6102 18G0R0) 10y [0N1E] ANindeg Andeg by IS0 umos 6102720411 ¥356 HeyD- lud 19
$6'95L'109'L- SPEEt sanddng eXjI0 BSI1ZE61#LI0V vojlesodios IRD B10Z/20/1L £956 PBYD- g g
05°Z19'10¢'L- 00'LLS 18114 (EUDHINISY] BSR)-5 paae|der 6172101 DTl 'seoiueg yueg v edigdwnd  6LOZ/2OVLL 2956 ¥R~ I )i
050r0'LOP'L- 19°BSL saiidng BIEMpIBH SSRIBWOISND S| BIEMIUBH 83y UGN BLOZILO/LL 1956 #3YD- g g
eauwyeg upargy uasg oley awep ajug wnN adAy
610Z "DE JBqQUIBAON |0 SY siseg yseg
s13)s18ay Noayn 6L50/1
loqueH sbupjooug jo yog WY BEiLL



¢ obeg

99 LIS PIT -

semsae

272

06°899'F1L wioL
S5BET'OLL SLOPZ'EEL 16'v29'28 SINFTVAINDI ¥ HSVD GILMHLSIY - 0F | 0L
0L 0PP'ELL 000 00'8EY'SY d1571 Q3101 LS3H * SOI [BI0)
2c261's0 000 00°LLYP'0Y 9109 197 PUN AAIBSSY - SOLOS JRIo)
ZELEL'SR 00 Ltr'OL pung essesey of Jejsuel) BL0ZIPONLL v/l S3H [BUNOY (R16USS)
2e08L'vL 8108 dID7 PUNJ SAISESY - 50105
¥1'29L99 000 00'891L'¥2 0203 4197 pung 8BS 1980 V41 - S010E (el0L
¥1292'09 00'B91'YE Wd 6102 11D tip 10) BHAISS 168 V4| 01 33SuEI) SLO2PO/LL v/LL YAl [BUNOCT [Ri8USD
v1PES'2Y 0209 1D PUNd PHAISS 1090 V| - S0LOC
vZLEYLE 0o 00 Eri'ol 1209 dI9 Pun4 puog ¥ASN * SOLOZ |8I0L
rZier'Ie 00 EFEDL wautdey 0Z0Z JOGUBACH 10) PUNJ Pu0y SNy YOS 01 J8jsuRs 0] EL0Z/vOsEL ¥lL vasn jpwnor |z1eLen
vZBEg'DL 1209 d1D7 PUNZ PUOA YOSN - SOLOZ
OLZID'BZL di91 aILOMLSTY - 501
Bee6a'2 SLor2'ect 16'961°L DNDIZIHD P L5 AINOW GILNHLSTH © #01 [BI04
ozotLg ¥r'956'1 0ZEL0'L 9108 enbdurn sidsiolg (ende) - yOLOP [B10]
4 THN SL'E6E £61020 wollBls %20q |8nd suuey Jof sBumel “Isuoy) Aieunuyasd Gudojaasp anuiuos seawuBg "yoay Buusawbug 610a/LEN L 8re WBUD- Wid |1g
StealL'l- SrELg weiord Bunid | viseq SLEMJ 89 SHOM diand HMJ 108 610214011 1¥Z weuJ- wd g
00 Ev0'L- y2'C26 Iuid 3S¥31 6102 AON 610Z2/L 2L 9ISN IBWnor [BJ8UAE
9L 8L~ SLE6E Balold | WSER G1EMG 10} B9 SHIOM NN 1108 01 wawked joj spalory jende) o) 19jsurs) GEOZ/LENL BLILEN JBUWInOr [BIaUAS)
1SELS- SP6L9 waloid | WSEQ GIEM 10} B8 SWIOM 1N 1708 ©) wewied i0} sp8joly |2ude o) Jsjsurl] 6102/20/11 ML dd IBWNOr [B18UaS)
952611+ 2102 enbdwn s1aefosd [euded - yoLoY
S9E0S'Z LLEEN'S t2'E2L'9 2298 WW enbdwy B3ueg 1980 - $OLOE JRIOL
SOE0S'Z LLPar't 1UBWARH UF WO 10} Pung BHAIBS 108y O} J8jSuRsL SL0Z/PO/LL piLL 1830 [EWINOT |elBUsE)
PEBEC'L 00659y uaded JIBARIL 10} PUny BJAIBS 1R O} J8jSuis) SLOZIvOILL v/l 1830 (BWNOf [RIBUBE)
o0'029'e- D0'ES9'P HHOAR)Y IR 05 - ZEN Mg 1DS0L LNUROT POLLOLK 19UWISNT JT1eseaizw  gLOZEN L ug3a Hayg
vEBED'L LLrer'L L2# WaWARd OZ91L 702 P LAURDT U0 YIBEY BILBE 0291pr)ipieueopueg Brbdwn  GLOSLALL 1183a wyo
SO'E05°2 1298 W enbdwin so/95 1930 - POLOC
£PLISE 00'0zL'osL (1] 6256 Win Bnbduin ONOY YOSN - #0102 [B10]
£rLISE 00021 '0EL " uswded puog enusasy Z0-L64 YASN wawdojeae (B YASN  GLOBALOVLL 118930 T
£P'LEQ'ZEL 6256 Wi enbdwn gNOE vasn ' FOL0T
2L'2PE'EE) ONDIIIHD T LN AINOW QILIHLSIY - bOL
20'75E'192 SINITYAINDI ¥ HSVD GILIMLSIH - OLL
suseg upy ugeg oy LT aug woN ediy
610Z '0F JaquisnoN jo sy siseg ysen
sissibay xoayy sL/50/2Y
Joqsel sbupjooug jo Log [ UL THTY



PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

PORT MANAGER
MONTHLY REPORT

Date: December 17, 2019

Period: November 2019

To: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members
Issued By: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

Safety & Security

Port of Brookings Harbor safety performance recorded one first aid accident when our employee
cut his finger while using a post-hole digging tool.

South Coast Knight Security and POBH recorded 15 overnight parking violations, 1 no camping,
3 dumping of trash, 24 boat launch ticket and parking issues, and 3 unauthorized visitors on
Port propetrties. November Security Log attached for your review.

Port recorded 7 incidents in November:

Vehicle struck Beachfront Bistro building causing minor damage to the siding. Condition of the
driver was unknown.

Truck lost control and backed into Basin 2. Driver was
uninjured. Truck was removed from the basin without
causing any spills or cleanup from Port staff.

November Incident Log attached for your review

Port Office
Port still waiting on DEQ 1200-Z final approval. Once Port receives final approval, Stormwater
Pollution Control Plan will be implemented.

Attend Emergency Preparedness Response Planning Winter Storm in Gold Beach with County

and other local agencies. We reviewed each agencies role in a Winter Storm, as well as assess

our resources in order to better prepare for Winter Storm/Flooding/Power Outage Emergencies.
Page1lof2

13



THE GOAL:

Update Plans & Policy as well as iron out agencies roles, before, during and after a winter
storm, flooding, power outage incident, as well as mitigate potential impacts to the community of
Curry County during such emergencies. To provide effective resilience, incident
management/coordination during response or emergency by establishing, Communications-
Information Management, Countermeasures & Mitigation, Surge Management and Bio
surveillance.

FEMA / Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
FEMA DR-4432 February 24, 2019 storm damage to slopes, fuel dock ramp and dredging is

waiting for final approval. Revised cost estimates were provided to FEMA. Estimated cost for
slope repair is now $755,000. Revised cost estimate for dredging is now $875,000. Fuel dock
estimated repairs is $220,000.

FEMA DR-4452 April 6, 2019 storm damage to basins sediment is waiting for final approval.
Revised cost estimate for dredging is now $1,770,000 for hauling spoils off site.

Other Grants

Attend FEMA-Oregon Emergency Management grant training in Medford. This grant training
covered only equipment not construction related projects. Grants must be submitted through
County Emergency Management and each county has a limited number of equipment requests.
All equipment grants must have a terrorism nexus to be eligible. Deadline is January 17, 2020.
This grant program might work for the Port to acquire backup generators for the fuel dock and
possibly other sensitive operations at the Port. Matching for this grant is 10%. Port should
schedule submitting for this type of grant in the next cycle.

Board approved moving forward with FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grants for Basin 2 Slopes
Repairs, Dredging, Seawall at RV Park and Receiving Dock Repair (Pac Choice) projects this
year. Deadline is earlier than we thought, January 3, 2021. Jack Akin/EMC is working on grant
applications for slope repair and dredging since these are tied to 2019 disasters and should
have a higher probability of award. This grant is highly competitive as well as FEMA-PDM grant
terminology is very specific and difficult to understand. At this time, RV Park seawall and
receiving dock will be planned for next grant cycle.

Page 2 of 2

24



Port of Brookings Harbor

NOVEMBER 2019

SECURITY LOG

# |Date Reported By |Issue Type Location Vehicle Plate |Notes
440|11/06/19 |SCKS No Camping Retail Parking Lot Z2373NI
441]11/09/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking RV Park 7G0S548
442|11/10/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot BPR7375
443]|11/11/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot 132FTV 1
444111/11/19  |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot 934HBU
445|11/12/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 877)TA Date not visible
446(11/12/19 |POBH Parking Violation Boat Launch Parking Lot 458KUG i;;ﬁle il U
447|11/12/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 246HUU Expired ticket
448|11/12/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 4865 Expired ticket
449|11/12/1% |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot A1032514 Date not visible
450|11/12/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 182)AX Expired ticket
451|11/12/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 197KWD No ticket
452]|11/12/19 |SCKS Dumping RV Park Trash in Dry Camp
453]11/12/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking RV Park SCC964
454|11/13/15 |SCKS Dumping Retail Parking Lot
455[11/13/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot A1019802 Temp License
456|11/13/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot HDHB
457]|11/13/19 |SCKS Dumping Commercial Basin
458(11/13/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 40293
459|11/13/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 760LDP Date not visible
460|11/14/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot 39713H1
461111/14/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot 132FTV 2
462111/14/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Commercial Basin 34BKIR
463[11/14/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Commercial Basin 803LLN
464|11/14/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Commercial Basin 68320H1
465|11/14/19 |SCKS Unauthorized Visitor RV Park 435LHL
466|11/14/19 |SCKS Unauthorized Visitor RV Park Yellow School Bus
467|11/14/19 |SCKS Unauthorized Visitor RV Park
468|11/14/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 035L5L No ticket
469|11/14/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 5098452 No ticket
470(|11/14/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 476LFM No ticket
471|11/14/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket  |Boat Launch Parking Lot |346KYR i’;:ﬁ'e AL
472|11/14/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 171JP) No ticket
473|11/15/19 POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 7U35333 Took ticket on boat
474|11/15/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket  |Boat Launch Parking Lot |991FWZ :;:ﬁ'e car in trailer
475|11/15/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot BY87866 :lzﬁle It
476|11/15/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 1032914 Date not visible
477|11/15/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 40879J1
478|11/21/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Kite Field 071KKA
479|11/21/19 |PoBH Boat Launch Ticket  [Boat Launch Parking Lot [8GBX942 igﬁle car in trailer
480]11/23/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot TCH530 No ticket

Page 1of 2

PAS)




Port of Brookings Harbor NOVEMBER 2019
SECURITY LOG

# |Date Reported By |Issue Type Location Vehicle Plate |Notes
481|11/23/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 397FRC No ticket
482|11/23/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 1973 No ticket
483|11/23/19 |POBH Boat Launch Ticket Boat Launch Parking Lot 530KLQ No ticket
484|11/24/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Boat Launch Parking Lot Yellow Bus Brokedown
485]11/24/19 |SCKS Overnight Parking Retail Parking Lot 329KTR

Page 2 of 2

2o




Port of Brookings Harbor

NOVEMBER 2019

INCIDENT LOG

# Date Description of Incident Location Corrective Actions

80| 11/04/19 |Hungry Clam burglarized ::t:g"ry Clam - Commercial Sherriff's contacted

81| 11/08/19 |Diesel Leak Fuel Dock Line was removed and temporarily
fixed

82| 11/15/19 |Gas Leak Fuel Dock L.me was removed and temporarily
fixed

. Emergency agencies responded, car
Car struck Beachfront Bistro Rest t
83| 11/18/19 BZ;;:‘UC eachirant Bistro Resturan Best Western / Port Property |was towed, building has some
; damage

84| 11/22/19 |Truck drove (backed in) into Basin 2  |Basin 2 near E Dock Sher UEEE S LD e L
vehicle was remove,

B5| 11/24/19 |Boat taking on water Basin 1, A 29 S U A TIEELT FalIEd
the emergency contact on file

86| 11/26/19 |Vessel line broke Basin1,B 16 Replaced line

Pagelof1

2



PORT
BROOKINGS
HARBOR

HARBORMASTER MONTHLY REPORT

Date: December 17, 2019

Period: November 2019

To: Gary Dehlinger, General Manager
Issued By: Travis Webster, Harbormaster
Operations

RV Park

Small repairs continue with water leaks, breaker replacement, and cable TV repairs. During the
November 26™ and 27" windstorm, the RV Park suffered only minor damage to fences and
knocked out a repeater for the wi-fi system. Port staff also removed sand that was blown onto
the driveway areas throughout the park.

Occupancy by Month & Year
November 2018 2019 Change YTD 2018 | YTD 2019 Change
RV Park 16.69% 15.22% -1.47% 35.47% 29.53% -5.94%
Marina

Engineer okayed the fiag poles and stated the flags must come down in high winds. Port staff
added new flagpole hardware to the flag poles along boardwalk. Port staff completed a 40 ft
finger rebuild in basin 2, along with board replacement on main dock. During the high winds in
late November Port staff monitored both basins, inspected mooring lines, tightened and
replaced lines as needed.

Moorage holders need to keep in mind to also check that their vessels mooring lines are tight
and not frayed, vessel is not taking on water and bilge pump is working, and to keep docks clear
of debris like bicycles, crab pots, crab ropes, and carts.

Max Capacity — 512 slips Slips Closed - 14 slips Available Slips — 498 slips
Basin 2 Water and Power | Basin 1 With Power Without Power
239 slips Available 273 slips Available Available
16— 24/ slips 3 - 40’ slips 7 - 40’ slips
0 - 40’ slips 3 -30 slips 12 -30'slips
113 - slips under 22’

Moorage Renewals by Month Total Moorage Rentals
November 2018 2019 Change YTD 2018 | YTD 2019 Change
Recreational 14 19 5
Commercial 4 8 4 264 361 97
Transient 3 2 -1 69 82 13

Boat Launches Paid through Launch Machine
[ Boat Launch | | 352 | | | I |

25



Gear & Boat/Trailer Storage

Weekly inventory of all gear storage, boat storage and trailer storage. Port staff installed new
fence posts and top rail for our expanded boat storage and the fence should be complete by end
of December. Demo of Green Building is near completion. Due to a change order with the
project the completion date will be a couple more weeks. After completion Port will pursue
finishing grading and prep the area for more boat storage. Port will be advertising boat and
trailer storage around the first of the year.

Commercial Receiving Docks

Port staff graded gear storage roads. Commercial fleet has started crab pot work in hopes for a
December start. One dock hoist was repaired at Bornstein’s dock. All hoist and docks for our
tenants are functioning and ready for the crab opener. Although the docks are ready for use, all
docks suffer from drainage issues that will need to be addressed in the future, when funds or
grants become available.

Boat Yard

The remaining debri fram the bank cleanup is removed from the back of boat yard. A detailed
list has been started on the gear and items on our abandoned boats in boat yard. This list should
be completed by middle of Dec.

Travel Lift work included 12 boats with various types of maintenance work.
Forklift work included 7 jobs for the commercial fleet.

Billable Services Performed this Month and Boat Yard Inventory

Description Hours Quantity | Working Abandon
Reachlift {Forklift) 10 7

Travel Lift Haul Ins-QOuts 12

Vessels in Boat Yard 11 7

Maintenance Crew

Maintenance crew completed 27 work orders. Please see attached log for descriptions.

Port staff had a diesel line that started to leak at the base of the gangway. Staff noticed the leak
almost immediately and were able to shut lines off and drain. Staff ordered a new temporary
line and installed the following Monday. One week after that a gas line began to leak. That hose
was also shut off, drained and replaced by Port staff. On both occurrences, incident reports and
spill agencies were filled out and notified.

PCBH purchased a new silt curtain for our future culvert project and other needs.

Abandoned Boats

1. Sweet Genevieve 5. Gypsy Lee

2. Katish 6. Stella

3. 4play 7. Kanygo 289938
4. No-Y

29



WORK ORDERS LOG

Port OF BrookinEs Harbor
November 2019
Date
Date Location Description of Work Corrective Action Completed Completed By
10/31/19 |RV Park - Far Dumpster  |Locking mechanism stuck fixed locking mechanism 111719 Brent
10/28/19 [RV Park - Front Row move picnic tables Moved tables back to their spots 11/1/19 | Shawn & Cameron
117119 |Hungry Clam Back door lock failed notified door locks is tenants (171719 Brent
responsibility
11/1/19 |Basin 2, 1& J Ramp Locking mechanism stuck fixed locking mechanism 11/1/19 Brent
11/5/19 |Basin 2, Bathrooms Coin Showers not working Removed jam, reassembled 11/5/19 Brent
11/4/19  iRetail Parking Lot Hang new sign Done 11/5/19 Brent
11/1/19 |Basin 1 Gangway Entries  |Install Keypad locks Done 11/6/19 Brent
11/5/19  |Retail Area - Entryway Hang new sign Done 11/6/19 Brent
11/5/19  |[EQ#1110, 2007 Chevy Prep new truck for use Cleaned, Oil Change, Logo Added | 11/6/19 Brent
11/1/19 |Basin 2, J dock, Slip 3 Remove tire on triangle Removed and disposed of tire 11/7/19 Cameraon
11/1/19 [Basin 1, B dock, Slip 2 Triangle is laying on finger Reinstalled tnangle to slip 1177719 Cameron
E1/1719 |Basing | and 2 Repaint yellow lines on docks Repainted lines, marked trip hazards 11719 Sean & Cameron
11/1/19 |Basin Ramp Entries Install Slippery When Wet signs Installed, need 4 more (DS to order) 11719 Shawn
11/8/19 |Fish Cleaning Station Carcass bins are full Moved to Alexander Dairy 11/8/19 Brent
11/12/19 |Fish Cleaning Station Carcass bins are full Moved to CTR 11/12/19 Brent
11/12/19 |Fuel Dock Splice in water line Repaired 11/13/19 Shawn
11/8/19 |RV Park, Site 44 Guest report 50 AMP not working Breaker was off - now working 11/13/19 Brent
11/12/19 RV Park Golf Cant Corrosion on battery terminals Cleaned 11/13/19 Shawn
11/13/19 [Basin 2, Bathrooms Report of stench like sewer Nothing/no smell found 11/14/19 Travis
11/15/19 [RV Park, Ladies room Paper towel dispenser not working Fixed 11/16/19 Shawn
11/19/19 |Boatyard - Travelify Wheels going out of alignment Adjusted alignment, repaired 11/19/19 Brent
11/19/19 |Basin 2, J dock, Slip 2 Need to contact vessel owner Sign to contact office put on boat 11719719 Danielle
1177/19  |RV Park, Site 87 Broken seat on picnic table Replaced (2) 2x6 boards 11/20/19 Shawn
11/18/19 |Basin 1, A dock, Slip 1 Customer request cleats be moved Moved cieats per request 11/20/19 | Sean & Cameron
11/18/19 |RV Park, around site 87 |Clean up area where waterline broke  |Dirt pile and all cones removed 11/20/19 | Sean & Cameron
11/22/19 |Basin2,D 12 Vessel appears 10 be heavy - Stern Done 11/22/19 Shawn
Informed of policy - nothing is
11222/19  |Hungry Clam Would like to hang lights ouside allowed to be attached 1o the 1125119 Brent

exterior of retail buildings

20



ACTION ITEM — A

DATE: December 17, 2019

TO:

Port Audit Report Fiscal Year 2018-19

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

Port audits must be reviewed and approved by Certified Public Accountant (CPA),
approved by the Board, and then submitted to State of Oregon by December 31 every
year.

DOCUMENTS

Manager's Representation Letter, 5 pages
Draft Port Audit Report FY 2018-19, 74 pages
Draft Resolution No. 530 Acceptance of Draft Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2018-19, 1

page

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve draft Port Audit Report for fiscal year 2018-19 and Resolution No. 530
Acceptance of Draft Audit Report.

&)



P O”/ R I www . portofbrookingsharbor.com 16330 Lower Harbor Rd
3 e P:(541)469-2218 P.0. Box B48
BROOKINGS F: (541)359-3999 Brookings, OR 97415

HARBOR

November 30, 2019

C. J. Huntsman, CPA, P.C.
P.O. Box 569
Coos Bay, OR 27420

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the primary government medified cash basis financial
statements of the Port of Brookings Harbor (the "Port”), which comprise the respective modified cash basis financial
position of the governmental activities and each major fund as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position, respective budgetary comparison statements for each major fund, and the related notes to the financial
statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all
material respects, in conformity with the modified cash basis method of accounting, which management has determined is
an acceptable financial reporting framework that differs from generally accepted accounting principles accepted in the
United States of America {U.S. GAAP),

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are considered
material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would
be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in
amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of November 22, 2019, the following representations made to you
during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated June 10, 2019,
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the primary government financial statements in
conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting, an acceptable accounting framework recognized by Oregon law
for use by local governments, and for preparation of the supplementary and other information in accordance with the
applicable criteria.

2. The primary government financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the modified
cash basis of accounting and include all properly ciassified funds and other financial information of the primary
government required to be included in the financial reporting entity. Note 1 of the financial statements describes the
modified cash baslis of accounting as used by the Port.

3. While there is no standard setting body that establishes accounting standards for the modified cash basis of
accounting, both the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the American Institute of CPAs (AICPA)
publish guidance and example materiats used in preparing modified cash basis financial statements. The Port used
these application materials published by the GFOA and AICPA in preparing our primary government financial
staterments using the modified cash basis reporting framework.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and falr presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

5. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to prevent and
detect fraud.
1

52



6. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, Including those measured at fair value, are not
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, since the Port follows financial reporting applicable to the modified
cash basis of accounting.

7. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to refated parties have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed when applicable.

8. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, inciuding instances of noncompliance, subsequent to the
date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

9. The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements as 2 whaole for each opinion unit.

10. The effacts of all known actual or possible litigation, clalms, and assessments have been accounted for and disclosed in
conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting when material.

11, Guarantees, whether written or aral, under which the Port is contingently liable, if any, have been properly recarded or
disclosed.

Information Provided
12, We have provided you with;

3. Accessto all information, of which we are aware, that Is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.
¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the Port from whem you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Port or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet
been prepared.

13. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

14. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

15, We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Port and Involves—
s Management,
e Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
s  Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
16. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Port’s financial statements

communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others, except for Oregon Local Budget Law. The Port’s
General Fund expenditures In the materials and services category exceeded the total appropriated budget by $159,368.

53



17.

18.

19,

20.

We have no knowledge of Instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when preparing financial

statements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible [itigation, claims, and assessments whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements,

Management has secured commercial insurance through a pooling arranged managed by the Oregon Special Districts
Association and believes that such insurance coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses.

We have disclosed to you that the Port has no related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of
which we are aware would have been made available to you.

Government-specific

21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

26

-

27.

28,

29.

30.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in,
financlial reporting practices.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the audit
objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

Except for the modified cash basis reparting framework which limits U.S. GAAP required disclosures, the Port has no
plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabllities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or net position.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements
applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual provisions for reporting
specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe have a material effect on the financial
statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the
attention of those charged with governance.

We have identifled and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of
noncomplance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts or ather financial data significant to the audit objectives.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of abuse that
could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other financial data significant to the
audit objectives.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including those pertaining to
adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any
refated debt covenants whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance, except for Oregon Local Budget Law., The Port's
General Fund expenditures in the materials and services category exceeded the total appropriated budget by $159,368.

Except has been made known to you, the Port has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral,

The Port has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have 2 material effect on the financial
statements in the event of noncompliance,

24



31.

32.

33

-

34,

35,

36.

37

38.

39.

40,

41,

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in compliance with the modified cash basis method of
accounting.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS 34 and 37 for presentation as major are identified and presented
as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and classifications of fund
balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are properly classified and, if applicable,
approved,

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of activities,
and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general revenues,
contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal when applicable.

Interfund, Internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.

Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are properly
disclosed,

We have appropriately disclosed the Port’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have
determined that net position is properly recognized under the poficy.

We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources {that Is, restricted, committed, assigned,
or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than one resource classification is
available, That policy determines the fund balance classifications for financial reporting purposes.

With respect to the supplementary schedule of modified cash basis property tax transactions, schedule of long-term
debt principal and interest transactions, and the schedules of future cash requirements for payment of long-term debt
on the revenue bond serles 2000, combinad IFA notes payable and other notes payable, on which an in-relation-to
opinion Is issued:

2. Woe acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information as described above in
conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting, and we believe the supplementary information as
described above, including its form and content, is fairly presented in compliance with the modified cash basis of
accounting. The methads of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information as described above,
has changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.

b. We acknowledge that while there is no standard setting body that establishes accounting standards for the
modified cash basis of accounting, both the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the American
Institute of CPAs {AICPA) publish guidance and example materials used in preparing modified cash basis financial
statements. The Port used these application materials published by the GFOA and AICPA in preparing our primary
government financial statements using the modified cash basis reporting framework.

With respect to Oregon Minimum Standards:

a. Other than as disclosed within the audit report and above, the Port was incompliznce with all the provisions of the
Oregon Local Budget Law, Oregon Revised Statutes {ORS) 294,

b. The Port’s deposits are adequately covered by federal depository Insurance or certificates of participation at all
times during the year.



Signed:

Signed:

The Port’s Investments comply with the legal requirements pertaining to the investment of public funds contained
In ORS 294.035.

There are no instances of non-compliance with ORS Chapter 279 (public contracts and purchasing).
The Port’s insurance and fidelity bond coverage is adequate.

The Port's debt outstanding was within legal provisions of the ORS’s.

The Port had no outstanding endorsed warrants.

The Port had no programs funded from state highway funds.

Gary Dehlinfer, Port Manggaf, Port of Brookings Harbor

/43 454%)

Kim 8oom, Financial Officer, Port of Brookings Harbor

o



Copyright = 201S

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR OREGON
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Prepared by Port Administration

)



PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

25



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
- TABLE OF CONTENTS

TrANSITHEA] OO ..o iiieiieescerssereesessssssssnsnansessesssnssssssrerasmssssssssoctosnsinssssssossrastnanananansanss |
Elected Board of COMMISSIONETS ......cceeerermrerintmmreeiaressinssessssssssssssssssasssasiosissasasssnsasssssanse ]
ATV ST . .oeovevereereeseersnsrsrsesnsesesserssssosssnsnrsssensrasssrnsasssanebssssenssnssssrssanssssonatnsrsesssunrass (M|
Port Organization Cham ... st v
Port Geographic BOUNMANES ...........cccvvieireiinenincniniiisissasnssneinsnisssssessssssassessacsnssssan \')
PO P CIUIES. .. c. vt eeereeeeereseeansssaseeaassssnsssonssannessnsorssnnbestvassssssonnssssessssssssinrens VI
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's RepOrt ...t 1-2

Basic Financial Statements-

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position — Modified Cash Basis ............cccceiierieccirinrnnerresiesisiennes 3

Statement of Activities — Modified Cash Bagis.............cereererrermmmencnsicsscistiniisansnesisssrssens 4
Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet — Modified Cash Basis — Governmental Funds............ccccevvnieennanne 5

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Modified Cash Basis — Governmental FUNdS...........ccooevvviieiviiiininaiiiceniineiiissnes 6

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Modified Cash Basis - Budget and Actual

General FUNG........ooviveiinieiarr ettt e ars e en st sas s as s sessessrssnsrsansnssane 7
Debt Service FUN ... i s rssisass e ssreasssresennasarenas 8
Revenue Bond FUNQ...........ccocivevniiniimninniininemine e et csactnessessesesanne 9
Capital Projects FUNG.......ooo e b e e 10
ReSEIVE FUNA.......cecvnieiieiiiieitinrrecieeisiirnresaerrertnrrsnssessssenceenssonsssssssssserse 11
Notes to Basic Financial Statements.........cccooieoimiiiiiiiiic s vees 12-25
Notes to Budget Presentation ..............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiinciciiiiiici e, 26-27
Supplemental Schedules
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions — Modified Cash Basis............cccccecereiecieennes 28
Schedule of Long-Term Debt Principal and Interest Transactions..............ccceveennenn. 29
Schedules of Future Cash Requirements for Payment of Long-Tenm Debt
Revenue Bond Series 2000..........cccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiirir e e e 30
Combined IFA Notes Payable............ccoivieeriiniii e 31
Notes Payable... ... e crres s s st rreare s e e aan srese 32

Other Information — Unaudited
Trend information Since Adoption of the Modified Cash Basus of Accounting.........33-35

In ndent Auditor's Report ired by State Requlations....................... 36-38



PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

HO



INTRODUCTORY SECTION

4\




PC)/RI in ToOki 16330 Lower Harbor Rd
7

g ; www portofbrookingsharborcom  p.o BoxB48
BROOKINGS P:-(541)465-2218 Brookings, OR 97415

HARB O R F: (541)359-39%9

Fiscal Year June 30, 2019

To the District Board of Commissioners and Community

The management of the Port of Brookings Harbor is pleased to provide this annual financial report
to the Board of Commissioners, the Community and other interested parties to demonstrate its
accountability and communicate the District’s financial position and resource flows as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2019. Management of the Port is responsible for the fair presentation of
the annual financial report, for maintaining appropriate internal control over financial reporting,
and for complying with applicable finance-related laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and
contracts. The Port reports its financial statements and schedules on the modified cash basis,
which management has determined is an acceptable financial reporting framework that differs
from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). All of the financial analyses in this report
should take intc considerations the limitations inherent in the modified cash basis of accounting.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather that absolute, assurance that the financial
statemenls are free of any material misstatements,

CJ Huntsman CPA PC, a firm of certified public accountants of Coos Bay, Oregon, have issued
an independent auditor's report on these financial statements and schedules which includes an
unmodified (“clean”) opinion on all the opinion units of the Port of Brookings Harbor financial
reports for the year ended June 30, 2019. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front
of the financial section of this report.

Profile of the Port

The Port of Brookings Harbor was formed as a result of 1956 election following approval of a
ballot measure to permanently form, fund and operate a shallow-draft harbor (shallow-draft
harbors are defined as those with 14 feet or less depth) at the mouth of the Chelco River. The
boundaries of the Port District include the City of Brookings, the neighboring community of Harbor
and surrounding unincorporated areas of southern Curry County. The estimated population of
the Port District is 11,000. The Port has a permanent tax rate of $0.1316 per $1,000 of assessed
property value for those living within the Port boundaries.

As a special district, the Port of Brookings Harbor operates under the governance and supervision
of an elected board of commissioners. The elected members represent specific geographic areas
of the District and their positions are referred to by numbers 1 through 5. The members choose
among themselves who shall serve as officers.

L.



Local Economy

Curry County Is located in southern Oregon and includes three incorporated cities — Brookings,
Gold Beach and Port Orford. With mountains, valleys, the Chetco River, the Rogue River, and
wilderness areas, Curry County offers many tourism and recreational opportunities.

Demographics. According to the July 1, 2019 U.S. Census, the population of Curry County is
22,813. With some of the lowest property taxes in Oregon, Curry County enjoys a large senior
population (persons 65 and older), which makes up about 33.2 percent of the total population
(compared to 17.1 percent in Oregon). Children under 18 years make up 14.6 percent (compared
to 21.1 percent in Oregon), with 4 percent being under age five (compared to 5.7 percent in
Oregon).

Port Economy to District. As reported in the Port of Brookings Harbor Strategic Business
Plan, a state-wide study entitied the Economic Benefits of Oregon Ports, March 2014
summarizes the permanent annual economic impact of the Port, by including the following
annual benefits:

e Totally Port related Oregon employment of 860 jobs (706 direct and 150 for
indirect/induced);

¢ Oregon output (gross sales) were nearly $67.9 million ($40.9 million direct and $27 million
in directfinduced);

» Oregon real Gross Domestic Product of $39.4 million ($22.65 million direct and $16.78
million in direct/induced);

» Oregon labor income of $23.93 million ($12.89 million direct and $11.05 million in
direct/Induced);

* Annual local and Oregon tax revenue/payments of $4.21 million ($1.26 million in local and
$2.95 million in state tax revenues);

* Annual federal tax/payments by Oregon enterprises and employees $5.12 million.

Budget

Oregon local governments are required by state law to budget all funds each year, except for their
first year of operation. The Board of Commissioners made four changes to the adopted and
appropriated budget during 2018-19 through the adoption of four supplemental budgets. In
addition, the Board of Commissioners approved an interfund loan resolution for loans made and
repaid during the fiscal year. There were no over-expenditures of the approved spending limits
established by the Board of Commissioners in the Debt Service Fund, the Revenue Bond Fund,
the Capital Projects Fund or the Reserve Fund. However, the General Fund materials and
services appropriation was exceeded by $158,368. While the spending was approved by the
Board of Commissioners, it was not provided for in the General Fund budget appropriations.

Financial Analysis

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the modifled cash basis of
accounting. Under this basis of accounting, only cash (and cash equivalents) and items that
involve the receipt and disbursement of cash (or cash equivalents) during the period are
recognized, except as follows:

-2



(1) Interfund receivables and payables that arise from transactions events involving cash
or cash equivalents are recognized;

(2) Assets that normally convert to cash or cash equivalents {e.g. certificates, of deposit,
marketable investments or receivables resulting from loans) that arise from
transactions and events involving cash or cash equivalents are recognized; and

(3) Liabilities for cash {or cash equivalents) held on behalf of others, held in escrow, or
received in advance of being earned or meeling eligibility requirements are
recognized.

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain transactions are not
recorded in a government's financial statements. For example, accounts receivable and revenue
for billed provided services that have not been collected in cash are not accrued as revenue or
receivables. Additionally, capital assets such as buildings, equipment and improvements are not
reported on the face of the financial statements. However, a government's long-term debt
obligations are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Summarized statement of net position:

Governmental Activities

2017-18 2018-19

Total assels $ 304919 $ 445351
Total liabiiities - -
Net position;

Restricted 122,894 120,904

Committed 182,025 324,447

Unrestricted - -
Tolal net position $ 304919 $ 445351

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the overall modified cash basis Governmental Activities net
position has increased by $140,432. The primary reasons for the increase are due to the Port
service revenues exceeding the budget estimates by $250,409.

Summarized statement of changes in net position:

Governmental Activities
2017-18 2018-19
Expenes § 2928402 $ 3,300,589
Program revenues 2,665,092 3,260,351
Net axpense {263,310) {130,238)
General ravenuas 340,701 270,670
Change In net position $ 77,391 $ 140,432




Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the governmental funds reported a combined fund
balance of $445,341 consisting of the General Fund balance of $280,776, Debt Service Fund
balance of $21,006, Revenue Bond Fund balance of $99,898, Capital Projects Fund balance of
$10,579 and the Reserve Fund Balance of $33,092.

General Fund Budget

Original budget compared to final budget. During the year changes were made to the adopted
and appropriated budget by adopting four supplemental budgets.

Final budget compared to actual results. On the upside, actual Porl service revenues
exceeded budget estimates by $250,409, actual property tax revenues exceeded budget
estimates by $13,306, interest revenues exceeded budget estimates by $3,756 and
miscellaneous revenues exceeded budget by $5,832. On the downside, salvage sale revenues
feli short budget by $132,092. Combined, these budget variances amounted to $141,210 more
revenue than anticipated.

With respect to Port operations, actual personnel service expenditures were less than budgeted
by $98,600. However, materials and service expenditures exceeded budget by $159,368. Capital
outlay actual spending was less than budget by $263. The remaining unspent budgeted
contingency was $127,774. As a result, total actual General Fund spending was $67,269 less
than budgeted.

Management believes that as controls over financial accounting continue to strengthen, coupled
with the modified cash basis of accounting that the Port now uses, improvements in budget
management will resuit.

Change in accounting basis. The Port changed its accounting basis during 2017-18 from the
full accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles to the modified
cash basis of accounting - another comprehensive basis of accounting. The reason for the
change is that generally accepted accounting principles are becoming more complex and difficult
to apply in local governments. The Port's GAAP accounting basis had been in operation for many
years, but in recent years the Port had delays in completing its annual audit and in preparing its
annual financial report. The delays were attributable to the increasing complexity of governmental
GAAP. The change in accounting has resulted in the Annual Financial Report of the Port for
2018-19 being completed within the expected time frame of 180 days following of the fiscal year
end as sst by the state of Oregon.

The change in accounting basis has resulted in the following benefits:

Easler to manage the bookkeeping and accounting.

Lower cost to draft the financial statements.

Lower cost to audit the financial statements.

Requires less experienced and educated staff.

Allows a more-timely annual accounting close and open for the new fiscal year.

Closer alignment with annual Port budget.

More aligned with the short-term management focus of the elected commissioners and

budget committee.

Qccc:ﬁeplfable accounting basis under Oregon Local Budget Law and the Oregon Municipal
udit Law.

NoosN

o

-4

S



Capital assets and long term debt administration

Capital assets — modified cash basis
Unlike generally accepted accounting principles, after original purchase, capital assets are not
accounted for, or reported on, under the modified cash basis of accounting.

However, over the years the Port has invested in capital assets through the expenditure of capital
outlay and remain available for use. These capital assets are either used in the Port operations
or removed from service. It is estimated that capital assets in use or temporarily from service
have a value of approximately $18,000,000 that has been insured for.

Current year capital outlay expenditures were $16,737 in the General Fund that consisted of three
golf carts. Capital outlay in the Capital Projects Fund was $436,547 and consisted of long-term

improvements to Port property.

Long term debt - modified cash basis
At June 30, 2019 the Port’s long-term debt consists of revenue bonds and four notes payable and
totals $3,384,269. All required debt payments were made and management expects to make the
required debt payments as they mature.

More detailed information — capital assets and long term debt
More detailed information concerning capital assets and long-term debt transactions can be found
in the notes to the basic financial statements and supplemental schedules.

Resources
There are no restrictions, commitments or other limitations that significantly affect the availability
of fund resources for future use in ongoing Port operations.

Factors affecting financial condition ~ local economy

Marina — Basin 1. FEMA approved the first disaster daclaration for Curry County from the
February 24, 2019 storm. Basin 1 encountered excessive amounts of sediment from the Chetco
River and storm drain culverts from the surrounding community.

FEMA approved the second disaster declaration for Curry County from the April 6, 2019 storm.
Basin 1 again encountered excessive amounts of sediment from the Chetco River and storm drain
culverts from the surrounding community. Bathymetric survey was conducted in July and found
the port received up to 10 times the average sediment accumulations. Estimated amount of
sediment from this year alone is 40,000 cubic yards.

2016 FEMA approved disaster piling project was completed this year and with the new
configuration the Port is now able use all the docks for moorage rentals.

Marina — Basin 2. FEMA approved the first disaster declaration for Curry County from the
February 24, 2019 storm. Basin 2 encountered excessive amounts of sediment from the Chetco
River and storm drain culverts from the surrounding community and damages to basin slopes.

FEMA approved the second disaster declaration for Curry County from the April 6, 2019 storm.
Basin 2 again encountered excessive amounts of sediment from the Chetco River and storm drain
culverts from the surrounding community.

I-5

Lo



Approximately half of Basin 2 docks are over 44 years old and need major restoration work or
replacement. C Dock continues to be out of service due to falling slopes and the need for
dredging. Approximately 96% of dock moorage space is available for rent and 90% are rented.

Fuel Dock. The fuel dock is a valuable resource to the commercial fleet, Coast Guard and
recreational vessels. While the fuel dock dees not supply much revenue for the Port, it does supply
support of other revenue generating sources.

FEMA approved the first disaster declaration for Curry County from the February 24, 2019 storm.
Fuel Dock encountered damage to the ramp / bridge anchor.

RV Park. RV Park continues to provide the Port with valuable revenue to pay outstanding debits,
maintenance of Port facilities and other Port related operations. Main restrcom/shower facility was
closed from storm related affects to the sanitary system and from other health related issues.
Since 2016, the RV Park has lost the laundromat building, mini-mart, dry camping sites, tent sites
and main restroom/shower facilities.

Every year storms continue to wreak havoc on the RV Park roads and facilities. Plans are being
developed to address the ocean waves crashing over the seawall, rebuild the lost amenities,
install new pull-thru sites, upgrade the electrical system, install storm water drainage, paving and
reconfigure the RV Park entrance with possible hotel type rooms.

Commercial Leases. Commercial leases continue to provide the Port with valuable revenue to
pay outstanding debts, maintenance of Port facilities and other Port related operations. Port is a
landlord to thirty-five (35) tenants throughout the Port. Types of leases range from retail stores,
restaurants, warehouse shop/storage, land rental and commercial receiving docks.

Boat Yard. The boat yard is a do-it-yourself boat maintenance and minor boat rebuilding. Port
Staff operates the 50-ton travel lift for hauling out boats. Revenue is generated by haul outs and
vard days and is dependent solely on the number of haul outs and boat repair work.

Boat yard also includes the Port shop, waste oil facility, equipment and material storage.

Port Office and Operations. The Port received notice from Oregon Department of Environmental
Quality that the Port must obtain a 1200-Z NPDES Industrial Storm water general permit. The
1200-Z Permit will place significant monitoring and storm water testing requirements. All Port
operations, tenants and moorage holders must follow all applicable federal, state and local laws
and to use best practices when conducting activities that may have an effect on storm water
quality. The effects of this permit to normal Port operations is not known, but management will be
proactive to update the Port storm water infrastructure.

The Port continues to pay its debts on time and has increased payments to recoup on missed
payments during the 2011 Tsunami disaster rebuilding.

Infrastructure maintenance will continue to be on the forefront of the budgeting process.

Increase of staff in the office and field has provided a higher quality of service. As with last year,
management will continue to use specialty services to supplement Port maintenance and repair.

The Port staff will continue to seek grants, continue discussions with County and State, to find

any and all sources of funding for new projects including dock repair in the Commercial Basin,
storm water control, paving, storage space, remodel of the RV Park, and upgrades where needed.

I-6

Iy



Financial policles
It has been the Port's governing body and management to budget intent to plan and spend
conservatively. The unwritten policy of conservatism has been beneficlal and helped consarve

Port resources and continue to provide Port services.

Acknowiedgements
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the commitment and

dedication of the fiscal officer. Credit must also be given to the Board of Commissioners for their
leadership and unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the
management of the Port of Brookings Harbor and finances. We also express our appraciation to
the Port Budget Committee for their participation in approving the annual operating budget.

Respectfully submitted,

Part Profile and Governance Information
/4% v
linger, BOrt Manager Kim Boom, Financlal Officer

Financial Information and Analysis

Loallty Sinr—

Gerald W. Bums, CPA, CGMA

-7

4%




P ORT info@portofbrookingsharbor.com 16330 Lower Harbor Rd
of www.portofbrookingsharbor.com P.O. Box 848
BROOKINGS P: (541)469-2218 Brookings, OR 97415
HARBOR F: (541)359-3999
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Position Term Term
Number Name and Address Starts Ends
1 Joe Speir - Secretary 6-15-18 6-30-19
P.O. Box 651
Brookings, OR 97415
Phone: 541-661-0757 (Cell)
Email: joe @poriofbrookingsharbor.com
2 Wes Ferraccioli — Board Member 6-15-18 6-30-19
1327 Crissey Circle
Brookings, OR 97415
Phone: 541-450-4100 (Cell)
Email: wes @ portofbrookingsharbor.com
3 Roy Davis - Chairman 7-01-15 6-30-19
P. O. Box 2679
Brookings, OR 97415
Phone: 541-661-0117 (Cell)
Email: roy@portofbrookingsharbor.com
4. Richard Heap — Co-Chairman 6-13-18 6-30-19
95975 N Brookside Dr.
Brookings, OR 97415
Phone: 541-661-7078 (Cell)
Email; richard @ portofbrookingsharbor.com
5 Kenneth Range - Treasurer 6-13-18 6-30-19

96197 Cape Ferrelo Road

Brookings, OR 97415

Phone: 541-661-1247 (Cell)

Email: ken @ portofbrookingsharbor.com

P



PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

info@portofbrookingsharbor.com

www.portofbrookingsharbor.com
P:(541)469-2218
F: (541)359-3999

16330 Lower Harbor Rd
P.0. Box 848
Brookings, OR 97415

ADMINISTRATION

REGISTERED AGENT
Port Manager
Gary Dehlinger

Harbormaster
Travis Webster

Financial Officer
Kim Boom

]}

SO



Board of Commissioners
1) Joe Speir
2) Sharon Hartung
3) Roy Davis
4) Richard Heap
5) Kenneth Range

PORT
of
BROOKINGS HARBOR

Organization Chart

Legal Counsel
Martha Rice - BLACK RICE &
LUNA LLP

DUTIES & RESPONIBIUTIES

Port Manager
Gary Dehlinger
Project Coordinator / Grant Harbormaster Financial Officer
Writer / Marketing Travis Webster Kim Boom
{Vacant)
Admin. Assistant / Safety Deputy Harbormaster
Danielle Shepard {Vacant)
Front Desk-Moorage Manager RV Park Manager
Dianna Wiles Jennifer Buchnoff
Incident Response Team
Quinn Chatman
Michael (Ted) Fitzgerald
Joe Gray
Jan-Peter Johnsson
John Kellum
Port Security Office Assistant / Support Maintenance Department
South Coast Knight Security Department Levels | thru V
April Sachanowski Brent Ferguson
Cameron King
Sean Armstrong
Shawn Hall

DUTIES & RESPONIBILITIES

Customer Service Travel Lift (Haul Outs)
Accounts Receivable Dock Maintenance
Procurements RV Park Maintenance
Storage Building Maintenance
Secretarial Support Boat & Storage Maintenance
Dock, Storage Checks Port Ground Maintenance

v

Y



PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

info@portofbrookingsharbar.com
www,portofbrookingsharbor.com
P: (541)469-2218
F: (541)359-3999

16330 Lower Harbor Rd
P.O. Box 848
Brookings, OR 97415

Port of Brookings Harbor Geographic Boundaries

D) S e
o ) Snow Can
g D 0 Big Craggies Heattier
| . ountam Mountan
).
. "IOL_; = 1
1:“ Marol River w i |
Quail Praine
Mountarn
1
"-\m\_\
©
a
N : F
Beodlangs | -
pi \-"'l.“bor F
\‘\_\ 1 r/V-rrr ‘
SNt )S{ ‘l\/i .I
i Lo SVEL 5 T ___OREGON :
S CALIFORNIA
. Curry Cownty

Brookings Area Special Districts
Community Library, Cemetery, Port

ot
(o HE 1NN dem
O S ¢

ST



Port of Brookings Harbor Pictures

53



Beacfrant RV Park

Fuel Dock

Gear Storage

ViI-2

SY



Basin 2

Travelift - -  Commercial Retail

Vi-3



Ice House Boat Trailer Storage

Receiving Dock

Vi-4



FINANCIAL SECTION




PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

S



independent Auditor’s ort

— mammne s e




PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

O



|

Basic Financial Statemen

W\




PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

Y.



vernment-wide Financial

>




PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

Loy



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED|CASH BASIS

June 30, 2019
Governmental
Activities
Assets:
Cash and Investments $ 445,351
Total Assets 445,351
Liabltities:
Other Ligbilities ;
Total Liabilities -
Net Position:
Restricted for:
Debt Service 120,904
Committed for:
Port Operations 280,776
Capital Projects 43,671
Total Committed 324,447
Total Net Position $ 445!351

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-3-



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY_COUNTY OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
| For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

FUNCTIONS

Governmenial Activities
Port Operations
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Total Governmental Activities

PROGRAM REVENUES
NET (EXPENSES)
REVENUES AND
PORT SALVAGE CHANGE IN NET
EXPENSES SERVICES SALES GRANTS POSITION
$ 1,902,377 $ 2537811 $ 51,808 $ 870,632 5 1,287,974
845,953 - . . {845,853)
552,259 . - - {552,259)
$ 8!380!509 ] zgarim 1 3 51 & 3 870!832 (130,238)
General Revenuas
Properly Taxes 235,810
interest 9,843
Miscallanaous 217
Tata! General Revenuas 270,670
Operating Tranfars in 2,138,087
Operating Teanfars Out _{2,138,087)
Change in Nel Position 140,432
Hat Position - Begloning 304,918
Net Position - Ending $ 445,351

Soe accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
-4-

Lolo



PORT
BROOKINGS
HARBOR

(o1



|

Fund Financial Statements

(6




Governmental Funds
| Governmental Activities

- General Fund

The General Fund accounts for the administration and Port operations.
Principal sources of revenue consist of property taxes, charges for Port
operations services, grants from other agencies, and interest earnings.
Major expenditures are for personnel services, operating supplies, repairs
and maintenance, and professional contracted services relating to the
administration and Port operations and capital outiay for equipment.

Debt Services Funds

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the principal and interest
paid $n the Port's debt other than the revenue pbligation bond.
Resources are provided by operating transfers from the General Fund and
interest eamings.

The Revenue Bond Fund is used to account for principal and interest
payments on the revenue bond. Resources are provided by operating

transfers from the General Fund and interest eamnings.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for expenditures on major
construction and improvement projects of the Port. Resources are
provided by capital grants, loans and operating transfers from the General

Fund.

Reserve Fund

The Reserve Fund was established by Resolution 307 to accumulate
funds to pay for dock maintenance and future dock replacements.
Resources are provided by operating transfers from the General Fund.



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

CURRY COUNTY, OREGON
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MODIFIED CASH BASIS
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2019
Revenue Capital Total
Ganeral Debt Service Bond Projects Resarve Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments $ 280776 $ 21,006 $ 99,808 $ 10579 $ 33002 $ 445,351
Total Assets $ 280.776 $ 21!006 $ 99!898 3 10!579 $ 33,092 $ 445,351
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
LiabHities:
Other Liabllites $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Total Liabilities - - - - - -
Funl:l Balance:
Restrictad - 21,008 99,898 - - 120,904
Committed 280,776 - - 10,579 33,09 324,447
Total Fund Balance 280,776 21,008 98,698 10,579 33,092 445,351
Total Llabilities and Fund Balance §$ 280,776 $ 2 !008 $ 993893 $ 10!579 33,092 $ 4455351
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. jD
-5-

i, S



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON,

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

MODIFIED CASH BASIS )
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Revenue Capltal Tatal
General Dabt Service Bond Projecta Reserve Govammentat
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Property Taxes s 235010 3 - $ - $ - 8 - $ 235,810
Chargas for Port Servicas 2531811 - - - - 2,637,811
Selvage Sales 51,908 - - - = 51,808
Grants - - - 870,832 - 870,832
Interest 8211 1,025 1,880 8 s21 9,643
Miscellaneous 25,217 - - - - 25217
TOYAL REVENUES 2,856,057 1,025 1,880 870,838 521 3,531,021
EXPENDITURES
Cumant
Port Operations 1,882,377 - - - - 1,802,377
Capita! Outlay 16,737 - - 820,218 - 845953
Daobt Servico 422,139 130,120 - - 552250
TOTAL EXPENDITURES; 2009114 422,139 130,120 828,218 - 3,350,589
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 847,843 {421,114) {128,240) (158,578) 521 140432
OTHER FINANCING S8OURCES (USEB)
Operaling Translers in 856,985 488,051 187,313 822,245 21,473 2,136,087
OCperaling Transfers Oul {1,381,082) {50,000} (38,000) {856,985) - {2.138,087)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {734,007) 418,051 129,313 185,260 21 473 -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 113,746 (3.063) 1,073 6,802 21,994 140,432
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2018 167,030 24,089 £6,825 3,807 11,088 304,019
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2019 280776 § 21,006 S 89888 $ 10& ] aa!ooz [ 445,351

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial stalements
-B-



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET 1\Nn ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 222504 $ 222,504 $ 235,810 $ 13,306
Charges for Port Services 2,287,402 2,287 402 2,537,811 250,409
Salvage Sales 184,000 184,000 51,008 (132,092)
Interest 2,400 2,458 6211 3755
Miscellaneous 19,385 18,385 25,217 5832
TOTAL REVENUES 2,715,691 2,715,747 2,856,057 141,210
EXPENDITURES
Current
Port Operations
Parsonnel Services 839,191 639,191 540,591 96,600
Materials and Services 1,309.418 1,202,418 1,451,788 {159,368)
otai Current 1,948,600 ".931 808 1,992,377 (60,768)
Capital Qutlay - 17,000 16,737 263
Operaling Contingency 152,774 127,774 _ - 127,774
TOTAL EXPENDITURES : 300,305, 2076383 2,008,174 &7 260
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 814,308 639,364 847,843 208,479

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In 24,807 956,700 656,985 {209,715)

Operating Transfers Out 841,669 1,683,389 1,391,082 192,267
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) _(—'Fa'z’"(m._l _L'E'E'm"( 689) _LWL(': 067) — (107.428)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES {2,554) 12,695 113,748 101,051
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2018 67,554 67,554 167,030 99,476
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2019 5 85000 F 80,249 3 280,776 3 200527

See accompanying notes to financial statements

See accompanying notes to budget presentations \l - )
.7



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Yaar Ended June 30, 2049

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Original Final Final Budget
Budgat Budgat Actual Variance
REVENUES
Interast $ - $ - $ 1,025 $ 1,025
TOTAL REVENUES : - 1,025 7,025
EXPENDITURES
Dabt Sarvica
Principal 451,083 451,083 399,729 (51,354)
fnterast 20,466 20,466 22,410 1,944
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 471,549 4714 .545 422,139 {49,410)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES {471,548) {471,549) (421,114) 50,435
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
perating Transfers In 471,549 | 471,549 468,051 (3,498)
Operating Transfers Out - - (50,000) {50,000}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) 471,549 471,549 418,051 (53,498)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER S8OURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES - - {3,083) (3,063)
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2018 23,602 23,602 24,089 467
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2019 3 23,002 ] 23,002 5 23,008 3 12,550)

Sea accompanying notes to financial statemants
See accompenyting notes to budget prasentations
-8.

13



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON,

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

REVENUE BOND FUND_
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intarest $ - $ - 4,880 $ 1,880
TOTAL REVENUES - - 1,880 1,880
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal 69,036 689,036 69,016 (20}
Interest 61,084 61,084 61,104 20
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 130,120 130,120 130,120 -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES {130,120) (130,120} (128,240} 1,680
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In 130,120 130,120 1é7.31 3 37,183
Operating Transfers Out - - (38,000) 36,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) 130,120 130,120 129, iﬁ?)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES - - 1,073 1,073
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2018 98,395 88,395 98,825 430

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2019

Ses accompanying notss to financial statements
See accompanying notes to budget presentations
-

T



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND GHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 |

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Grants $ 2422321 $ 2816273 $ 870,632 $ (21458641)
Interest - - -] 6
TOTAL REVENUES 2422321 2,816,273 670,638 (2,145,635)
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 2,387,729 2,796,273 829,218 1,967,057
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,387,728 2,796,213 829,218 1867,
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 34,692 20,000 {158,578) {178,578)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
QOperating Transfors in 40,000 956,700 822,245 {134,455)
Cparating| Transfers Out {24,807) (958,700 (656,885 289.715
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) 15,193 - 165,260 13:%
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 49,765 20,000 6,662 (13,318)
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2018 5,000 5,000 3,897 1,103
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2019 3 5475 3 25000 T 10579 's_-ﬂ(ﬁ'ﬁ ;‘

See sccompanying notes to financial statements

See accompanying to budget pressntations j S
-10-



MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended' June 30, 2019

REVENUES
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING S8OURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND'OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2018
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2019

RESERVE FUND
Original Final Final Budgaot
Budget Budpget Actual Varlance
$ - - 52 § 521
- 3 521 521
- - 521 521
- 25000 21,473 {3,527)
25,000 21,473 B3.,527)
- 25,000 21,994 (3.006)
11,075 11,075 11,008 23
Ses accompanying to financial stalemants

See accompanying notes to budget presentations

{1-

"



o

PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

AR



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

19




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financlal reporting entity

The Port of Brookings Harbor {the Port’) financial reporting enfity is composed solely of the primary
govemment. In determining the financial reporting entity, the Port considered all provisions of applicable
accounting standards. Although there are various other govemmental agencies and special service entities
which provide services within the Porf's boundaries, the Port is not financially accountable for any of these
entities and accordingly, their financial information is not included in these financial statements. There are
no ather entities for which the Port has responsibility, exercises control or is financiafly accountable.

The Portof Brookings Harbor was approved by the voters at a special election in 1956. The Portis organized
and operates under the [aws of the State of Oregon pertaining to Port districts. The Port provides port
sarvices and facilities o recreational and commercial users on the southem Oregon coast. A five-member
Board of Commissioners govems of its operations.

The Port has a permanent tax rale of $0.1316 cents per $1,000 of assessed property value thal s levied
each year on all taxable property within the Port boundaries. The Port District includes the areas of the City
of Brookings, the neighboring community of Harbor and surrounding unincorporated areas of Cumry County.
The estimated population of those living in the Port District boundaries is 11,000.

Government-Wide Financlal Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report information about the reporting government
as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity. These statements distinguish belween
govemmental and business-type activiies. Governmental activities are generally financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and both exchange and non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services. The Port reports only
govemmental activities.

The government-wide financial statements are reporfed on a modified cash basis of accounting. The
modified cash basis of accounting used is based on the recording of cash and cash equivalents, and changes
therein, and only recognizes ravenues, expenses, assels, and liabilities resulting from cash transactions,
adjusted for modifications that have substantial support in generally accepted accounting principles. While
there is no standard seiting body that establishes accounting standards for the modified cash basis of
accounting, both the Govemment Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the American Institute of CPAs
{AICPA) publish guidance and example materials used in preparing modified cash basis financial statements.
The Port used these application materials published by the GFOA and the AICPA in preparing these financial
stalements. Generally accepled accounting principles are defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) through their pronouncements.

This modified cash basis of accounting differs from generally accepled accounting principles in that not all
GASB pronouncements apply to the presentation and disclosures contained in financial statements. Only

-12-

N




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

cash and items that involve the receipt or disbursement of cash during the fiscal year are recognized, excepl
for the following modifications:

(1) Interfund receivables and payables that arise from transactions and events involving cash are
recognized;

(2) Assets that normally convert fo cash that arise from transactions and events involving cash are
recognized;

(3) Liabilities for cash (or cash equivalents) held on behalf of others, held in escrow, or received in
advance of being eamed or meeting eligibility requirements are recognized.

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain transactions are not recorded or
presented in the basic financial stalements. For example, accounts receivable and revenue for billed or
provided services that have not been collected in cash are not accrued as revenue or receivables.
Additionally, capital assets such as property, equipment, and infrastructure are not reported and long-tenm
liabilities such as debt and compensated absances are also not reported in the basic financlal statements.
However, any long-term liabilities and compensated absences are described in the notes o the basic financial

statements.

The modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable accounting framework recognized by Oregon taw for
use by local govemments.

Basis of presentation - government-wide financlal statements

While separate govemment-wide and fund financlal statements are presented they are interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from the govemmental funds,  Separate basic financial
statements are provided for each of the Port's individual funds.

The goverament-wide financial statements are presented on the modified cash basis of accounting.

Basis of presentation - fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Port's funds. Separate statements for each fund
are presentsd. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major funds, and each is displayed in a
separate column. Under GASB pronouncements, a fund is considered major if it is the primary operating
fund of the District or if total assets, fiabllities, revenues, or expenditures of that individual govemmental fund
are at least 10% of the total for all govemmental funds. A fund can also be considered major if the goveming
body - the Port Board of Commissioners - chooses to do so.




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ~ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Funds that are not major funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The fund financial
statements are also presented on the modified cash basis of accounting. There are no nonmajor funds.

The Port reports the following major govemmental funds:

General Fund - Used o account for financial resources of the Port not accounted for in any other fund.
Principal sources of revenue consist of property taxes, charges for Port services, grants from other agencies
and Interest eamings. Major expenditures are for personnel services, operating supplies, repairs and
maintenance, utilities and professional contracted services relating to administration and Port operations.

Expenditures also include capita! outlay for equipment.

Debt Service Fund ~ Used to account for the principal and interest pald on the Port's long-term debt other
than the revenue obligation bond. Resources are provided by operating transfers from the General Fund

and interest eamings.

Revenue Bond Fund ~ Used to account for principal and Interest paid on the revenue bond. Resources are
provided by operating transfers from the General Fund and interest eamings.

Capital Projects Fund - Used to account for expenditures relating to major construction and improvement
projects of the Port. Resources are provided by capital grants, loans and operating transfers from the General

Fund.

Reserve Fund - Used to provide future resources for major dock repairs and replacements. This fund was
established under the provisions of Oregon Local Budget Law by Port Resolution 307.

Assets, liabilities and net positionffund balance -

Cash - The Port’s cash is considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and savings accounts. There
are no cash equivalents.

The Port deposits cash in checking and money market accounts at a local bank approved by the Oregon
State Treasurer. The bank maintains depository insurance under the federal depository insurance program
and participates in the State of Oregon collaterat pool sufficient to cover the Port's cash deposits as required
by Oregon law.

The Port also maintains an account with the Oregon Local Investment Pool managed by the Oregon State
Treasurer.

The Pori maintains an account with the Curry County Treasurer for the purpose of receiving the Port's share
of property taxes. Property tax collections are generally transferred to the Port's general checking account

within a few weeks of collaction.

-14-

&\




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Net position flow assumption - Sometimes the Port will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted and unrestricted resources. In order fo calcutate the amounts to report as restricted - net position
and unrestricted - net position in the govemment-wide financial statements, a flow assumption must be made
about the order in which the rescurces are considered to be applied. it is the Porl's policy to consider
restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied.

Restricted net position ~ Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other govemments; or (2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - Consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted”.

Fund balance policles - Fund balance of the governmental funds is reporied in various categories based
on the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The Port itself can
establish limitations on the use of resources through elther a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).

The commifted fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
delermined by a formal action of the Port’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Port Board of
Commissioners is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Port that can, by adoption of a
resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by
the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) fo remove
or revise the limitation,

Amounts, if any, in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Port for specific
purposes but do not meet the crileria to be classified as committed. The Board of Commissioners by
resclution directs the Port Manager to assign fund balance. The Board of Commissioners may aiso assign
fund balance - as it does when it appropriates fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations in the subsequent year's approptiated budget. Unlike commilments, the constraints upon
resources resulting from assignments are more easily removed or modified.

Fund financial statements —~ Govemmental fund equily is classified as fund balance. As an approximale
measure of liquidity, fund balance is similar fo the working capital of a private-sector business. As such, there
are limitations that may be placed on the use of fund balance resources. The various componenis of fund
balance are designed to indicate the nature of such limitations, Financial statements of governmental funds
report up to five components of fund balance.

Non-gpendable fund balance - Inherently non-spendable resources are, because of their form, unable to
be spent, or must remain intact,

- 15 -

B2



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restricted fund balance - Extemally enforceable limitations on resource use have been imposed by
creditors, grantors, contribulors, laws and regulations of other govemments or by through constitutional

provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - Self-imposed limitations on spending set by the Board of Commissioners prior
to the end of the fiscal year by formal action — a resolution - that requires formal action to remove such self-

imposed restrictions.

Asslgned fund balance - Self-imposed limitation resulting from intended use establishad by the Board of
Commissioners such as through the adoption of the Port budget. No other body or official can assign fund

balance.

Unassigned fund balance - Residual net resources the expenditure of which has not been limited in any
way.

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses - The Port's modified cash basis of accounting reports revenues,
expenditures and expenses as appropriate.

Government-wide statements - In the Statement of Activities, modified cash basis revenues that are
derived directly from each govemmental activity or from parties outside the Port's taxpayers are reported

as program revenues. Program revenues include fees for Port services charged to cusiomers, and grants
that are restricled to specific functions and activities. All other govemmental revenues are reported as
general, All taxes levied by the Port are classified general revenus as is miscellaneous revenue.

Fund financlal statements - In the fund financial statements revenues are reported by source and
expenditures are reported as current, capital outlay, and debt service.

Interfund balances and activities — The Port's modified cash basis of accounting reports interfund fund
transfers, balances and activities as appropriate.

Government-wide financlal statements - In the procass of aggregating the financial information for the
govemment-wide financial statements interfund activity and balances are eliminated.

Fund financlal statements - Interfund activity and balances within and among the govemmental funds Is
reported in the fund financial statements as (1) interfund loans provided with a requirement for repayment

are reported as inlerfund receivables and payables, and (2) interfund ransfers where repayment is not
expected are reported as transfers in and out.

-16-

&2



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Significance - As a local govemment, the Port is subject fo various federal, state and local laws and
regulations and contractual requirements, The more imporiant, and potentially material, areas of compliance
include the Port's budget and appropriations, cash deposit and investment accounts, collateralization of cash
deposits and investments, fong-term debt agreements, grant agreements and payroll,

Budget and appropriations — Oregon local govemments are required by state law to budget all funds each
yeer, exceptin the first year of operation.

A budget is prepared for all funds in accordance with the legal requirements set forth in the Oregon Local
Budget Law and the modified cash basis of accounting. The funds included in the budget include alf funds
included in the fund financial stalements. Budget appropriation amounts shown in the financial statements
include the original and revised budget appropriations as approved by the Port Board of Commissloners,
Oregon Local Budget Law does not allow management to change the adopted or supplemental budgets in
any way. Appropriations are limited to a single fiscal year; therefore, all spending authority of the Port lapses
as of year-end.

The Board of Commissioners made four changes fo the adopted and appropriated 2018-19 budget during
2018-19. There were no over-expenditures of appropriations in the Debt Service Fund, the Revenue 8ond
Fund, the Capital Projects Fund or the Reserve Fund. However, there were over-expenditures of the General
Fund malerials and services appropriation totaling $159,368 - primarily because of expenditures that, while
approved by the Port Commissioners, were not included in the appropriated General Fund budget.

Cash and investments -~ The Board of Commissioners has no deposit and investment policies that limit
aliowable deposits or investments or address specific deposit and investment risks. The Port complies with
state statutes relating to deposits, investments and related risks.

Statutes authorize the Port to invest in its own bonds, legally issued general obligations of the United States
and the slales of Oregon, Washington, Idaho, or Califomia, legally issued general obligation bonds of any
city within the state of Oregon issued for utility services, open accounts, certificates of deposit and savings
accounts of banks which maintain a head office in Oregon, bankers acceptances that are guaranteed by a
qualified financlal institution, certain other investments related to deferred compensation plans, and local
govemment investment pools managed by the local county Treasurer or the state Treasurer.

The Port has selected a bank that is identified as an approved depository in the Oregon statutes. In
accordance with Oregon law, deposits of municipal funds can only be deposited in approved financial
institutions identified by the state of Gregon Treasurer. In addition, Oregon law requires that all deposits be
covered by federal depository insurance and account balances in excess of the federal depositery insurance
be secured with acceptable collateral. All approved depositories participale in the collateral pool managed
by the Treasurer of the state of Oregon who is the responsible official conceming all matters relating to
ccllateral coverage.

-17-

84




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 2- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

Deposits with financial institutions are in three bank demand deposit checking accounts and three accounts
with the Local Govemment Investment Pool. At June 30, 2019, the bank balances were $169,995 in the
checking accounts, $5,016 in money market accounts and $268,709 in the Local Govemment Investment
Pool deposit accounts. The bank accounts are covered by $260,000 of federal depository insurance. In
addition, the banks helding the deposits are approved by the state of Oregon Treasurer to receive deposits
from local govemments. As state approved deposilories, the banks have pledged collateral to a state
managed pool, considered sufficient by the state of Oregon Treasurer, to cover loca! govemment depaosits in
excess of the federal depository insurance.

Since the Port's bank deposits at year-end were covered by federal depository insurance and were deposited
in approved depositories, the Port is in compliance with state-mandated deposit insurance and collateral
requirements at June 30, 2018,

Long-term debt - The Port's long-term debt includes a revenue bond payable to the United States
Depariment of Agriculture, nine noles payable fo the Oregon Business Davelopment Depariment
Infrastructure Financing Authority, three notes payable to private parfies and compensated absences owed
to amployees,

Laws, regulations, and contracts - During the ordinary course of conducting operations and accounting for
its fiscal affairs, the Port is subject to various laws, regulations, and contractual requirements. The Port has
designed management controls that it believes assure compliance with those applicable laws, regulations,
and contracts.

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES - ACCOUNT BALANCES/TRANSACTIONS
Cash - At June 30, 2018, the Port's cash accounts consisted of the foliowing:

Carrying Amounts
Petly cash $ 1,631
Deposits:
Bark checking accounts $ 169,985
Bank money market accounts 5,016
Local Govemment Investment Poot accounts 288,709 443,720
Total cash $ 445351

-18-




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ~ ACCOUNT BALANCES/TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Custodial risk of cash deposits in the Port's checking and savings accounts have been mitigated as they are
fully insured or collateralized at June 30, 2019. The deposit in the bank meney market account is
subject fo interest rate risk and remained in the less than 1% range during the fiscal year.

The Port's deposits in the Local Govemment lnvestment Pool ('LGIP) Is subject to credit risk and interest
rate risk, but not fo concentration of credit risk, custodial risk or foreign currency risk. The LGIP itself s not
rated, but the holdings of the LGIP are rated and those ratings met the requirements of the LGIP's investment
policies. This is a deposit-type investment recorded at fair value with a less than three-month maturity. The
interest rate changes each month and averaged 2.6% per month for the fiscal year.

Restricted net assets — The amounts reported as restricted net assets are composed of amounts received
through grants that are held for payment of grant qualifying purchases.

Property tax revenue - The Port of Brookings Harbor levies a permanent tax rate property tax levy. By July
15 of each year, the Port certifies its property tax levies to Curry County, Oregon. Curry County makes all
assessments of property value, and levies, collects, and distributes property taxes for all taxing districts within

its boundaries.

Assessments of properly values are as of July 1 of each year, and the taxes levied are alienon the properties
as of July 1 of the year levied. Taxes are payable in three instaliments, on November 15, February 15, and
May 15, following the levy date and become delinquent May 15. The County pools all tex collections and
makes distributions to taxing districts according to their pro-rata share of the total levy of each fiscal year for
which collections are received.

Property tax recelipts, resuling from modified cash basis transactions, are recognized as revenue when
recelved. Uncollected property taxes are not reported on the modified cash basis of accounting.

Transfers - Transfers are used to move available resources from the General Fund fo the debt service funds
for debt service expenditures, and from the General Fund to the Capltal Projects Fund as local match for
various grant and loan fund projects.

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION

Risk management - The Port is exposed lo various risks of loss related fo forts: thefi of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Port manages these risks by securing
commercial insurance through a pooling arangement managed by the Oregon Special Districts Association.
The purpose of the insurance pool Is to realize lower premiums through a group purchase and the pooling
does not exiend to the actual claims labilities which remain solely the responsibility of the participating
members. Management believes that such insurance coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant
uninsured losses. To dale, setiled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage.

-19-




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Subsequent events - No events have occurred subsequent to the end of the fiscal year through November
30, 2019, the date of the independent auditor's report, that were not anlicipated by the Port's adopted budget
for 2018-19 fiscal year, or that have had an adverse impact on the basic financial statements as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2019 of the Port of Brookings Harbor.

New accounting standards - As described in Note 1 to these financial statements, generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), as expressed In pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), may apply o Port's modified cash basis of accounting or to financial statement presentation
and disclosures included in the Porl's financial statements. During the 2018-19 year several new GASB
pronouncements became effective. None were applicable to the Port's modified cash basis of accounting.

Accounting framework ~ As explained in Note 1, the Port has adopled the modified cash basis as ils
accounting framework. While there is no standard setting body that establishes standards for the modified
cash basis of accounting, guidance materials are available from the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA) and the Govemment Finance Officers Association (GFOA) that assist in preparing
financial statements that have general support in the United States. However, there are differences between
the AICPA and GFOA modified cash basis of accounting guidance materials. A significant difference is that
the AICPA guldance provides that capitat asset costs and related depreciation, and long-term liabilities are
reported on the govemment wide financial statements, while the GFOA guidance does not include the
reporting of capital assets and long-term debt in the govemment wide financial statements. The AICPA
accounting framework attempts to apply all Govemmental Accounting Standards Board accounting standards
within the context of cash transactions, where the GFOA accounting framework focuses on cash receipts
and disbursements of the curment fiscal year and disclosure of future cash disbursement obligations and
commitments. Both AICPA and GFOA disclose capital assets and long- term debt in the noles to the financiat
statements,

Property taxes and abatement - The Oregon Constitution contains limiis on property taxes for schools and
non-school government operations. Property taxes for non-school operations are fimited to $10 for each
$1,000 of property market value. The limitation does not apply fo taxes levied for principal and interest on
general obligation bonds. A limit is alse placed on the growth property values to no more than 3% per year,
subject to certain exceptions — including the general obligation bonded debt.

Cregon Revised Statutes allow property tax abatements through various slate programs that reduce levied
property taxes. Such abatements are generally related to economic development. Based on Information
provided by Cutry County, there are no material or significant property tax abatements currently in effect that
reduce the Port's annual property tax levy.

-20 -

)




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Port as lessor - The Port owns and leases ceriain properties o independent commercial businesses under
long-term noncancelable operating leases. The minimum future lease payments to be received under such
leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending Amount
2020 $ 437,674
2021 349,537
2022 204,017
2023 . 191,266
2024 178,418

2025-20 579,403

2030-34 463,359

2035-39 359,054

2040-44 283,230

2045-49 . 48,544
Total $ 3,082,502

These commercial leases are a significant source of revenue to the Port. There are currently 34 leases in
effect relating to retall stores, warehouse shop/storage, land rental and commercial receiving docks. Square
footage under lease {olals 229,483. Estimated value of the leased properly, as reported in a 2015
professionat appraisal, is $4,880,000.

Capital asssts and long-term obligations - As a result of using the modified cash basis of accounting,
capital assets and long-term debl obligations and other obligations not directly related to a cash transaction
incurred during the cumrent fiscal year are not reported as assets or liabifities in the basic financial statements.
However, these capital assets and long-term debt obligations are disclosed in the following nofes to the basic
financial statements.

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets - The Port has acquired capital assets such as, equipment, docking facilifies, and commercial
buildings that are rented fo various tenants, and an RV park open to the public. Capital assels are defined
by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and recorded as capital outlay
expenditures having an estimated useful life in excess of five years. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs, or minor upgrades and improvements, of capital assets that do not add to the asset value or
materially extend the capital asset useful life are not considered to be capital assets. Capital assets are not
depreciated over their estimated useful lives for accounting purmposes under the modified cash basis of
accounting framework used by the Port. The accumulated investment in capital assets compared to capital
asset insurance coverage is provided as unaudited supplemental information in the Letter of Transmittal.

-21.

S8




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT

Long-term debt - The Port has Incurred long-term debt arising from cash transactions that include a revenue
bond, infrastnucture financing agreements payable fo the State of Oregon, and three notes payable. The

Port has obligations fo its employees for outstanding compensated absences eamed by employees for
vacation and overtime.

Revenue Bond
Remaining
Instaliment Revenue Bond No. 1, Series 2000 Balance
Annual payments of $130,120, consisting of principal
and 5% interest, due on November 6 of each year.
Proceeds used for the construction and improvements
to the boat basin. Source of repayment is from the
unobligated net revenues of the Port and made from the
Revenue Bond Fund. $ 1,153,056
Debt service requirements to maturity are:
Fiscal Year End
June 30, Principal interest Total
2020 $ 72,487 $ 57,633 $ 130,120
2021 76,112 54,008 130,120
2022 79,917 50,203 130,120
2023 83,913 48,207 130,120
2024 88,109 42,011 130,120
2025-29 511,200 139,400 650,600
2029-31 241,297 18,188 259,485

Totals $ 1,153,035 $ 407,650 $ 1,560,685

Oregon Business Development Department Infrastructure Financing Authority (IFA)

The IFA has provided nine loans to the Port for the construction of various improvements over the years.
These loans are secured by these Port improvements and bear interest ranging from 4.88% o 7.00%. In
March 2011 the Port sustained substantial damage from a tsunami that severely degraded the Port's revenue
generating facilities. To assist the Port In its financial recovery from the tsunami the State of Oregon

-22.

o




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 6 ~ LONG TERM DEBT (Continued)

suspended payments on the outstanding foans until such time that the Pert refums to normal operations. For
payment purposes the loans are considered to have been consolidated. In 2009, the IFA restructured the
payment schedule to require payment of principal only with the interest being defemed until such time as the
principal has been fully repaid at which time the interest may be forgiven.

IFA Restructured Debt

IFA Restructured Debt Requirements Balance
Quarterly payments of $ 62,042 applied to principal.

Matured but unpaid interest is accrued but deferred

until the underlying loans are paid off and may ultimately

be forgiven. Proceeds from the sale of any secured

properties or assets will be applied to the oldest loan's

principal. $ 1917127

Beginning in 2019-20, the Port has decided to increase the required quarlerly payments of $62,042 to
$72,500 in order to accelerate the payoff of the current balance of suspended payments.

The deferred interest amrangement continued.

Deferred Interest Balance
Deferred, June 30, 2018 $ 2918466
Current year deferral $ 130,367
Current year payments 3,662 128,705
Deferred, June 30, 2019 $ 3045171
Notes Payable

The Port Is obligated under the terms of three notes payable relating to the purchase of a building and
equipment are described as follows:

-23.

a0




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT (Continued)

Notes Payable (Continued)
Remaining

Balance

Tidewinds: In March of 2016, the Port purchased a

building on Port property for $18,000. Under the terms

of the puchase agreement, principal only payments are

required and are computed based on a formula.

Currentiy the required monthly principal payment Is $72.

Based on the current monthly principal payment the

purchase agreement will be fully paid in 2037. $ 15,192

Remaining
Balance

Travel Lift: In Oclober 2016, the Port purchased a

50 fon hoist for placing and removing boats from the boat

basin or trallers for $324,000. Monthly payments of

$4,659, including 5.502% interest, are required. The

contract will be fully paid in 2024. $§ 214844

Forklift: In February 2018, the Port purchased a forklift

for use in Port operations. Monthly payments of $1,465,

including 6.0% interest, are required. The note will be

fully paid in 2025. 84,050

Total Notes Payable $ 314,086

-24.-

A




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT {Continued)

Notes Payable (Continued)
Fiscal Year End

June 30 Principal interest Total
2020 $ 58,670 $ 15,679 $ 74,349
2021 62,233 12,115 74,348
2022 65,779 8,569 74,348
2023 69,531 4817 74,348
2024 35,5647 1,530 37,077

2025-29 15,774 263 16,037

2030-34 4,320 - 4,320

2035-37 2,232 2,232

Totals $ 314,086 3 42,973 $ 367,059

Debt Service Summary - The following Is a summary of the long-term debt transactions of the Port for the
year ended June 30, 2019:

Transactions Revenue Bond [FA Notes Notes Payable Totai

Payable, June 30, 2018 $ 1222072 § 2,261,256 § 369687 § 3,853,014

New long term debt - - - -

Principal payments (69,018) (344,128) (55,601) (468,745)
Payable, June 30, 2019 § 1153056  § 1917127 § 314086  _$ 3,384,269
Interest payments $ 61,104 _§ 3663 § 18748 § 83,515
Future Principal Payments:
Due within one year $ 72500 $ 280,000 § 58670 $ 421,170
Due after one year 1,080,556 1,627,127 255,416 2,963,099
Payable, June 30, 2019 $ 1153056 _§ 1917127 § 314!088 $ 3!384!289

Compensated absences - As a result of the modified cash basis of accounting used by the Port for financial
reporting purposes, obligations related to accrued compensated absences, including vacation, are not
reported as liabilities in the financial statements. Expendituresfexpenses relaled to compensated absences
are recorded when paid. The amount of the Port's obligation retated to accrued compensated absences for
accumulated, unpaid compensatory time that would be due employees upon termination, as of June 30, 2019
is approximately $17,157.

-25-

4L




N Bud Prosentations

13




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO BUDGET PRESENTATIONS
June 30, 2019

Oregon Local Budget Law - The Port is required by state law to budget all funds. A budget is
prepared for all funds in accordance with the cash basis of accounting and legal requirements set
forth in the Oregon Local Budget Law.

Oregon Local Budget Law does two important things:
1. ltestablishes standard procedures for preparing, presenting and administering the budget.
2. lt requires citizen involvement in the preparation of the budget and public disciosure of the
budget before its formal adoption.

The budget process includes five significant steps:
1. Preparing the budget:
a. Goveming body appoints the budget officer.

b.

Budget officer prepares, or supervises the preparation, of the proposed budget.

2. Approving the budget:

a.

b.

L2

o oo

Budget officer publishes notice of the budget committee mesting at least twice
during the 5 to 30 days before the meeting with at least 5 days between nofices.
Budget commitiee meets at least once fo discuss and approve the budget.

Budget committee meetings are subject to the Oregon Open Meetings Law and
Pubiic Documents Law.

Budgst officer presents the propesed budget.

Budget officer describes the proposed budget in the “Budget Message”.

Budget commiftee discusses the proposed budget.

Budget committee allows for public input al the mestings.

Budget committee approves total proposed expenditures and total property tax
levy.

3. Advertising and holding public hearing:

b.

Budget summary and notice of budget hearing is published 5 to 30 days before
the scheduled hearing.
Goveming body conducts public hearing fo receive citizen testimony.

4, Adopting the budget:
a. Budget adopted, appropriaions made, tax levy declared and categorized by

b.

approving resolutions.
Budget is filed with the county clerk and the levy is cerlified to the county tax
collector.

5. Administering the budget;

a.
b.

C.

Expenditures cannot legally exceed the adopted appropriation.

The legal level of budgetary control for all funds Is at the abject category totals of
personinel services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, operafing
transfers and contingency.

The goveming body can modify the budget by adopting resolutions approving
appropriation transfers, increases or suppiemental budgets,

-26-

4




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
NOTES TO BUDGET PRESENTATIONS
June 30, 2019

The adopted budget - The Port Board of Commissioners resolution adopting the budget and
authorizing appropriations for sach fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed
appropriation. The leve! of control for the General Fund is by personnel services, materials and
services, capital outlay, operating transfers, and contingency. The leve! of control for the Debt
Service Fund and the Revenue Bond Fund is by total debt service. The amounts appropriated are
in agreament with the amounts of expenditures included in the adopted budget., The detail budget
document, however, is required to contain more specific, detailed information for the above-
mentioned expenditure categories.

Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget and appropriated for expenditure
through the use of a supplemental budget. The original budget process requires approval of the
budget committes, hearings before the public, publications in newspapers, and approval by the
Library Board of Directors. Oregon Local Budget Law does not require the involvement of the
budget committee during a supplemental process.

Oregon Local Budget Law does not allow management lo change the adopted or supplemental
budgets in any way. Only the Board of Commissioners may change the budget. Original and
supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of appropriation transfers between the levels of
control. In addition, Oregon Local Budget Law also provides certain specific exceptions to the
supplemental budget process to increase appropriations. Such transfers and increases require
approval of the Board of Commissioners by adoption of a resolution. Budget appropriation
amounts shown in the financial stalements include the original and revised final budget
appropriations as approved by the Board of Commissioners, Appropriatians are limited fo a single
fiscal year; therefore, all spending authority of the Port lapses as of year-end.

2018-19 Budget - The Board of Commissioners adopted and appropriated the 2018-19 budget as
outlined in Oregon Local Budget Law and made four changes to the original budget. There were
no over-expenditures of appropriations in the Debt Service Fund, the Revenue Bond Fund, the
Capital Projects Fund or the Reserve Fund However, there were over-expenditures in the General
Fund materials and service appropriation that total $159,368. These expenditures were approved
for payment by the Port Commissioners, but were not included in the appropriated General Fund
budget. Overall, total General Fund appropriations were not overspent.

e g




PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

A



|

Supplemental Schedules

S Xk




&
PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

4%



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

MODIFIED CASH BASIS
For the year ended June 30, 2019

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

General Fund
Uncollected, July 1, 2018 3 24,600
2017-18 property tax levy 243,169
Total property taxes to collect 267,769
Less:
Property taxes collected:
Current l 235,810
Prior 9,643
Total property taxes collected 245,453
Discounts, adjustments and other 5,360
Uncollected, June 30, 2019 $ 27,676
Uncollected property taxes consist of:
2018-19 Property tax levy $ 9,750
Prior year levies 17,526
Uncollected , June 30 2019 $ 27,676

-28-

o



| PRINC!PAL AND INTEREST TRANSACTIONS

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
SCHEDULE OF LONG TERM DEBT

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Average
Date of Interest
LONG TERM DEBT Isgua Rates
Debt Service Fund
Notas Payable
IFA Combined Notes January-10 5.0 Deferred
Other Notes:
Tidewinds March-16 0.0
Travel LA October-16 5.5
Umpqua Fabruary-18 8.0
Total Other Notes
Total Debt Service Fund
Revenue Bond Fund
No. 1 Series 2000 November-00 50
Debt Service Fund
Notes Payable
IFA Combined Notes January-10 5.0 Deferved
Other Notes:
Tidewinds March-18 0.0
Travel Lift October-16 55
Umpqua Februery-18 8.0
Total Other Notes
Total Debt Service Fund
Revenus Bond Fund
No. 1 Series 2000 November-00 5.0

00



PRINCIPAL

Original
Maturity Amount Outstanding Outstanding
Dates of Dabt July 1, 2018 issued Redeemed June 30, 2019
March-30 $ 4080618 $ 22812558 § - $ 4128 $ 1,917,127
March-37 18,000 16,058 - 864 16,192
November-24 324,200 257,520 - 42,676 214,844
February-25 100,000 96,111 - 12,061 84,050
442,200 369,887 - 55,801 314,088
S 4522818 § 2,630, 3 - § 399,728 § 2,231,213
March-31 $ 2!000!000 $ 1!222!072 $ - $ 69!016 $ 1!153!056
INTEREST

Outstanding Outstanding

July 1, 2018 Matured Pald June 30, 2018

March-30 ] 29184687 § 130,387 $ 3663 $ 3045171

March-37 - 5 5 -

November-24 - 13,232 13,232 -

Fabruary-25 - 5516 5516 -

- 18,748 18,748 -

5 2.918!467 $ 149!1 15 $ 22!41 1 $ 3!045.171

March-31 $ - $ 615104 $ 61 !104 $ -

-28-

1O



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
SCHEDULE OF FUTURE CASH REQUIREMENTS FOR
REVENUE BOND PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST MATURITIES

June 30, 2018
Series 2000 Issue
Fiscal Year Pald Princlpal Interast Total
2019-20 $ 72,487 $ 57,633 $ 130,120
2020-21¢ 76,112 54,008 130,120
2021.22 79917 50,203 130,120
2022-23 83,913 48,207 130,120
2023-24 88,109 42041 130,120
2024-25 92,614 37.608 130,120
2025-26 97,140 32,980 | 130,120
2028-27 101,997 28,123 130,120
2027-28 107,087 23,023 130,120
2028-29 112,452 17,868 130,120
2028-30 118,074 12,048 130,120
2030-21 123,223 8.163 129,388

$ 1,183,035 $ 407,671 $ 1,560,708

-30- \OL



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
SCHEDULE OF FUTURE CASH REQUIREMENTS FOR

COMBINED IFA NOTES II’AYABLE
June 30, 2019
IFA NOTES PAYABLE
Restructured Paymenis Deferred Interest
Total Total
Principal Intarost Cument Accunudated Principal Iniarast Tota)
2018-20 $ 280000 3 - $ L - s 200000 $ - 260,000
2020-21 280,000 - . . 260,000 - 210,000
2021-22 290,000 . . - 260,000 - 250,000
2022-23 200,000 . - - 260,000 . 260,600
2023-24 200,000 . - C 290,000 . 280,000
2024-25 280,000 - . . 280,000 - 200,000
2025-208 177427 - . - 177.127 - WA
2020-27 - - - 3.043.171 - 3.045.171 3,045,171
$ 1917927 § - - § 3!045!171 s 1!917!121 3 3045171 'S 4.032@5
-3-

(03



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
SCHEDULE OF FUTURE CASH REQUIREMENTS FOR
NOTES PAYABLE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST MATURITIES
| June 30, 2019

a!e-20
2020-21
202122
20023
22324

am8-27
7728

2030-31
20912

NOTES PAYABLE
Tidewinds Traval LIt Fork Lift
Totsl Total
Interes) Principal Intores! Princlpal Interesl Princips) Inisrast
[ ] ] s 45,202 10,708 3 12,604 H 4973 3 [ 15878
47,732 8158 13817 395 17215
50.447 5,401 14,488 3108 8,559
22,263 2818 15374 2202 4017
1,530
11,454 2 =)

EERIEEERRRERRRRERR é

LI Y T R R R T I T T T T T T Y

E!!!!!H!H!ggﬁgg

L N T T T Y
I I TR |

L]
L R T R T T T R T T T 1
[N T T R T Y R T S TS

ferepazageagsi

2

3 214844 3 I;?'él!l_ 3 34,050 L] 15!Q ! 3l4!; g %m

:

oY



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
RY NTY, OREGON

|
NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2018 2019
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 304,919 5 445,351
Total Assats 304,919 445,351
Liabllities: ' |
Other Liabilities - -
Total Liabilities - -
Net Position:
Restricted for:
Debt Service 122,894 120,904
Committed for:
Port Operations 187,030 280,776
Capital Projects 14,995 43,671
Total 182,025 324,487
Total Net Position $ 304,919 $ 445,351

05



Other Information - Unaudited

IO




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2018 2019
EXPENSES
Governmental Activities :
Port Operations $ 1,883,211 $ 1,892,377
Capital Outlay 600,327 845,853
Debt Service 444,864 £52,259
Total Governmental Activities 2,928,402 3,380,580
Program Revenues:
Port Sejvices 2,310,267 2,537,811
Salvage Salas 79,427 61,908
Granis 275,398 670,632
Total Program Revenues 2.665,002 3,260,351
Net (Expenses) Revenues (263,310) {130,238)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 237,622 235,810
Interest 3,079 9,643
Misceffaneous - 25217
Total General Revenues 240,701 270,670
Operating Transfers In 621,981 2,136,087
Operating Transfers Out (621,981) {2,136,087)
Loan Proceeds 100,000 -
Change in Net Position 77,391 140,432
Net Position - Beginning 230,100 304,919
Accounting Basis Change §2.572) -
Net Position - Ending 919 $ 443!351




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

C Y CO G
' CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2018 2019
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 2376822 § 235,810
Charges for Port Services 2,310,267 2,537,811
Salvage Sales 79,427 51,908
Granis 275,398 870,632
Interest 3,079 9,843
Miscellaneous - 25217
TOTAL REVENUES 2,905,793 3,531,021
EXPEthUREs |
Current
Port Operations 1,883,211 1,902,377
Capital Qutiay 800,327 845,053
Debt Service 444,864 552,259
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 2,628,402 3,360,589
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (22,609) 140,432
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers in 621,081 2,136,087
Operating Transfers Out (621,981) {2,138,087)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (22,609) 140,432
FUND BALANCE, July 1 230,100 304,919
Accounting Basis Change 2,672) -
FUND BALANCE, June 30 ‘5_!'62'91'9' — 445,351

-35.



| |

Independent Auditor's Reporf Required By State R lation

|




o

PORT

BROOKINGS
HARBOR

&



DIRIAET]

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

RESOLUTION NO. 530

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
FOR ACCEPTANCE OF
DRAFT AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

WHEREAS, the Port of Brookings Harbor is a port district, organized and operated under
the provisions of ORS Chapter 777, and has the authority to adopt resolutions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Port of Brookings Harbor through its
Board of Commissioners unanimously approved the Draft Audit Report for fiscal year
2018-19 now on file in the Port Office.

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Port of Brookings Harbor Board of Commissioners
this 17th day of December 2019.

Roy C. Davis, Chairmen, Board of
Commissioners

ATTEST:

Joseph Speir, Treasurer, Board of
Commissioners

Pagelof1l Resolution No.



ACTION ITEM — B

DATE: December 17, 2019

RE:

TO:

Curry County Leasing RV Park

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

Port Manager was authorized to develop a lease with Curry County for the RV Park and
bring a lease back to the Board for review during the November 22, 2019 meeting.

New information came to light with the State where a fixed monthly payment rate is
required in order for the County to receive State RV License Fees. Escalating
percentage increases can be written into the lease.

After reviewing estimated numbers for a fixed monthly payment rate and continued
negotiations, we feel the fixed rate will not work. | recommend stopping further lease
negotiations at this time, but the Port should welcome other opportunities as they come
forward.

| am recommending the Port should resume the loan plan to build the restroom, develop
construction drawings and specifications for the new restroom and pull-thru sites, and
work on reopening the dry camping area.

DOCUMENTS

None

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

First Recommended Motion:
Motion to stop current negotiations with Curry County for leasing the RV Park.

Second Recommended Motion:
Motion to resume loan documentation for a new restroom and pull-thru sites for Board

approval.

Third Recommended Motion:

Motion to resume developing construction drawings and specifications for a new
restroom and pull-thru sites at the RV Park with Crow/Clay Associates. Provide draft
construction drawings and specifications for the restroom and pull-thru sites for Board
approval.

I\



ACTION ITEM — C

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Zola's on the Water Lease Proposal
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ Eian Savas, owner of Zola's Pizzeria, presented a plan to purchase and remodel
Sporthaven Marina Bar and Girill at November 19, 2019 meeting.

» Board approved a 30-year lease with renewable 5-year options.

e Board approved the building area at $1,200 per month and the patio area at $.08 a
square foot for an extra $200 for a $1,400 per month base rent.

+ Board approved no rent for the first two months of the lease for remolding.

» Board approved 2% CPI increase every five years with a 10-year review of the rates.

DOCUMENTS

o Draft Consent to Assignment and Assumption of Lease, 2 pages
» Draft Amended and Restated Lease with Zola’s on the Water, 18 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

» First Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve the assignment of the current iease with Howard and Cindy Jones,
owners of Sporthaven Marina Bar and Grill, to Zola’s on the Water.

e Second Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve the draft Amended and Restated Lease Agreement with Zola's on the
Water to be executed upon the assignment of the current lease with Howard and Cindy
Jones.

W2



CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT

on. DIRIAEN]

ASSUMPTION OF LEASE

This Consent to Assignment and Assumption of Lease (“Consent”) dated as of
, is made by and among the Port of Brookings Harbor (“Landlord™), an
Oregon municipal corporation, Howard Jones and Cynthia O’Reilly-Jones (“Assignor”) and Eian
Savas, Bob Manley, and Tony Mavrides dba Zola’s on the Water, LLC (“Assignee”).

WHEREAS, Assignor is the current tenant of the premises known as 16374 Lower Harbor
Road; and

WHEREAS, the original lease for the premises was entered into on March 21, 1996
between Landlord and Howard Toner, Cal Rosevear and Jerry Hogan dba BMH Enterprises as
Tenant; and

WHEREAS, Landlord consented to the assignment of the original lease to Mike and Kathy
Ramsay on September 20, 2005; and

WHEREAS, Landlord consented to the subsequent assignment of the lease to Assignor on
March 6, 2012; and

WHEREAS, Assignor has requested Landlord’s consent to the assignment and assumption
of the lease to Eian Savas, Bob Manley, and Tony Mavrides dba Zola’s on the Water, LLC; and

WHEREAS, Landlord is willing to execute the Consent, subject to all of the terms and
provisions herein contained.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties
agree as follows:

I. CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT. Landlord hereby consents to the assignment and
assumption of the Lease by Assignor to Assignee subject to the terms and provisions of
this Consent.

2. LEASE TERM. Assignor and Assignee acknowledge and agree that the Lease expiration
date is April 30, 2031.

3. FURTHER ASSIGNMENT. This Consent is not to be deemed a consent to the further
assignment of the Lease. Pursuant to the Lease, Landlord’s consent in writing must be
obtained prior to any further assignment of the Lease.

4. ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS. Assignee hereby assumes all of the obligations of
Assignor arising under the Lease from and after the Commencement Date of the Lease and
agrees to be bound by and to perform all of the terms, covenants, agreements, provisions,
and conditions of the Lease on Assignor’s part to be performed or observed from and after
the Commencement Date of the Lease.

W3



5. RELEASE OF ASSIGNOR. This Consent serves as a waiver and release of the continuing
obligations of Assignor under the Lease as of the effective date of assignment of the lease
from Assignor to Assignee. Assignor will remain responsible for any liabilities and

obligations incurred up to the effective date of the assignment.

6. GOVERNING LAW. This Consent will be governed and construed in accordance with

Oregon Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Consent has been executed as of the day and year first above

written.
LANDLORD: ASSIGNOR: ASSIGNEE: Zola’s on the
Water, LLLC
Roy Davis, Chairman Howard Jones Eian Savas
Board of Commissioners
Cynthia O’Reilly-Jones Bob Manley
Attest:
Tony Mavrides
Commissioner

WS



DRAET

AMENDED AND RESTATED COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

ZOLA’S ON THE WATER

This amended and restated lease agreement (this “Lease”) is made and entered

into this ____

day of , 2019, by and between the Port of

Brookings Harbor, an Oregon municipal corporation (referred to herein as the
“Landlord”) and Zola’s on the Water, LLC (referred to herein as the “Tenant”).

1. Leased Premises. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant the following
described property located in the Port of Brookings Harbor on the
terms and conditions stated herein:

Approximately 3,795 sq.ft. of bare ground and 2,500 sq.ft. of
concrete patio, as shown on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and
made a part hereof, located at 16374 Lower Harbor Road,
Brookings, Oregon (referred to herein as the “Leased
Premises”).

2. Lease Term and Base Rental Rate.

a.

Page 1 - LEASE

Assignment of Lease. Tenant was assigned the original
lease for a portion of the property covered by this Lease and
pursuant to that assignment acquired title to the
improvements on the premises that were part of the original
lease.

Current Term. The term of this Lease agreement is thirty
(30) years commencing January 1, 2020 and expiring
December 31, 2050.

Extended Term. Landlord grants to Tenant the six options to
extend the lease term for five (5) additional years each;
provided that Tenant: (a) notifies the Port of its intent to
exercise the option no less than 90 days prior to expiration of
the term; (b) is not in default of this Lease; and (c) Landlord
does not need the premises for its own use. The rental rate
is to be adjusted to be commensurate with applicable rates
adopted by the Board of Commissioners in effect at the end
of the term. Failure to provide such notice is a default and a
material breach of this Lease and Landlord may terminate
this Lease on the expiration date and retake possession of
the Leased Premises with or without process of law.

Rental Rate. The base rental rate for the Leased Premises is

One Thousand Four Hundred 00/100 Dollars ($1,400.00) per
month. The building and all building improvements are the

Tenant Initial POBH Initial

NS



property of the Tenant. The parties agree to review the base
rental rate after 10 years for comparison with market rates
and agree to negotiate a new base rental rate if the then
current rate is not within a reasonable range of market rates.

Reduced Rent for Two Months. Tenant plans to make
substantial improvements to the Leased Premises prior to
opening the business, which are estimated to take
approximately four months. In consideration of this
substantial investment, no base rental rate will be due for the
first 2 months of this Lease.

If Tenant does not vacate the Leased Premises at the
expiration of the term or any extended term, Landlord may
treat Tenant as tenant from month-to-month, subject to all of
the provisions of this Lease, except that Landlord may
establish a new rental rate commensurate with the
applicable rates adopted by the Board of Commissioners in
effect at the end of the term upon 30 days notice. Such
month-to-month tenancy wil! be terminable at the end of any
monthly rental period upon 10-days’ written notice from
Landlord or Tenant. Tenant hereby waives any notice
otherwise required by law with respect to a month-to-month
tenancy.

3. Base Rent Payment.

Page 2 - LEASE

a. Tenant is to pay the base rent for the Leased Premises and

any additional rent provided herein without deduction or
oftset. Additional rent means any other sums payable by
Tenant to Landlord under this Lease.

. The base rent will increase 2.0% every five years on the

anniversary of the lease commencement. The base rent
increase will be for the total amount of the base rent due.
Base rent includes all prior percentage increases.

. Rent for any partial month during the lease term wili be

prorated to reflect the number of days during the month that
Tenant actually occupied the Premises.

. Should any rent or other payment required of Tenant by this

Lease not be paid within 10 days after it is due, a late charge
of 1.5% per month {18% per annum) will be assessed. In the
event, suit or action is instituted to collect any amount owed
on this account, the undersigned applicant agrees to pay any

Tenant Initial POBH Initial

o



reasonable aftorney’s fees, collection agency fees and any
other costs associated with such action. A $50.00 fee will be
assessed on any retumned payment.

4. Lease Consideration/Security Deposit. Upon execution of this
Lease, Tenant's base rent is due the first day of the month of the
lease term for which rent is payable. Tenant is required to pay a
security deposit in the sum of $1,400.00. Landlord may apply the
security deposit to pay the cost of performing any obligation which
Tenant fails to perform within the time required by this Lease, but
such application by Landlord will not be the exclusive remedy for
Tenant’s default. If the security deposit is applied by the Landlord,
Tenant is required to pay on demand the sum necessary to
replenish the security deposit to its original amount. To the extent
not applied by Landlord to cure defaulis by Tenant, the security
deposit must be returned to Tenant upon termination of this Lease,
or, by mutual agreement between Landlord and Tenant, applied
against the rent payable for the last month of the term.

5. Use of Leased Premises.

a. Tenant may use the Leased Premises for the following
purposes only, and for no other purpose without Landlord's
prior written consent: restaurant (indoor and outdoor dining},
including the sale of beer, wine and liquor for consumption
on-premises (with the appropriate OLC license) and retail
sales.

b. In connection with its use of the Leased Premises, Tenant
must, at its sole expense, promptly comply with all applicable
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of any public
authority, including, but not limited to, those of the Pont of
Brookings Harbor, Curry County and the State of Oregon,
and not unreasonably annoy, obstruct or interfere with the
rights of other tenants of the Port of Brookings Harbor,
wherever located. Tenant must not create or maintain any
nuisance, noise, objectionable fumes, or vibrations while
using the Leased Premises. Tenant will be responsible for
any System Development Charges applicable to or caused
by the Tenant's use of the Leased Premises.

6. Improvements and Fixtures.
a. Allimprovements on the property will become the property of

the Landlord upon expiration or earlier termination of this
Lease, unless expressly otherwise agreed to by the parties.

Page 3 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

\\1



b. All fixtures placed upon the Leased Premises during the
term, other than Tenant's trade fixtures, will, at Landlord's
option, become the property of Landlord upon the expiration
or earlier termination of this Lease.

¢. Prior to termination or expiration of the lease term, Tenant is
required to remove all furnishings, furniture, and trade
fixtures which remain its property. If Tenant fails to do so,
such failure will be deemed an abandonment of the property.
Upon giving Tenant 20 days’ written notice, Landiord may
sell or otherwise dispose of the property. Tenant will be
responsible for all costs of storing and disposing of
abandoned personal property, with interest at the legal rate
from the date of expenditure by Landlord.

Signs. All signs, awnings, antennas, or other apparatus positioned
as to be visible from ouiside the Leased Premises require
Landlord’s prior written approval as to design, size, location, and
color. All signs installed by Tenant must comply with Landlord’s
standards for signs, and all applicable codes and signs and sign
hardware are to be removed upon termination of this Lease with the
sign location restored to its former state unless Landlord elects to
retain all or any portion thereof.

Utilities and Services. Tenant is responsible for ali utilities,
including but not limited to, water, sewer, electricity, gas, phone,
and garbage. Unless caused by Landlord's negligence or
intentional act, the interruption, limitation, curtailment, or rationing
of services or utilities may not be deemed an eviction or
disturbance of Tenant's use and possession of the Leased
Premises, or render Landlord liable to Tenant for damages, or
relieve Tenant from performance of Tenant's obligations under this
Lease.

Maintenance and Repair - Tenant.

a. Tenant is at all times during the term of this Lease, and at
Tenant's sole cost and expense, obligated to keep the
entirety of the Leased Premises, including the improvements
thereon (exterior, interior and structural elements), and every
pan thereof in good condition and repair; excepting ordinary
wear and tear and damage to the Leased Premises by
earthquake, act of God, or the elements.

b. On the last day of the term hereof, or upon any sooner
termination, Tenant must surrender the Leased Premises to

Page 4 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

W&



10.

11.

12.

Landlord in good condition and repair, ordinary wear and
tear excepted, clean and free of debris. Any damage or
deterioration of the Leased Premises will not be deemed
ordinary wear and tear if the same could have been
prevented by commercially reasonable maintenance
practices.

Maintenance and Repair — Landlord. Landlord has no
maintenance and repair obligations for the improvements or utilities
upon the Leased Premises during the term of this Lease. Landlord
is responsible for maintaining the harbor and the stability of the land
under the Leased Premises to ensure the Lease Premises are
suitable for the purposes of this lease including, but not limited to
supporting the improvements thereon.

Alterations. Tenant may not make any alterations, additions, or
improvements to the Leased Premises without Landlord's prior
written consent. Landlord will have the right to approve the
contractor used by Tenant for any work on the Leased Premises,
and to post notices of non-responsibility in connection with any
work being performed by Tenant on the Leased Premises.
Landlord’s approval of the contractor used by Tenant shall not be
unreascnably withheld or delayed.

Indemnity.

a. Tenant must not allow any liens to attach to the Leased
Premises, or Tenant's interest in the Leased Premises, as a
result of Tenant's activities. In the event that a materialman,
mechanic’s, or other lien is filed, or a claim of lien is made
for work claimed to have been done for Tenant, Landlord will
have the option in its sole discretion of requiring Tenant to
post a Surety Bond within thirty (30) days at Tenant's
expense or to pay and discharge the lien. Tenant agrees to
reimburse Landlord promptly upon demand. These Landlord
remedies are not exclusive as Landlord has other remedies
as provided by law including requiring Tenant to pay for
Landlord’'s attormey’s fees and costs relating to any such
lien.

Except as otherwise provided herein, Tenant hereby waives
all claims against Landlord for damage to any property or
injury, iliness, or death of any person in, upon, or about the
Leased Premises arising at any time and from any cause
whatsoever other than solely by reason of the gross
negligence or willful act of Landlord, its officers, employees,

Page 5 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

\9



or agents. Tenant must defend, indemnify and hold
Landlord harmless from and against any and all claims or
liability for damage to any property or injury, iliness, or death
of any person (a) occurring in or on the Leased Premises or
any part thereof arising at any time and from any cause
whatsoever other than by reason of the negligence or willful
act of Landlord, its officers, employees, or agents; or (b)
occurring in, on, or about any part of the Leased Premises
when such damage, injury, illness, or death was caused in
whole or in part by the act, neglect, omission, or fault of
Tenant, its agents, servants, employees, invitees, or
licensees (including, without limitation, when such damage,
injury, illness, or death has been caused in part by Landlord,
its officers, employees, or agents.) Landlord will have no
liability to Tenant because of loss or damage caused by the
acts or omissions of other tenants of Landlord, or by third
parties. The provisions of this paragraph survive the
termination of this Lease with respect to any damage, injury,
illness, or death occurring prior to such termination.

13. Insurance.

a.

Page 6 — LEASE

Tenant is required to carry commercial general liability
insurance with limits of not less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and property
damage, for injury or death of persons and damage to or loss or
destruction of property including coverage for personal and
advenrtising injury, operations and products completed. Such
insurance must be endorsed to name the Port of Brookings
Harbor (Landlord) and Landlord’s agent, if any, as an additional
insured and additional loss payee and contain a “severability of
interests” provision. All coverage must be on an occurrence
basis and not on a claims made basis. All policies required by
this section must also be endorsed to provide a waiver of
subrogation in favor of the Port of Brookings Harbor. Tenant will
be responsible to pay for any deductible amounts payable under
any policy of insurance.

Tenant is required to furnish certificates of insurance to Port's
General Manager, P.O. Box 848, Brookings, Oregon 97415
cenrtifying the existence of such insurance no later than five (5)
days prior to commencement of this Lease. Each insurance
policy required by this clause is to be endorsed to state that
coverage will not be suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in
coverage or limits or not renewed without fourteen (14) days
advance written notice to the Landlord and Landlord’s agent, if

Tenant Initial POBH Initial

120



any, and a renewal certificate must be fumished at least 14
days prior to the expiration of any policy.

c. The insurance required herein will be primary and without right
of contribution from other insurance that may be in effect and
without subordination. Any other insurance carried by the
Landlord is excess. The insurance policies must be underwritten
by a company licensed in the state of Oregon, and carry a
minimum Best's rating of “A-VI" or better.

d. Landlord reserves the right to review, investigate and reject
insurance companies proposed to be sued by Tenant if they are
determined inadequate to provide necessary coverage's as
herein specified. Landlord shall not unreasonably reject
Tenant's insurance company. All insurance required to be
purchased and maintained by Tenant must be obtained from an
insurance company licensed or authorized in the State of
Oregon to issue the insurance policies for the limits and
coverage'’s required herein.

e. If Tenant's policies lapse or are canceled at any time during the
term of this Lease, Landlord will have the right to terminate this
Lease, if Tenant fails to provide insurance coverage within 10
days notice from Landlord. Tenant will be responsible to
Landlord, and must reimburse and hold Landiord harmless for
any bodily injury, fire or property damage not covered by
Tenant's insurance and not caused in whole or in part by
Landlord.

14. Exemption of Landlord from Liability. Tenant hereby agrees
that Landlord will not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any
loss of income therefrom or for damage to the goods, wares,
merchandise or other property of Tenant, Tenant’s employees,
invitees, customers, or any other person in or about the Leased
Premises or the Port, nor may Landlord be held liable for injury to
the person of Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents or contractors,
whether such damage or injury is caused by or results from fire,
steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, leakage,
obstruction or other defects of pipes, wires or lighting fixtures, or
from any other cause, whether said damage or injury results from
conditions arising upon the Leased Premises or upon other
premises of the Port, or from other sources or places and
regardiess of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the
means of repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant, unless such
injury and/or damage results from the gross negligence or willful
acts of Landlord. Landlord may not be held liable for any damages

Page 7 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

|2\



arising from any act or neglect of any other tenant, occupant or
user of the Port, nor from the failure of Landlord to enforce the
provisions of any other lease of the Port.

156. Major Damage. Major damage means damage by fire or other
casualty to the Leased Premises or Tenant’s improvements to the
Leased Premises that causes the Leased Premises or any
substantial portion of the Leased Premises (including the
improvements thereon) to be unusable, or which will cost more than
twenty-five percent (25%) of the pre-damage value of the Leased
Premises (or Tenant's improvements thereon) to repair. In case of
major damage, Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease by notice
in writing to Landlord within sixty (60} days after such date. Tenant
and Tenant’s insurance will still be responsible to restore the
Leased Premises and Tenant's improvements thereon even if
Tenant chooses to terminate this Lease. I[f this Lease is not
terminated following major damage, or if damage occurs that is not
major damage, Tenant must promptly restore the Leased Premises
and Tenant’s improvements thereon to the condition existing just
prior to the damage.

16. Waiver of Subrogation. Tenant is responsible for insuring its
personal property, improvements and trade fixtures located on the
Leased Premises and any alterations or new Tenant improvements
it makes to the Leased Premises. Neither Landlord nor Tenant
may be held liable to the other for any loss or damage caused by
any of the risks that are or could be covered by a standard all risk
insurance policy with an extended coverage endorsement, or for
any business interruption. There may be no subrogated claims by
one party’s insurance carrier against the other party arising out of
any such loss.

17.  Eminent Domain. If a condemning authority takes title by eminent
domain or by agreement in lieu thereof to the entire Leased
Premises or a portion sufficient to render the Leased Premises
unsuitable for Tenant's use, then either party may elect to terminate
this Lease effective on the date that possession is taken by the
condemning authority; provided, however, that a condition to the
exercise by Tenant of such right to terminate will be that the portion
of the Leased Premises taken must be of such extent and nature as
to substantially handicap, impede, or impair Tenant's use of the
balance of the Leased Premises for the purpose intended. Rent
will be reduced for the remainder of the term in an amount
proportionate to the reduction in area of the Leased Premises
caused by the taking. All condemnation proceeds for the Leased
Premises belong to Landlord, and Tenant will have no claims

Page 8 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial \
1L



against Landlord for said proceeds. All condemnation proceeds for
the Tenant owned improvements on the Leased Premises and any
compensation for Tenant's losses from condemnation belong to
Tenant, and Landlord will have no claims against Tenant for said
proceeds.

18. Assignment and Subletting.

a. This Lease will bind and inure to the benefit of the parties,

their respective heirs, successors, and assigns, provided
that Tenant may not assign its interest under this Lease or
sublet all or any portion of the Leased Premises without first
obtaining Landlord’s consent in writing. This provision
applies to all transfers by operation of law including, but not
limited to, mergers and changes in control of Tenant. No
assignment will act to relieve Tenant of its obligation to pay
rent or perform other obligations required by this Lease and
ne consent to one assignment or subletting may be deemed
consent to any further assignment or subletting. Landlord
may not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to any
assignment, or to subletting, accepting that the proposed
Tenant has been approved by Landlord in writing.

. Upon the assignment of this Lease, a new base rent may be

established for the remainder of the lease at the sole option
of the Landlord. If Tenant proposes a subletting or
assignment to which Landlord is required to consent under
this paragraph, Landlord will have the option of terminating
this Lease and dealing directly with the proposed sub-tenant
or assignee, or any third party. If an assignment or subletting
is permitted, any cash profit, or the net value of any other
consideration received by Tenant as a result of such
transaction is to be paid to Landlord promptly following its
receipt by Tenant. Tenant must pay any costs incurred by
Landlord in connection with a request for assignment or
subletting, including reasonable attomey fees.

19. Default.

Page 9 - LEASE

Any of the following events constitute a default by Tenant
under this Lease:

1. Tenant’s failure to pay rent or any other charge under
this Lease within ten (10) days after its due, or failure
to comply with any other term or condition within
twenty (20) days following written notice from

Tenant Initial POBH Initial

123



Landlord specifying the noncompliance. If such
noncompliance cannot be cured within the 20-day
period, this provision will be satisfied if Tenant
commences correction within such period and
thereafter proceeds in good faith and with reasonable
diligence to effect compliance as soon as possible.
Time is of the essence of this Lease.

2. Tenant’s insolvency, business failure or assignment
for the benefit of its creditors. Tenant's
commencement of proceedings under any provision
of any bankruptcy or insolvency law or failure to
obtain dismissal of any petition filed against it under
such laws within the time required to answer, or the
appointment of a receiver for Tenant's property.

3. Assignment or subletting by Tenant in violation of
Section 18 above.

4, Vacation or abandonment of the Leased Premises for
more than three (3) months without the writien
consent of Landlord.

5. If this Lease is levied upon under any attachment or
execution and such attachment or execution is not
vacated within ten (10) days.

20. Remedies for Default. In case of default as described in Section
19 above, Landlord will have the right to the following remedies,
which are intended to be cumulative and in addition to any other
remedies provided under applicable law.

a.

Page 10 - LEASE

Landlord may terminate this Lease and reenter and retake
possession of the Leased Premises, and remove any
persons or property by legal action. Following such retaking
of possession, efforts by Landlord to re-let the Leased
Premises will be sufficient if Landlord follows its usual
procedures for finding tenants for the Leased Premises at
rates not less than the current rates for other comparable
space on Port property. If Landlord has other vacant space
available, prospective tenants may be placed in such other
space without prejudice to Landlord’s claim to damages to
loss of rentals from Tenant.

Landlord may recover all damages caused by Tenant's
default which include an amount equal to rent lost because

Tenant Initial POBH Initial

YA



of the default and all attomey’s fees and costs. Landlord
may sue periodically to recover damages as they occur
throughout the lease term, and no action for accrued
damages will act to bar a later action for damages
subsequently accruing. Landlord may elect in any one
action to recover accrued damages plus damages
attributable to the remaining term of the lease. Such
damages will be measured by the difference between the
rent under this Lease and the reasonable rental value of the
Leased Premises for the remainder of the term, discounted
to the time of judgment at the prevailing interest rate on
judgments.

c. Landlord may make any payment or perform any obligation
that Tenant has failed to perform, in which case Landlord will
be entitled to recover from Tenant upon demand all amounts
so expended plus interest from the date of the expenditure at
the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month. Any
such payment or performance by Landlord will not act to
waive Tenants defauli.

21. Regulations. Landlord will have the right (but not the obligation) to
make, revise, and enforce commercially reasonable regulations or
policies consistent with this Lease for the purpose of promoting
safety, order, economy, cleanliness, and good service to all tenants
of the Landlord, provided that if Landlord passes a regulation or
policy that interferes with Tenant’s quiet enjoyment or unreasonably
interferes with Tenant's use of the Leased Premises, then Tenant
may terminate this Lease. All such regulations and policies must
be complied with as if part of this Lease.

22. Access. During times, other than normal business hours, Tenant’s
officers and employees or those having business with Tenant may
be required to identify themselves or show passes in order to gain
access to the Leased Premises. In such event, Landlord will have
no liability for permitting or refusing to permit access to anyone.
With reasonable notice to Tenant, Landlord will have the right to
enter upon the Leased Premises at any time by passkey or
otherwise to determine Tenant's compliance with this Lease, to
perform necessary services, maintenance and repairs to the
Leased Premises, or to show the Leased Premises to any
prospective tenant or purchasers. Except in cases of emergency,
such entry will be made with at least 24 hours prior notice and at
such times and in such manner as to minimize interference with the
reasonable business use of the Leased Premises by Tenant.

Page 11 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial \2_8*



23. Notices. Notices to the parties relating fo this Lease must be in
writing, effective when delivered, or if mailed, effective on the
second day following mailing, postage prepaid, to the address for
the party stated in this Lease or to such other address as either
party may specify by notice to the other. Notice to Tenant may
always be delivered to the Leased Premises. Rent will be payable
to Landlord at the same address and in the same manner, but will
be considered paid only when received.

24. Subordination. This Lease is subject and subordinate to any
mortgages, deeds of trust, or land sale contracts (hereafter
collectively referred to as encumbrances) now existing against the
Leased Premises. At Landlord's option this Lease will be subject
and subordinate to any future encumbrance hereafter placed
against the Leased Premises (including the underlying land) or any
modifications of existing encumbrances. Tenant must execute
such documents as may reasonably be requested by Landlord or
the beholder of the encumbrance to evidence this subordination.

25. Transfer of Premises. If the Leased Premises is sold or otherwise
transferred by Landlord or any successor, Tenant must atom to the
purchaser or transferee and recognize it as the landlord under this
Lease, and, provided the purchaser assumes all obligations
hereunder, the Landlord (transferor) will have no further liability
hereunder.

26. Estoppel. Either party will within twenty (20) days after notice from
the other party execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other party
a certificate reciting: whether or not this Lease has been modified
and is in full force and effect; whether there are any modifications
or alleged breaches by the other party; the dates to which rent has
been paid in advance; the amount of any security deposit or
prepaid rent; and any other facts that may be reasonably
requested. Failure to deliver the certificate within the specified time
will be conclusive upon the party of whom the cerificate was
requested that the lease is in full force and effect and has not been
modified except as may be represented by the party requesting the
certificate. If requested by the holder of any encumbrance or any
ground lessor, Tenant will agree to give such holder or lessor notice
of and an opportunity to cure any default by Landlord under this
Lease. Unresolved good faith disputes between Landlord and
Tenant will be resolved pursuant to mandatory binding arbitration
as provided herein.

27. Attorney’s Fees.

Page 12 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial lz-LD



a. In the event any action, suit, arbitration or other proceeding
is instituted by either party to this Lease to enforce any
provision of this Lease or any matter arising therefrom or to
interpret any provision of this Lease, including any
proceeding to compel arbitration, the prevailing party will be
entitled to recover from the other a reasonable attorney fee
to be determined by the court or arbitrator(s). In addition to
recovery of a reasonable attorney’s fee, the prevailing party
will be entitled to recover from the other costs and
disbursements, including all costs of arbitration and the
arbitrator(s) fees, and expert witness fees, as fixed by the
court or tribunal in which the case is heard.

b. In the event any such action, suit, arbitration or other
proceeding is appealed to any higher court or courts, the
prevailing party will be entitled to recover from the other a
reasonable attorney fee for prosecuting or defending such
appeal or appeals, in addition to the reasonable attorney’s
fees in the lower court, or courts, or arbitration proceeding,
such fee to be determined by the appellate court or lower
court or arbitrator, as the appellate court may determine. In
addition to recovery of a reasonable attorney fee on appeal,
the prevailing party will be entitled to recover from the other
costs and disbursements and expert witness fees as fixed by
the appellate court. All costs and disbursements which may
be awarded pursuant to this paragraph will bear interest at
the maximum legal rate from the date they are incurred until
the date they are paid by the losing party.

28. Quiet Enjoyment. Landlord warrants that so long as Tenant
complies with all material terms of this Lease, it will be entitled to
peaceable and undisturbed possession of the Leased Premises
free from any eviction or disturbance by Landlord. Landlord will
have no liability to Tenant for loss or damages arising out of the
acts of other tenants of Port property or third parties, nor any
liability for any reason which exceeds the value of its interest in the
Leased Premises.

29. Complete Agreement. This Lease and the attached exhibits
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and supersede all
prior written and oral agreements and representations. Neither
Landlord nor Tenant is relying on any representations other than
those expressly set forth herein. Any modification to this Lease
must be in writing and signed by both parties.

Page 13 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial l .2’7



30. Nonwaiver. Waiver by either party of strict perfformance of any
provision of this Lease will not be deemed a waiver of the party’s
right to require strict performance of the same provision in the
future or of any other provision.

31. Real Property Taxes.

a. Payment of Taxes. Tenant is required to pay all real and
personal property taxes, if any, applicable to Tenant's use
and possession of the Leased Premises.

b. Additional Improvements. Tenant will be responsible for
paying any increase in real property tax specified in the Tax
Assessor’s records and work sheets caused by additional
improvements placed upon the Leased Premises by Tenant
or by Landlord for use by Tenant.

c. Definition of “Real Property Tax”. As used herein, the
term “real property tax” includes any form of real estate tax
or assessment, general, special, ordinary or extraordinary,
and any license fee, commercial rental tax, improvement
bond or bonds, levy or tax (other than inheritance, personal
income or estate taxes) imposed on the Port or any portion
thereof by any authority having the direct or indirect power to
tax, including any city, county, state or federal government,
or any school, agricuitural, sanitary, fire, street, drainage or
other improvement district thereof.

32. Severability. The invalidity of any provision of this Lease as
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction will not affect the
validity of any other provisions herein.

33. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the
obligations to be performed under this Lease.

34. Security Measures. Each party acknowledges that they have no
obligation whatsoever to provide guard service or other security
measures for the benefit of the other party or their property. Each
party assumes full responsibility for the protection of itself, its
agents and invitees and its property from acts of third parties.
Nothing herein contained may prevent Landlord, at Landlord’s sole
option from providing security protection for the Port or any part
thereof.

Page 14 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial \ 'L—%



35. No Warranties. The Leased Premises are ieased “as-is” and in
their current condition as of the first day of the lease term. No
warranties, express or implied, are provided by Landlord.

36. Parking. Landlord does not reserve any parking spaces to Tenant
as part of this Lease, however, all public parking spaces of
Landlord are available to Tenant and Tenant's patrons, employees,
and other invitees.

37. Arbitration.

a. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Lease,
including, without limitation, the making, performance or
interpretation of this Lease, is to be settled by arbitration in Curry
County, Oregon, and any judgment on the arbitration award may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction over the subject matter of the
controversy.

b. Any party asserting a claim arising out of or relating to this Lease
may make a written demand for arbitration. [n this event, the parties
agree to submit their controversy to binding arbitration before a single
arbitrator. The arbitrator must be an attorney licensed to practice law
in the State of Oregon. If the parties cannot agree within 30 days to
the selection of a single arbitrator after the election to arbitrate, either
party may request that the selection of an arbitrator be made by a
Judge of the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for Curry County.
The dispute is to be heard by the arbitrator selected within 90 days
thereafter, unless the parties agree otherwise.

c. The parties will pay their own costs of arbitration, and each will be
obligated for one-half of the arbitrator's fee. In the event of arbitration
under the provisions of this Lease, the prevailing party will be entitled
to an award of reasonable attorney fees and related costs.

d. If arbitration is commenced, the parties agree to permit discovery
proceedings of the type provided by the Oregon Rules of Civil
Procedure both in advance of, and during recess of, the arbitration
hearings. ORS 183.450(1) through (4), where applicable, will control
the admission of evidence at the hearing in any arbitration conducted
hereunder, provided however no error by the arbitrator in application
of the statute may be grounds for vacating the arbitrator's award.
Each party will be entitled to present evidence and argument to the
arbitrator. The arbitrator must give written notice to the parties stating
the arbitration determination and furnish to each party a signed copy
of such determination and judgment so the award may be entered in
any court having jurisdiction over the parties.

Page 15 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial \ ’2_0\



e. The parties agree that the arbitrator will have no Jurisdiction to
render an award and/or judgment for punitive damages. The parties
agree that the decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding on
the parties and a judgment may be entered on the arbitrator's award.
Unless otherwise inconsistent herewith, the provisions of ORS
Chapter 36 will apply to any arbitration hereunder. The duty to
arbitrate will survive the cancellation or termination of this Lease.

f. Service of process in connection therewith is to be made by
ceriified mail. In any judicial proceeding to enforce this agreement
to arbitrate, the only issues to be determined will be the existence
of the agreement to arbitrate and the failure of one party to comply
with that agreement, and those issues are to be determined
summarily by the court without a jury. All other issues must be
decided by the arbitrator, whose decision thereon will be final and
binding. There may be no appeal of an order compelling arbitration
except as part of an appeal conceming confirmation of the decision
of the arbitrator.

g. Neither party may institute any iegal proceeding against the other to
enforce any right hereunder or for breach hereof, except that either
party may institute litigation (i} to enforce its rights of arbitration
hereunder (ii) to confirm and have judgment entered upon any
arbitration award issued hereunder, and (jii) to stay the running of
any statute of limitation or prevent any other occurrence (including,
without limitation, the passage of time) which would constitute
laches, estoppel, waiver or any other such legal consequence that
suit is necessary to avoid; provided, however, that neither party
may pursue litigation under item (iii) beyond such action as is
necessary to prevent prejudice to its cause of action pending
ultimate resolution by arbitration under this Section.

h. If any dispute between the parties arises from or in connection with
any claim of litigation initiated by any third party (either as claimant,
plaintiff, counterclaimant, or defendant/third party plaintiff), then,
unless the parties agree otherwise, the resolution of that dispute
under the arbitration provisions of this Section may at the option of
either party be deferred until the resolution of that third-party claim
or litigation, provided, however that in the event of any such dispute
in connection with a claim or litigation so initiated by a third party,
either party may at any time initiate arbitration under this Section to
determine prospective liability between the parties upon facts which
are stipulated, admitted solely for the purpose of arbitrating
prospective liability, or not reasonably in dispute. The issue of
whether any fact is “reasonably in dispute” under the preceding
sentence will be subject to mandatory arbitration hereunder upon
the demand of either party. In the event Landlord is made a party to

Page 16 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial \ 'S‘D



such claim or litigation so initiated by a third party, Landiord may
select its own counsel and have complete control over all claim or
litigation decisions concerning its participation in that claim or
litigation, regardless of whether Landlord is required to, or in fact
does, initiate a crossclaim, counterclaim, or third-party claim, and
regardless of Tenant’s indemnity obligations.

i. The duty to arbitrate will survive the cancellation or termination of

this Lease.

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties
have executed this lease as of the day and year last written below.

PORT OF BROOKINGS-HARBOR, Tenant Zola’s on the Water, LLC
Landlord

Dated: Dated:
By:

Board Chairman Roy Davis By:
ATTEST: Title:

Commissioner

Mailing Address: Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 848
Brookings, OR 97415

Phone: 541-469-2218 Phone:

Fax: 541-359-3999 Fax:

Page 17 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial \3 \



ACTION ITEM — D

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Pacific Fishing Lease Extension
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

* Pacific Seafood has requested to exercise its option to extend the lease for an additional
three years commencing May 1, 2020 and continuing through April 30, 2023.

» Pacific Fishing has no outstanding balance with the Port and is an excellent tenant.

DOCUMENTS

¢ Pacific Seafood Letter dated November 5, 2019, 1 page
» Draft Commercial Lease Agreement Amendment No. 1, 1 page

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

¢ Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve draft Commercial Lease Agreement Amendment No. 1 with Pacific
Fishing for additional three years commencing May 1, 2020 and continuing through April
30, 2023.

RYA



PacificSeafooq

LEGAL & STRATEGIC AFFAIRS

November 5, 2019

16330 Lower Harbor Road
P.O. Box 848 -
Harbor, OR 97415

N
| |
Port of Brookings Harbor ‘ |.| \ L | \‘_}r

Re: 16060 Lower Harbor Road, Brookings, OR

Dear Sirs or Madam:

I write on behalf of Pacific Fishing, LLC, to notify you of our intent to renew the lease of
the above-described property. The current term is set to expire on April 30, 2020. Extension will
continue the lease for one (1) additional three (3) year term.

Please contact my office with any questions. Thank you for your assistance. We look

forward to continuing our relationship.

Sincerely,

e

Anthohy | Ponte
Gener sel

T: 503.905.4298
Tdalponte@pacseafood.com

Enclosures

Cc:  Cindy Stinnett, Controller (via e-mail)

wanwvipacliescalood cont




COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 1

This lease amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into by and between the Port of
Brookings Harbor (“Landlord”) and Pacific Fishing, LLC (“Tenant”) to amend the terms of
the commercial lease dated May 1, 2017.

1. AMENDMENTS. The following terms of the commercial lease agreement are
amended as follows:

1.01. The third subparagraph of paragraph 2.a. is amended to read as follows:

The initial term of this lease was for three years. Tenant exercised its option
to extend the least for an additional three years commencing May 1, 2020
and continuing through Aprif 30, 2023.

1.02. Paragraphs 2.b. and 2.c. are deleted from the lease agreement.

2. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS. All other terms and conditions of the original
lease agreement remain in full force and effect and remain unaffected hereby.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Amendment shall be effective as of the date that it is
executed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this agreement as of the date last
below written at Brookings, Oregon.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR, Pacific Fishing, LLC
Landlord Tenant

Dated: Dated:

By: By:

. Roy Davis, Board Chairman
Iits:

ATTEST:

Commissioner

124,



ACTION ITEM — E

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Satisfy Debt to Tidewinds-Kyle Aubin
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

* In March of 2017, the Port purchased a building on Port property for $18,000.
Monthly payments of $672 commenced in March with no interest. The seller
entered into a Port lease for $600 per month, therefore the Port's obligation of
$600 is exchanged for monthly rent, netting a monthly cash obligation of $72 on
the loan. Payoff of the loan is in 2037.

e This debt is budgeted in the Debt Service Fund, but all transactions occur in the
General Fund. Staff time and Auditor's time are spent with these transactions. If
the debt was paid in full the administrative, accounting, budgeting and auditing
processes in regards to this loan would cease.

o Staff recommends payment in full to Tidewinds/Kyle Aubin.

DOCUMENTS

* June 1, 2015 Lease with Tidewinds, 13 pages
¢ Notes Payable Report, 2 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

s First Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve and adopted to appropriate $14,760 from General Fund contingency
and Materials and Services to Debt Service Fund.

o Second Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve payment to Tidewinds/Kyle Aubin in the amount of $14,760.00 to
satisfy obligation.

|2S



LEASE

This lease is made and entered into at Brookings, Oregon this 1 day of June
2015, by and between the Port of Brookings Harbor (the Landlord) and Kyle Aubin (the
Tenant) dba as Tidewinds Sportfishing.

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, as the sole Charter Boat Operator in the Port’s
Retail Center and Launch Lot, approximately 735 square-feet of commercial retail space,
(the Premises), located at 16350 Lower Harbor Road, Suite 201, Brookings, Oregon for a
term commencing June 1, 2015 and continuing through May 31, 2020; at a Base Rental
of $668.85 (U.S.) per month payable in advance on the first day of each month, as per the
terms of the pre-rental agreement. Landlord grants to Tenant the option to lease said
retai] space for up to three additional five (5) year terms for up to a total of twenty (20)
years under these same terms, provided 1) Tenant is not in default; 2) Landlord does not
need the space for its own use; 3) Landlord is otherwise satisfied with Tenant’s use of
retail space in the previous term.

Tenant shall notify the Landlord in writing ninety (90) days prior to expiration of
the lease of tenant’s intent to exercise any option or to not extend the lease. Failure to
provide such notice is a default and a material breach of the lease and Landlord may
terminate the lease on the expiration date and retake possession of the Premises with or
without process of law.

Landlord and Tenant covenant and agree as follows:

1. Rent Payment. Tenant shall pay the base rent for the leased Premises and any
additional rent provided herein without deduction or offset. Base rent shall increase
annually, on each anniversary of the lease commencement for the second and each
subsequent year in the same percenlage of increase as the Consumer Price Index — all
items — Western Urban Index for the previous twelve months. Base rent shall include
all prior percentage increases. Rent for any partial month during the lease term shall
be prorated to reflect the number of days during the month that Tenant occupies the
Premises, Additional rent means any other sums payable by Tenant to Landlord
under this lease. At the end of the Lease agreement, a new Base Rent will be
established. Rent not paid when due shall bear an automatic $35.00 late fee each
month if not paid by the 10" of the month due.

2. Lease Consideration/Security Deposit. Upon execution of the lease, Tenant shall
pay base rent for the first full month of the lease term for which rent is payable. The
sum of $668.85 paid as lease consideration for the contiguous 735 square foot
building space, shall serve as lease consideration for this space as well. Landlord
may apply one month’s rent as lease consideration to pay the cost of performing any
obligation which Tenant fails to perform within the time required by this lease, but
such application by Landlord shall not be the exclusive remedy for Tenant’s default.
If the lease consideration is applied by the Landlord, Tenant shall on demand pay the
sum necessary to replenish the lease consideration to its original amount. To the

Page 1 — LEASE Initial gA 1 S
Date_¢«/ [ [

136



extent not applied by Landlord to cure defaults by Tenant, the lease consideration
shall be returned to Tenant upon termination of lease, or, by mutual agreement
between Landlord and Tenant, applied against the rent payable for the last month of
the term.

3. Use. Tenant shall use the premises as a retail for boat & marine products, fishing
licenses, charter services, and public information and for no other purpose without
Landlord’s written consent. In connection with its use, Tenant shall at its expense
promptly comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of any
public authority and not annoy, obstruct or interfere with the rights of other tenants of
the Building. Tenant, or its licensees, employees, or invitees, shall not create,
maintain or permit any nuisance or allow any objectionable fumes, noise, or
vibrations to be emitted from the Premises. Tenant shall not conduct any activities
that will increase Landlord’s insurance rates for any portion of the Building or that
will in any manner degrade or damage the reputation of the Building.

4. Equipment. Tenant shall install in leased Premises only such equipment as is
customary for retail use and shall not overload the floors or electrical circuits of the
Premises or Building or alter the plumbing or wiring of the Premises or Building,
except as reasonably necessary to install additional telephone and electrical lines.
Landlord must approve in advance the location and manner of installing any
electrical, heal generating or communication equipment or exceptionally heavy
articles. Any additional air conditioning required because of heat generating
equipment or special lighting installed by Tenant shall be installed and operated at
Tenant’s expense.

5. Sign. Notwithstanding those terms agreed upon in the pre-rental agreement, no signs,
awnings, antennas, or other apparatus shall be painted on or attached to the building
or anything placed on any glass or woodwork of the premises or positioned as to be
visible form the outside the premises without Landlord’s written approval as to
design, size, location, and color. All signs installed by Tenant shall comply with
Landlord’s standards for signs, and all applicable codes and signs and sign hardware
shall be removed upon termination of this lease with the sign location restored to its
formal state unless Landlord elects to retain all or any portion thereof,

6. Utilities and Services, Landlord shall furnish all utilities up to the Premises.
Tenant will maintain regular business hours, except holidays. Janitorial service for
the common areas will be provided in accordance with the regular schedule of the
Building, which schedule and service may change from time to time. Tenant shall
comply with all govemment laws or regulations regarding the use or reduction of use
of utilities on the Premises. Interruption, limitation, curtailment, or rationing of
services or utilities shall not be deemed an eviction or disturbance of Tenant’s use and
possession of the Premises, render Landlord liable to Tenant for damages, or relieve
Tenant from performance of Tenant’s obligations under this lease, but Landlord shall
take all reasonable sieps to correct any interruption in service. Electrical service

Page 2 — LEASE Initial _k i XS

Date_ st [/ &~ \%—1




furnished will be 110 volts unless different service already exists in the Premises.
Tenant will pay all his own utility bills.

7. Extra Usage. If Tenant uses excessive amounts of utilities or services of any kind
because of operation outside of normal Buifding hours, high demands from office
machinery and equipment, nonstandard lighting, or any other cause, Landlord may
impose a reasonable charge for supplying such extra utilities services, which charge
shall be payable monthly by Tenant in conjunction with rent payments. In case of
dispute over any extra charge under this paragraph, Landlord and Tenant by mutual
agreement shall designate a qualified independent engineer whose decision shall be
conclusive on both parties. Landlord and Tenant shall each pay one-half of the cost
of such determination.

8. Maintenance and Repair.

a. Tenant is at all times during the term of this lease, and at Tenant’s sole cost and
expense, obligated to keep the entire of the Premises and every part thereof in
good condition and repair; ordinary wear and tear and damage to the Premises by
earthqueke, act of God, or the elements excepted. Landlord has no obligation and
has made no promise to alter, remodel, improve, repair, decorate, or paint the
Premises or any part thereof, except as hereinafter listed. Landlord shall have the
right to erect scaffolding and other apparatus necessary for the purpose of making
repairs, and Landlord shall have no liability for interference with Tepant’s use
because of repairs and installations. Tenant shall have no claim against Landlord
for any interruption or reduction of services or interference with Tenant's
occupancy, and no such interruption or reduction shall be construed as a
constructive or otherwise eviction of Tenant. Repair of damage caused by
negligent or intentional acts or breach by this lease by Tenant, its employees or
invitees shall be at Tenant’s expense.

b. Landlord’s Obligations. The foliowing shall be the responsibility of Landlord:

(1) Repairs and maintenance of the roof and gutters, exterior walls (including
painting), bearing walls, structural members, floor slabs, and foundation.

(2) Repair of sidewalks, driveways, curbs, parking areas, and areas used in
common by Tenant and Landlord or Terants of other portions of the same
building.

(3) Repair and maintenance of existing exterior water, sewage, gas and
electrical services up the point of entry to the leased Premises,

(4) Repair of the heating system other than ordinary maintenance.

c. Tenant’s Obligations. The following shall be the responsibility of Tenant:

Page 3 — LEASE itial_{o/# 1 &
Date gt [ 12~

38



(1) Except for defects in installation, for the whole lease term, repair of
interior walls, ceilings, doors, windows, and related hardware, light
fixtures, swilches, and wiring and plumbing from the point of entry to the
Premises.

(2) Any repairs necessitated by the negligence of Tenant, its agents,
employees, and invitees, except as provided in Section 13 dealing with
waiver of subrogation, but including repairs that would otherwise be the
responsibility of Landlord under Section 8.b.

(3) Any repairs or alterations required under Tenant’s obligation to comply
with laws and regulations of any public authority.

(4) All other repairs to the premises which Landlord is not required to make
under Section 8.b.

(5) If Tenant fails to perform Tenant’s obligations under this paragraph 8.c or
under any other paragraph of this Lease, Landlord may enter upon the
Premises after ten (10) days® prior written notice to Lessee (except in case
of emergency, in which no notice shall be required), perform such
obligations on Tenant’s behalf and put the Premises in good order,
condition and repair, and the cost thereof together with interest thereon at
the maximum rate then allowable by law shal! be due and payable as
additional rent to Landlord together with Tenant’s next Base Rent
installment.

(6) On the last day of the term hereof, or on any sooner termination, Tenant
shall surrender the Premises to Landlord in the same condition as received,
ordinary wear and tear excepted, clean and free of debris. Any damage or
deterioration of the Premises shall not be deemed ordinary wear and tear if
the same could have been prevented by good maintenance practices.
Tenant shall repair any damage to the Premises otherwise stated in this
Lease. Tenant shall leave the air lines, power panels, electrical
distribution systems, lighting fixtures, space heaters, air conditioning,
plumbing and fencing on the Premises in good operating condition.

9. Alterations. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the
premises, change the color of the interior, or install any wall or floor covering without
landlord’s prior written consent. Any such additions, alterations, or improvements,
excepl for removable machinery and unattached movable trade fixtures, and approved
additions shall at once become part of the realty and belong to the Landlord.
Landlord may at its option require that tenant remove any alterations and restore the
premises to the original condition upon termination of this lease. Landlord shall have
the right to approve the contractor used by Tenant for any work in the premises, and
to post notices of non-responsibility in connection with any work being performed by
Tenpant in the Premises.

Page 4 — LEASE Initial /g A4 / ﬁ&
Date Gt ! L&

\3%



10. Indemnity. Tenant shall not allow any liens to attach to the Building or Tenant’s
interest in the Premises as a result of its activities. In the event that a materialman,
mechanic’s, or other lien is filed, or a claim of lien is made for work claimed to have
been done for Tenant, Landlord will have the option in his sole discretion of requiring
Tenant to post a Surety Bond within ten (10) days at Tenant’s expense or to pay and
discharge the lien, and Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord promptly upon demand.
These Landlord remedies are not exclusive as Landlord has other remedies as
provided by law including requiring Tenant to pay for Landlord’s attorney fees and
costs relating to any such lien. Tenant hereby waives all claims against Landlord for
damage to any property or injury, illness, or death of any person in, upon, or about the
Premises and/or the Building arising at any time and from any cause whatsoever than
solely by reason of the negligence or willful act of Landlord, its officers, employees,
or agents. Tenant shall hold Landlord harmless from and defend Landlord against
any and all claims or liability for damage to any property or injury, iliness, or death of
any person (a) occurring in or on the Premises or any part thereof arising at any time
and from any cause whatsoever other than solely by reason of the negligence or
willful act of Landlord, its officers, employees, or agents; or (b) occurring in, on, or
about any part of the Building other than the Premises when such damage, injury,
illness, or death shall be caused in whole or in part by the act, neglect, omission, or
fault of Tenant, its agents, servants, employees, invitees, or licensees (including,
without limitation, when such damage, injury, illness, or death shall have been caused
in part by Landlord, its officers, employees, or agents.) Landlord shall have no
liability to Tenant because of loss or damage caused by the acts or omissions of other
tenants of the Building, or by third parties. The provisions of this paragraph shall
survive the termination of this lease with respect to any damage, injury, illness, or
death occurring prior to such termination.

I1. Insurance. Tenant shall carry liability insurance and fire insurance with limits of not
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and
property damage, which insurance shall have an endorsement naming Landlord and
Landlord’s agent, if any, as additional insured and additional loss payee and covering
the liability insured under Paragraph 11 of this Lease. Tenant shall furnish a
certificate evidencing such insurance which shall siate that the coverage shall not be
cancelled or materially changed without ten (10) days advance notice to Landlord and
Landlord’s agent, if any, and a renewal certificate shall be furnished at lease ten (10)
days prior to expiration of any policy. Tenant shall be responsible to Landiord, and
shall reimburse and hold Landlord harmless for any bodily injury, fire, or property
damage not covered by insurance.

12, Exemption of Landlord from Liability. Tenant hereby agrees that Landlord
shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any loss of income therefrom or
for damage to the goods, wares, merchandise or other property of Tenant, Tenant's
employees, invites, customers, or any other person in or about the Premises or the
Port, nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, Tenant’s
employees, agents or conltractors, whether such damage or injury is caused by or

Pape 5 - LEASE Initial_}4A4 /8D
Date_&{ /[ +f \UrD




13.

14.

15,

results from fire, steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, leakage,
obstruction or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air
conditioning or lighting fixtures, or from any other cause, whether said damage or
injury results from conditions arising upon the Premises or upon other portions of the
Port, or from other sources or places and regardless of whether the cause of such
damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant.
Landlord shall not be liable for any damages arising from any act or neglect of any
other Tenant, occupant or user of the Port, nor from the failure of Landlord to enforce
the provisions of any other lease of the Port.

Major Damage. Major damage means damage by fire or other casualty to the
Building or Premises that causes the Premises or any substantial portion of the
Building to be unusable, or which will cost more than twenty-five percent (25%) of
the pre-damage value of the Building to repair, or which is not covered by insurance.
In case of major damage, Landlord or Tenant may elect to terminate this lease by
notice in writing to the other party within thirty (30) days after such date. If this lease
is not terminated following major damage, or if damage occurs that is not major
damage, Landlord shall promptly restore the Premises o the condition existing just
prior to the damage, with the exception of damage to Tenant improvements.
Restoration of any Tenant improvements or alterations installed by Tenant, and in
costs thereof, shall be the responsibility of the Tenant. Rent shall be reduced from the
date of damage until the date restoration work being performed by the Landlord is
substantially complete, with the reduction to be in proportion to the area of the
Premises not useable by Tenant.

Waiver of Subrogation. Tenant shall be responsible for insuring its personal
property and trade fixtures located on the Premises and any alterations or Tenant
improvements it has made to the Premises. Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be
liable to the other for any loss or damage caused by water damage, sprinkler leakage,
or any of the risks that are or could be covered by a standard all risk insurance policy
with an extended coverage endorsement, or for any business interruption, and there
shall be no subrogated claims by one party’s insurance carrier against the other party
arising out of any such loss.

Eminent Domain. If a condemning authority takes title by eminent domain or by
agreement in lieu thereof to the entire Building or a portion sufficient to render the
Premises unsuitable for Tenant’s use, then either party may elect to terminate this
lease effective on the date that possession is taken by the condemning authority;
provided, however, that a condition to the exercise by Tenant of such right to
terminate shall be that the portion of the Premises taken shall be of such extent and
nature as 10 substantially handicap, impede, or impair Tenant’s use of the balance of
the Premises. Rent shall be reduced for the remainder of the term in an amount
proportionate to the reduction in area of the Premises caused by the taking. All
condemnation proceeds shall belong to Landlord, and Tenant shall have no claims
against Landlord or the condemnation award because of the taking.

Page 6 — LEASE mitial_4 4 /8>

Date_ (1| / 14

|4



16. Assignment and Subletting. This lease shall bind and inure {o the benefit of the
parties, their respective heirs, successors, and assigns, provided that Tenant shall not
assign its interest under this lease or sublet all or any portion of the Premises without
first obtaining Landlord’s consent in writing. This provision shall apply to all
transfers by operation of law including but not limited to mergers and changes in
control of Tenant. No assignment shall relieve Tenant of its obligation to pay rent or
perform other obligations required by this lease and no consent to one assignment or
subletting shall be a consent to any further assignment or subletting. Landlord shall
not unreasonably withhold its consent to any assignment, or to subletting provided the
subrental rate or effective rental paid by the assignee is not less than the current
scheduled rental rate of the Building for comparable space and the proposed Tenant
has been approved by Landlord in writing. A new base rent may be established for
the remainder of the lease at the sole option of the Landlord. If Tenant proposes a
subletting or assignment to which Landlord is require 1o consent under this paragraph,
Landlord shall have the option of terminating this lease and dealing directly with the
proposed sub-tenant or assignee, or any third party. If an assignment or subletting is
permitted, any cash profit, or the net value of any other consideration recejved by
Tenant as a result of such transaction shall be paid to Landlord promptly following its
receipt by Tenant. Tenant shall pay any costs incurred by Landlord in connection
with a request for assignment or subletting, including reasonable attorney fees.

17. Parking. Landlord reserves the right to reassign the 4 parking spaces provided to
Tenant at anytime during the period of this lease with thirty (30) days written notice
to Tenant.

18. Default. Any of the following shall constitute & default by Tenant under this lease:

a. Tenant’s failure to pay rent or any other charge under this lease within ten (10)
days after its due, or failure to comply with any other term or condition within
iwenty (20) days following written notice from Landlord specifying the
noncompliance. If such noncompliance cannot be cured within the 20-day period,
this provision shall be satisfied if Tenant commences correction within such
period and thereafter proceeds in good faith and with reasonable diligence to
effect compliance as soon as possible. Time is of the essence of this lease.

b. Tenant’s insolvency, business failure or assignment for the benefit of its creditors.
Tenant’s commencement of proceedings under any provision of any bankruptcy
or insolvency law or failure to obtain dismissal of any petition filed against it
under such Jaws within the time required to answer, or the appointment of a
receiver for Tenant’s property.

c. Assignment or subletting by Tenant in violation of Paragraph 16 above.
d. Vacation or abandonment of Premises without the written consent of Landlord.

e. If this Lease is levied upon under any atlachment or execution and such
attachment or execution is not vacated within ten (10) days.

Page 7 - LEASE Initial &4 7 (&>

Date_6-! _/ 1L \L_‘l




19. Remedies for Default. In case of default as described above Landlord shall have the

right to the following remedies which are intended to be cumulative and in addition to
any other remedies provided under applicable law.

a. Landlord may terminate the lease and reenter and retake possession of the
Premises, and remove any persons or property by legal action or by self help with
the use of reasonable force and without liability for damages. Following such
retaking of possession, efforts by Landlord to relet the Premises shall be sufficient
if Landlord follows its usual procedures for finding tenants for the space at rates
not less than the current rates for other comparable space in the Building. If
Landlord has other vacant space in the Building, prospective tenants may be
placed in such other space without prejudice to Landlord’s claim to damages to
loss of rentals from Tenant.

b. Landlord may recover all damages caused by Tenant’s default which shall include
an amount equal to rentals lost because of the default, lease commissions paid for
this lease, all attomey fees and costs, and the unamortized cost of any Tenant
improvements installed by Landlord to meet Tenant’s special requirements.
Landlord may sue periodically to recover damages as they occur throughout the
lease term, and no action for accrued damages shall bar a later action for damages
subsequently accruing. Landlord may elect in any one action to recover accrued
damages plus damages atiributable to the remaining term of the lease. Such
damages shall be measured by the difference between the rent under this lease and
the reasonable rental value of the Premises for the remainder of the term,
discounted to the time of judgment at the prevailing interest rate on judgment.

c. Landlord may make any payment or perform any obligation which Tenant has
failed to perform, in which case Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenant
upon all demand all amounts so expended plus interest from the date of the
expenditure at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month. Any such
payment or performance by Landlord shall not waive Tenant's default.

20. Regulations. Landlord shall have the right (but shall not be obligated) to make,

revise, and enforce regulations or policies consistent with this lease for the purpose of
promoting safety, order, economy, cleanliness, and good service to all Tenants of the
Building. All such regulations and policies shall be complied with as if part of this
lease.

.Access. During times other than normal Building hours Tenant’s officers and

employees or those having business with Tenant may be required to identify
themselves or show passes in order to gain access to the Building. Landlord shall
have no liability for permitting or refusing to permit access to anyone. With
reasonable notice to Tenant, Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Premises
at any time by passkey or otherwise to determine Tenant’s compliance with this lease,
to perform necessary services, maintenance and repairs to the Building or the

Page 8 — LEASE initial /o @ / &

Date ¢~ [/ (4

\43



22.

24,

25,

26,

Premises, or to show the Premises to any prospective tenant or purchasers. Except in
case of emergency such entry shall be at such times and in such manner as to
minimize interference with the reasonable business use of the Premises by Tenant.

Furniture and Bulky Articles. Tenant shall move furniture and bulky articles in and
out of the Building or make independent use of the elevators only at times approved
by Landlord following at least twenty-four (24) hours written notice to Landlord of
the intended move. Landlord will not unreasonably withhold its consent under this
paragraph.

. Notices. Notices to the parties relating to the lease shall be in writing, effective

when delivered, or if mailed, effective on the second day following mailing, postage
prepaid, to the address for the parly stated in this lease or to such other address as
either party may specify by notice to the other. Notice to Tenant may always be
delivered to the Premises. Rent shall be payable to Landlord at the same address and
in the same manner, but shall be considered paid only when received.

Subordination. This lease shall be subject and subordinate to any mortgages, deeds
of trust, or land sale contracts (hereafier coliectively referred to as encumbrances)
now existing against the Building. At Landlord’s option this lease shall be subject
and subordinate to any future encumbrance hereafter placed against the Building
(including the underlying land) or any modifications of existing encumbrances, and
Tenant shall execute such documents as may reasonably be requested by Landlord or
the beholder of the encumbrance to evidence this subordination.

Transfer of Building. If the Building is sold or otherwise transferred by Landlord or
any successor, Tenant shall attorn to the purchaser or transferee and recognize it as
the Landlord under this lease, and, provided the purchaser assumes all obligations
hereunder, the transferor shall have no further liability hereunder.

Estoppel. Either party will within twenty (20) days afier notice from the other
execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other party a cerlificate whether or not this
lease has been modified and is in full force and effect, whether there are any
modifications or alleged breaches by the other party; the dates to which rent has been
paid in advance, and the amount of any security deposit or prepaid rent; and any other
facts that may be reasonably requested. Failure to deliver the certificate within the
specified time shall be conclusive upon the party of whom the certificate was
requested that the lease is in full force and effect and has not been modified except as
may be represented by the party requesting the certificate. If requested by the holder
of any encumbrance or any ground lessor, Tenant will agree to give such holder or
lessor notice of and an opportunity to cure any defaull by Landlord under this lease,
Unresolved good faith disputes between Landlord and Tenant shall be resolved
pursuant to mandatory binding arbitration.

Page 9 — LEASE Initial_lafr / ¥

Date_¢-1_/ g

4y



27.

28.

29.

30.

31,

Attorney’s Fees. In any litigation or arbitration arising out of this lease, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover aitorney fees at trial, on any appeal, or in
any other proceeding.

Quiet Enjoyment. Landlord warrants that so long as Tenant complies with all terms
of this lease, it shall be entitled to peaceable and undisturbed possession of the
Premises free from any eviction or disturbance by Landlord. Landlord shall have no
liability to Tenant for loss or damages arising out of the acts of other tenants of the
Building or third parties, nor any liability for any reason which exceeds the value of
its interest in the Building.

Complete Agreement. This lease and the attached Addenda and floor plan, if any,
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and supersede all prior written and oral
agreemenis and representations. Neither Landlord nor Tenant is relying on any
representations other than those expressly set forth herein. Any modification to this
Lease agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties.

Nonwaiver, Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provision of this
lease shall not be a waiver of or prejudice of the party’s right to require strict
performance of the same provision in the future or of any other provision.

Real Property Taxes.

a. Payment of Taxes. Tenant shall pay the real property tax, as defined in
paragraph 31.c, applicable to Tenant’s portion of the Port as represented by the
Lease,

b. Additional Improvements. Tenant shall be responsible for paying Tenant's
share of any increase in real property tax specified in the Tax Assessor’s records
and work sheets as being caused by additional improvements placed upon the Port
by other Tenants or by Landlord for the exclusive enjoyment of such other
Tenants.

¢. Definition of “Real Property Tax". As used herein, the term “real property tax”
shall include any form of real estate tax or assessment, general, special, ordinary
or extraordinary, and any license fee, commercial rental tax, improvement bond or
bonds, levy or tax (other than inheritance, personal income or estate taxes)
imposed on the Port or any portion thereof by any authority having the direct or
indirect power to tax, including any city, county, state or federal government, or
any school, agricultural, sanitary, fire, street, drainage or other improvement
district thereof.

. Severability. The invalidity of any provision of this Lease as determined by a court

of competent jurisdiction, shall in no way affect the validity of any other provisions
herein.

Page 10 — LEASE Initial [ad A

Date g-( /|45



33. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the obligations to be
performed under this Lease.

34. Security Measurers. Tenant hereby acknowledges that Landlord shall have no
obligation whatsoever to provide guard service or other security measures for the
benefit of the tenant, Premises or the Port. Tenant assumes all responsibility for the
protection of Tenant, its agents, and invitees and the property of Tenant from acts of
third parties. Nothing herein contained shall prevent Landlord, at Landlord’s sole
option from providing security protection for the Port or any part thereof.

35. This Lease is not subject to any implied warranties, but is leased “as is”.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the duly authorized representatives of {Re_parties have
executed this lease as of the day and year first written above.

LANDLORD: C
Port of Brookings Harbor By .

Nam y Davis

Title: Chairman Date:

TENANT:
Tidewinds Sportfishing By™7 >
Name: Kyle Aubin

Title: Owner Date:

Address:

Phone No. 541-469-0337

Page 11 - LEASE mitial KA 7 B>
a4

Date L! /

|4




Agreament Between Port of Braokings Harbor and Kyle Aubin dba Tidewinds Charters Regarding Lease
Terms

1. Tidewinds Charters is the sole large-scale and longest-running charter business in the Port of
Brookings, and in fact has arguably the largest fleet on the Oregon Coast. The business attracts
substantial traffic to the Port of Brookings harbor and the surround community. Further, all
three vessels are based in Brookings year-round and utilize all port infrastructure for fuel, ice
and necessary repairs.

2. Tidewinds proposes to occupy that setail space of approximately 640 square feet formerly
occupied by “Seadog Marine,” to carry on its businesses of charter fishing and Bait and tackle
sales, which businesses are currently ongoing within structures located on port property but
owned by Kyle Aubin.

3. Term of the lease is five years with three successive options to extend for a period of five years
each, or a total of twenty years. Lease is subject to normal provisions of port leases otherwise,
including the normal escalation factor used in port leases, based on cost-of-living increases in
that region or area determined to most closely align with economic activity of Southern Curry
County, Oregon.

4. Tidewinds and the Port agree and acknowledge that this lease agreement is materially
conditioned on certain covenants and warranties made by the parties: specifically that because
Tidewinds Charters currently owns its own buildings and is paying a fixed rental for ground lease
only. It is to the benefit of the Port, and in accordance with the tasks set out in its current
strategic plan, to terminate certain long-term leases as described above to allow the planning
and development of future retail space in accordance with said strategic plan.

S. Therefore, in return for the promise to enter into the above-described long ~term lease with the
Port, Tidewinds Charters agrees to sell, in return for diminished rent, the above described
bullding for a purchase price of $18,000.00.

6. The Port agrees to immediately demolish the buildings upon Tidewinds’ occupation of the new
space, and not rent said real property locations ar within that retail facility that Tidewinds is
occupying to any business that is in competition or could be deemed to be in competition with
Tidewinds' businesses. This shall be considered a material term of this agreement.

7. The Port promises to credit Kyle Aubin dba Tidewinds Charters for this purchase price in the
following manner: Initial rent for the new space rent will be $672.00 per month, with $600.00
per month to be paid by Aubin in cash and the remainder to be deducted from the purchase
credit in his account. 5aid credits shall at any time be applicable, at the sole discretion of Aubin,
against current amounts due to the Port of Brookings Harbor and ultimately as credits for port-
constructed tenant improvements for replacement space when constructed by the Port of
Brookings Harbor. Said replacement space is forecast to be constructed, for purposes of this
agreement within five years and shall be deemed a material part of this agreement. in other
words, if a material term of this agreement is breached by the Port, Kyle Aubin dba Tidewinds

4P



Charters shall be entitled to terminate his agreement with the Port and be fully reimbursed for
the unpald credit remaining at the time of such breach.

-
Signed and Agreed this 10™ day ofﬁgls between

> —

Kyie Aubin dba Tidewinds Charters

4

Ted Htzgerald, Manager, Port of Brookings Harbor

1e



Z jo | ebeg &\I
p——
00 #86'S1 00z ""SEUYDING PUET 10} Ujgny Ay /Buiysi4 bods apwmapll eqp sialey) pumam Joj luawssiby sad 05928102 BLOZ/L0/L0 a0loAu|
00'g50'9L 0024 "SBUYING PUBT Joj UIGNY Ay Buys)d vodg spwaplL Bqp SIBLEYD pumapi) Jo} juswaiby Jad £EEZOI0Z 2102/L0/90 8210AU|
00'8zZL'9L 0022 " 'SeyaIng puen) o} uigny #4Buiysiy bods apwaplL eqp siapey) puwmapl) Joj uawasiby Jag S081810Z 8L0Z/L0/S0 ao10nU|
00'00Z'94 002L- ""SBYMNG puen Joj uigny jAx/Guys)3 bods apmaplL eqp s1epELD puwmapl] Joj uswaaiby Jad Z9Z1L8102 L0/ LO/PO 80j0AU|
00zLZ'9l 00'2.- “SEYING PUET Joj uigny SAM/GUNStd HodS apMWapiL BaP SIBHBUD PUMAP) J0) IUSWaiBy Jad SKOVL102Z 2L02/LO/E0 a010AU]
00Fre’gl 0022 ""SEYDING pue Joj uigny alAy/Buisid hods apmap)t eqp sieley) pumwapiL Joj Juswsaibiy Jad PPOPLLOZ BLOZ/LOMZO 3010AU|
00°9L¥'91 0024 " SBYMN PUBT Jo} LIGNY HAMBULS|Y HOdS opMBIL BQP SISUBUD PUMaPI] Jo} luswaaiby sad EPOPLLOZ BLOZ/LO/LO o10AU)
00'88%'91 002~ " 'seyding pue Joj uigny aiAy/Buiys|y bodg apmapll 2qp siaiey) pumapy) Joj luawaaiby Jad ZPOPLLOZ LLOZ/LO/ZL aatoAU)
00'095'9) 00'ZL- " 'SBYMNg puen Joj ujany aifxyBulysiy vods apmaplL eqp siaieys) puwmam) 1oj juawaaiby jad LPOPLLOZ LLOZ/L0NML aojonu)
002e9°91 00'ZL- “SBYMNG pue Joj uigny aiiyBuys|d podg apwmapll eqp siepeyD puwapl) Joj juawaaiby sad OPOPLLOZ LLOZ/LO/OL 8910AU)
00'¥02'91 00'2L- "SBUHNG PUET Joj uany alfyyBulysid HodS apmaplL eqp SISMeUD PUMaPIL J0) luawaaiby sad LOO¥LLOZ 2102/1L0/60 [0I0A)
00'922'01 002L- "SBUINS pueT Joj wany aliyyBuys|d Hods apwaplL eqp sIBUeYD puwapit 40) juawaaiby sad ZSYELLOZ £102/10/90 aojoAu}
00'8¥8'oL 00'2L- "'SBUNING puen Joj uigny aiiyBuysid odg apwap] eqp siepeyD puwapll 10} juawaiby sad 6PPZLIOZ LL0Z/10/L0 ajoAu}
00'026'01 00°24- “"SBUING PUET Joj uigny atAyBuIysIy Hodg apwaptl eqp siaueUD puwMaAP!L 10} luswaiby Jad O¥BLLLOZ LLOZ/L0/90 aa10AU|
00'266'91 0022 " 'SBUMING PueT so uigny atkyBuisiy vods apwaptL edp sislieyd puwspll 10) juawaaiby Jad SPGLLLOZ LLOZN0/SO a9(0A|
00°90'21 go'ze- " 'seydng pue sop uigny siiy/Buiysiy vods apwapi | eqp siapeyn pumapt) 10) juawsaiby Jag SSELLLOZ Z1LOZNOIM0 29|0Au|
00'SEL' 2L 00'zZL- “'SEUZING PUET Jo} uqny aiA)/BuUISId HodS apmapil eqp SISHBYD PUMBPLL 10) uawadlby Jad 2202102 LLOZIO/S0 anloau|
00'802°21 ooeL- “'SBUING PUET Joj uigny ajAyBulys|d odS apwaplL eqp Siaueys) puwepl] Joj juawaaiby Jad 82502102 L102/10/20 80j0AY|
00°08Z'£L 00'zL- “'SeuydIng pue Joj wany aiAxBuys)d nodg apwaepLl eqp sJapeyD puwapl] 1o) Juawsaiby Jad #800£102 L10Z/0/10 a910AU|
00'Z5E'2L oo'zL- “"SBUINg puET oy uiany 8|AysBulysid Yods apwapl] eqp sisuRYD pumap!] 10} luawaasby Jad 82299102 9102/10/ZL 20|0AU|
00'vZr L1 00TL "'SBLING pueT oy uigny ajAyBuiysid LodS apwaplL eqp SisueYD puwmapl] 10) Juswaaiby Jad 92659102 910Z/L0/L1 80j0AU|
00°96¥' L) oo'zL- “'Seyaung pue Joj uigny ajAy;Bujysiy Hodg apwapii eqp siSUBYD puMapLL 10} 1wawaalby Jag £PPS910Z 9L0Z/L0/0L 20j0AU|
00'895'2L ooeL- “'SeyNg pueT oy wany sjAyBuys1y pods SpMapLL eqp SIaURYD puwap! | 10) Juswaalby Jad 9L8+910Z 9L02/10/60 S010AU|
000v9'LL 002ZL- “"SBUAING PUBT 10) WGNY 8|ANBUIYSIS HODS SPMSPLL BOP SJBLBYD PUWEpL | J0) JUaWSaibBy Jad 809102 9L0Z/LO/GO0 80j0AU|
00°2ML'LL 910z A 72 aunr Joj siuawded jo uoneacje Bunoawod  LZ6E910Z GLOZILELD a0joAu|
00'ZLL'LL 00'eL- “'SBYNG PUBT 0} Uigny ajAx;BUIySId HOdS SpMBRLL BOP SIEUBYD pUwEpl) J0) JuBWsaIby Jad 202€9102 91L0Z/1L0/L0 2010AU|
00'¥8LZL ooeL " 'SeydInd pue Joj uigny ajAy;Guiysiy Lods Spwmapl) eqp SIBURYD pUMSpIL 10 uswsaiby Jad £9619102 910Z/1L0/90 2010AU)|
00'958'21 00'2L- "'SBUDING PUET J0J LNy 21AY;6UIYSIJ LodS SpwapiL eqp S1seyD pumapl) Joj Juawaallby iad LOS1L9L0Z SL0Z/20/S0 aojonu)
00°826'41 00°000'a1 Buipinq spumaply jo aseyund pI0JY  £1-OL-VIW OLOZ/LE/ED  [BWNOP |RIBUID
00°'22- 00'zeL- “"SeYINd pue 1o} uigny ajAx/Buysiy Lods spmapil eqp SIBURYD pumaplL Jo) uewaalby Jad 6209102 SLOZILEIE0 2OALY
ugny ajfy-eseyaing Apedoid - 5¢z2
s|qefed seloN - 00ZZ
aaugjeg junowy owal wnp ajeq adAy

uigny 9jAy - aseyaing Buipjing
JoqdeH sBunjooug jo Hod



Z 1oz efieq m
o
00'2er- 0Z-610Z JeaA (B35t pled (ed|duud
00'v98- 61-810Z JE2A [23SI] pled (ediduug
00°09L'F%1L 00°09L'v} Ivi0L
00°092'71 00°09L'v} s|geded S|ON - DOZZ [RI0L
00°092'%1 00°08L'kL ulgny ajhy-aseyang Apadold - 5E2Z (@101
00°09L'vL
0009L'vL "SELRING pue $0) uqny akyBuiysid pods apwapl) eqp s1apeyD puwaplL o) uawaalby 1ad 0Z0zZ/101L0 a(0Au|
00'09L'p1 “'seyang puer) foj wgny siAyBuiysid nods apwapl) eap SI9UED puMap! L 10) Juswaaiby Jad 0202/10/90 aoaY|
000921 "SeuIng pueT oy uiany Ay Bunsiy bods spwapLL eqp sI9UBYD puwmapl] 10} Juawaby Jad 0202/10/50 SOAY|
000921 “"SBUYMNG PUBT Jof UIgny SiAN/Guysiy Hodg apwmaply eqp SISLEYD PUMIPLL 10} Jusweaiby Jad 020Z/L0/%0 aa10AU|
00'09L'vL “'seyung puen Joj uigny jAM/BuRISI NOdS apwaplL eqp SIBMEYD puwmapl] Joj auiaaby Jay 0202/10/£0 anioau|
00'082'1 “'SBYNg puer] Joj uigny ajANGuys|d Hodg apmapil BQP SIaNBYD PUMap) J0j luawadiby Jad 0202/10/20 8vj0nU)
0009 L “"SEYAINg pueT Joj uigny ajfyyBuiysiy pods apwmapt) Bqp S1aleyD pUWMapLL Joj Juawaaiby 1ad 0202/10/L0 3T0AL
00'09L'%4 0022 “'seydINg puE Joj uigny aixBuius|d Hodg apwapiL eqp siapeyD pumwap) Joj luawaaiby 19y EEOL610Z 6LOZILO/ZL SI0AU)
00'ZEa'pL 00'2L- "SBUNG PUBT J0) uigny SiAx/Dulysiy nodg apwaplL eqp sISPey) pumaplL 1o) luawsaiby sag L0SE6L0Z 6LOZ/1OML 80(0AU)
00'+06'pL o'z "SeudInd pueT 10j uany ajAx/Buiysid nods apwmapt] eqp sialey?) puwaptl o) uswaalby Jad 69LEBLOZ 6LOZ/LO/OL 3VI0AU)
00°926'¢L oo'eL- “"SBUING pUEN Joj ulgny a(AyBulys|J HodS apwmaplL eqp sIBURYD pumapl] 10) luswasuby Jod 99106102 6L02/10/60 29(0AU|
00'8¥0'S 00'2L- “SEUNG puEn 10) uigny alAnBuys)d uods apweplL egp SJlBLD puwmapl] Jo) uatuaaby Jad 891L0610Z 640Z/10/80 20j0AU|
00'0ZL'S) 00'eL- “"SBUMNG pueT o ulgny ajAy;Buiysid Hods epwaplL eqp sIBNEYD PUMBPLL 10} JuBWeBIBY Jad 89L0610Z 6102/10/L0 89j0Au|
002615 00'2L- : ~seling pue 10} ujgny Ay Buysly u_ﬂm SPHADLL EGP SISNEUD PUMBPIL 10j Juawaaiby mn_ 2526102 610271090 80/0AU|
00'b9Z's| 00'2L "'SBUMNA PUBT Jo} UIgRY 3jAysBulysis podg spwapl) eqp s1apeu puwaply o) luaweaiby Jed 9ZL1610Z 6L0Z/L0/50 210U
00'9¢E'51 00ZL- "'SeyaIng pue Joj uigny 8)AyBuistd nods apwmapl) BQp SIANRYD puwepl 10 Juawealby Jad 86EL6102 6102710740 3010AL|
00'80F'SL 00'2L- “'seynd pue Joj ujgny ajAysBuiysid lods epwmeni] eqp stsireyl) puwaply Joy juawaalby sag 01806102 610Z/10/E0 aa(0Auy
00°08¥'S1 00'2L- " SBUNG Pue Joj uigny ajAy/Buiysiy wodg apwapt) eqp sialeyD pUWAPIL o) Juawaalby sed L¥S0610Z 6102/10/20 aa10Al|
00'255'G1 002s- “SBUN pueT Joj uigny apfyBuilsid pods apwmapiL eqp sisley) pumapiL Jo) luawwaalby Jag 96006102 610Z10/L0 FHOAY|
00 #29'G1 00'zs- " 'SBUIING pue o) uigny aikyBuysiy vods spwaprl eqp s1apeyD puwaplL 10} Juaaalby Jag 59858102 |LOZ/L0/ZL 3ToAU)|
00'969'G1 002 “SBUMING pue Joj uiqny aiAyBuysiy pods apwiapl) Bgp S1BUBYD PUMBPLL Joj uawaesiby sy 00158102 8102Z/L0/L1L 8210AU|
00'894'G1 00°2L- “SeydINg pue 1o uigny Ay Buysid wods apwepl) eqp sispEY] puwapl] Joj uawadlby Jad LELPRLOZ BLOZ/LO/0L aojoAU
00°'0va'SL ooz "SeLUN pue o) uigny akyBuiysiy uods apwaply eqp s1BUEYD PUMBPIL JO) JuBlaRMBY Jad OVZYR10Z 8L0Z/10/60 82j0AU)
00Z16'GL 00'zL “"SeuINd PUET jop any Ay Buiisid uods apwmaply eqp sisuBYD puwmapl) Jo} Juswasiby Jad LO9ERL0Z B10Z/L0/80 8010AU)

uigny 3jAy - aseyaind Buipjing
Joquel sBunjooug jo Ji0d



ACTION ITEM — F

DATE: December 17, 2019

RE:

TO:

Service Contracts for Calendar Year 2020

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

Throughout year the Port uses various services and purchased goods that exceeded the
Port Manager’s calendar limit of $10,000 per vender. Services or goods that exceed
$10,000 require Board approval.

Service contracts the Port is requesting over the $10,000 limit:
o Earthwork (not-to-exceed $20,000)
o Electrical (not-to-exceed $15,000)
o Marine Fuel (not-to-exceed $750,000)

Other service contracts the Port plans to execute under the $10,000 limit may include:
o Welding at hourly rate
o Port equipment maintenance
o Fuel Tank Service

The Port is limited to two suppliers (Carson Oil & Tyree Qil) for marine grade fuel.
Pricing various depending on market fluctuation and then trucking availability also
determines the delivery. Carson Qil and Tyree Qil are the only two suppliers that have
approved delivery/spill prevention plans with the Port.

DOCUMENTS

None

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

First Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the limits of service contracts and purchase of goods:
(1) Earthwork (not-to-exceed $20,000)

(2) Electrical (not-to-exceed $15,000)

Second Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve the purchase Marine Fuel for Commercial and Sport Vessels not-to-
exceed $750,000 from Carson Qil or Tyree Oil during the 2020 calendar year.

IS\



ACTION ITEM — G

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

* This year, the Oregon Legislature passed Senate Bill 479 requiring the establishment or
adoption of a written policy (with very specific policy provisions) to prevent workplace
harassment, discrimination and retaliation. This new legislation goes into effect
on January 1, 2020 and we are required to have a policy in place that meets the
requirements of SB 479 by January 1, 2020. This applies to ALL districts, including
those with no employees.

 SDAO provided a templet policy for districts to use and modify to meet their needs.

DOCUMENTS

* Draft Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy (SDAO templet), 5 pages
» SB 479, 10 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

+ Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy.

\S2



PREVENTION OF WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT,
AND RETALIATION (OREGON PUBLIC SECTOR)

The Port of Brookings Harbor is committed to a work environment in which all individuals are
treated with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to work in a professional
atmosphere that promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits unlawful discriminatory
practices, including harassment. Therefore, The Port of Brookings Harbor expects that all
relationships among persons will be respectful and professional, free of bias, prejudice and
harassment in the workplace, at work related event, or any activity coordinated by or through the
organization. This policy applies to all employees, elected officials, board or commission
members, volunteers, interns and any other person we interact with in the course of
accomplishing the work of the organization.

The Port of Brookings Harbor has developed this policy to ensure that all its employees can work
in an environment free from unlawful harassment, discrimination and retaliation. The Port of
Brookings Harbor will make every reasonable effort to ensure that all concerned are familiar
with these policies and are aware that any complaint in violation of these policies will be
investigated and resolved appropriately.

Discrimination, harassment and retaliation are not acceptable.

Any employee who has questions or concerns about these policies should talk with our primary
contact the Port Manager or Human Resource and as an alternative you may reach the
Harbormaster.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

It is our policy to ensure equal employment opportunity without discrimination or harassment on
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age,
disability, marital status, citizenship, national origin, genetic information, or any other
characteristic protected by law.

RETALIATION

We encourage reporting of all perceived incidents of discrimination or harassment. It is the
policy of The Port of Brookings Harbor to promptly and thoroughly investigate such reports. We
prohibit retaliation against any individual who reports discrimination or harassment or
participates in an investigation of such reports.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Sexual harassment constitutes discrimination and is illegal under federal and state laws. For the
purposes of this policy, *“sexual harassment” is defined, as in the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission Guidelines, as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other

12 [Dute]




PREVENTION OF WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT,
AND RETALIATION (OREGON PUBLIC SECTOR)

verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when, for example: a) submission to such conduct
is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s employment, b)
submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment
decisions affecting such individual, or ¢) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably
interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or
offensive working environment.

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 recognizes two types of sexual harassment: a) quid pro
quo and b) hostile work environment. Sexual harassment may include a range of subtle and not-
so-subtle behaviors and may involve individuals of the same or different gender. Depending on
the circumstances, these behaviors may include unwanted sexual advances or requests for sexual
favors; sexual jokes and innuendo; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; commentary about an
individual’s body, sexual prowess or sexual deficiencies; leering, whistling or touching; insulting
or obscene comments or gestures; display in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects or
pictures; and other physical, verbal or visual conduct of a sexual nature.

Oregon Law provides further protection from sexual assault defined as unwanted conduct of a
sexual nature that is inflicted upon a person or compelled through the use of physical force,
manipulation, threat, or intimidation.

HARASSMENT

Harassment on the basis of any other protected characteristic is also strictly prohibited. Under
this policy, harassment is verbal, written or physical conduct that denigrates or shows hostility or
aversion toward an individual because of his or her race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity or expression, national origin, age, disability, marital status, citizenship, genetic
information, or any other characteristic protected by law, or that of his or her relatives, friends or
associates, and that: a) has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive
work environment, b) has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s
work performance, or c} otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment opportunities.

Harassing conduct includes labels, insults or negative stereotyping; threatening, intimidating or
hostile acts; demeaning jokes; and written or graphic material that belittles or shows hostility or
dislike toward an individual or group that is placed on walls or elsewhere on the employer’s
premises or circulated in the workplace, on company time or using company equipment by e-
mail, phone (including voice messages), text messages, social networking sites or other means.

REPORTING AN INCIDENT OF HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION OR
RETALIATION

The Port of Brookings Harbor encourages reporting of all perceived incidents of discrimination,
harassment or retaliation, regardless of the offender’s identity or position. Individuals who
believe that they have been the victim of such conduct should discuss their concerns with the

)5 (Due)




PREVENTION OF WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT,
AND RETALIATION (OREGON PUBLIC SECTOR)

Port Manager, Human Resource or the Harbormaster. See the complaint procedure described
below.

In addition, we encourage individuals who believe they are being subjected to such conduct to
promptly advise the offender that their behavior is unwelcome and to request that it stop. Often
this action alone will resolve the problem. We recognize, however, that an individual may prefer
to pursue the matter through complaint procedures.

Following receipt of a complaint or concern management will follow-up every three months for
one year to ensure no further concerns or retaliation are experienced. Employees should not wait
for the management follow-up to share related experiences. If an employee would like the
follow-up to discontinue the follow-up process a request must be submitted in writing to The
Port Manager.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Individuals who believe they have been the victims of conduct prohibited by this policy or
believe they have witnessed such conduct should discuss their concerns with the Port Manager if
you are unable to reach the primary contact please reach out to the Human Resource or the
Harbormaster. We encourage employees to document the event(s), associated date(s), and
potential witnesses.

The Port of Brookings Harbor encourages the prompt reporting of complaints or concerns so that
quick and helpful action can be taken before relationships become irreparably broken. Early
reporting and intervention have proven to be the most effective method of resolving actual or
perceived incidents of harassment. However, complaints and concerns may be brought forward
within four years of the alleged violation. We encourage employees to document the events,
associated dates, and potential witnesses.

Any reported allegations of harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be investigated quickly.
The investigation may include individual interviews with the parties involved and, where
necessary, with individuals who may have observed the event(s) or may have other relevant
knowledge.

The Port of Brookings Harbor will maintain confidentiality throughout the investigatory process
to the extent possible with acceptable investigation and appropriate corrective action.

Misconduct constituting harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be dealt with
appropriately. Responsive action may include, for example, training, referral to counseling or
corrective action such as [Identify potential options: warning, reprimand, withholding of a
promotion or pay increase, reassignment, temporary suspension without pay, or termination] as
The Port of Brookings Harbor believes appropriate under the circumstances.

}fs’— [Date]



PREVENTION OF WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT,
AND RETALIATION (OREGON PUBLIC SECTOR)

False and malicious complaints of harassment, discrimination or retaliation (as opposed to
complaints that, even if erroneous, are made in good faith) may be the subject of appropriate
disciplinary action.

EXTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

We encourage employees to bring their concerns and complaints to the organization, and
understand that, at times, this may not be the choice of the employee. Below is a list of the
external complaint options. Please reach out to the preferred choice to determine the appropriate
timelines for their processes.

¢ Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries at the following web address:
https://www.oregon.gov/boli/CRD/Pages/C_Crcompl.aspx

e Civil or Criminal Action. In these circumstances, a Notice of Claim must be provided to
us in accordance with ORS 30.275.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

No employee will be required or invited to sign an agreement requiring the non-disclosure of
information related to discrimination or sexual assault as a condition of employment, continued
employment, promotion, compensation or the receipt of benefits. An employee may request this
type of agreement and, upon request, will be provided at least seven (7) days to change their
mind.

ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEE SUPPORT SERVICES

Employees may choose to use other support services throughout and following instances related
to concerns and complaints. The organization provides the following for additional assistance:

e QOregon State Bar Association https://www.osbar.org/index.htmi

s Psychology today https://www.psychologytoday.com/us
e Your primary healthcare provider

/S-é [Datc] -



Port of Brookings Harbor
POLICY RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

As an employee of Port of Brookings Harbor, | acknowledge the following:

| have been provided a copy of the Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy. | understand that
the Policy contains important information. | have both read and understood the information in the Policy
and have asked a Manager for the clarification of any information | did not understand.

| acknowledge the Policy is neither a contract of employment nor a guarantee of specific treatment in any
situation; that the organization has the right to change, modify, add to, substitute, eliminate, interpret,
and apply, in its sole judgment and in accordance with the law this policy. | understand this Policy
supersedes all prior policies, and understandings related to the subjects it contains.

The Board of Commissioners are the only persons authorized to make changes to the Policy and all such
changes must be in writing to be valid. Any changes to the content will be communicated to employees via
official notices.

| understand that, unless stated otherwise in an employment contract, my employment relationship
with the organization is “at-will” and either the organization or | can end the relationship at any time,
with or without reason or notice. The Board of Commissioners is the only person who has the authority to
enter into an employment contract, which must be in writing and signed by both parties to be valid.

I also acknowledge that before signing this form, | asked for and received clarification on any of the items
discussed above that | did not understand.

Employee Signature Date

Print Employee's Name

NOTE: This signed form should be inserted into each employee’s
personnel file.

\S7



80th OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY-2019 Regular Session

Enrolled
Senate Bill 479

Sponsored by Senators GELSER, KNOPP; Senator MONNES ANDERSON, Representatives
HAYDEN, KENY-GUYER, NOBLE (Presession filed.)

AN ACT

Relating to workplace harassment; creating new provisions; amending ORS 659A.820, 659A.875 and
659A.885; and prescribing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

SECTION 1. Sections 1a to 4 of this 2019 Act are added to and made a part of ORS
chapter 243,

SECTION 1a. As used in sections la to 4 of this 2019 Act:

(1) “Public employer” has the meaning given that term in ORS 260.432,

(2) “Sexual assault” means unwanted conduct of a sexual nature that is inflicted upon a
person or compelled through the use of physical force, manipulation, threat or intimidation,

(3) “Workplace harassment” means conduct that constitutes discrimination prohibited
by ORS 658A.030, including conduct that constitutes sexual assault or that constitutes con-
duct prohibited by ORS 859A.082 or 659A.112.

SECTION 2. (1) A public employer shall establish and adopt a writien policy that seeks
to prevent workplace harassment that occurs between employees or between an employer
and an employee in the workplace or at a work-related event that is off the employment
premises and coordinated by or through the employer, or betiween an employer and an em-
ployee off the employment premises.

(2} The policy must include:

(a) A statement prohibiting workplace harassment;

(b) Information explaining that a victim of workplace harassment has a right to seek
redress through the employer’s internal process provided under section 3 of this 2019 Act,
through the Bureau of Labor and Industries’ complaint resolution process under ORS
659A.820 to 659A.865 or under any other available law, whether civil or criminal, including:

(A) The timeline under which relief may be sought;

{B) Any available administrative or judicial remedies; and

(C) The advance notice of claim against a public body that a claimant must provide as
required under ORS 30.275;

(c) A statement that a person who reports workplace harassment has the right to be
protected from retaliation;

(d) A statement of the scope of the policy, including that the policy applies to elected
public officials, volunteers and interns;

(e) An explanation that a victim of workplace harassment may voluntarily disclose in-
formation regarding an incident of workplace harassment that involves the victim;

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 1

\SS



(f) Information to connect a victim of workplace harassment with legal resources and
counseling and support services, including any available employee assistance services;

(g) A statement that an employer may not require or coerce an employee to enter into
a nondisclosure or nondisparagement agreement, including a description of the meaning of
those terms;

(h) An explanation that an employee claiming to be aggrieved by workplace harassment
may voluntarily request to enter into an agreement described in section 4 (2) of this 2019
Act, including a statement that explains that the employee has at least seven days to revoke
the agreement; and

(i) A statement that advises employers and employees to document any incidents of
workplace harassment.

(3) A public employer shall provide a copy of the policies described in this section to each
employee and shall include a copy of the policies in any orientation materials that are pro-
vided to new employees at the time of hire.

(4) If an employee discloses any concerns about workplace harassment to a supervisor
of the employer, or to a designated individual as described in section 3 (3) of this 2019 Act,
the supervisor or designated individual shall, at the time of the disclosure, provide to the
employee a copy of the policy described in this section.

(5) A policy established under this section must comply with the requirements for a
written policy provided under section 3, chapter __, Oregon Laws 2019 (Enrolled Senate Bill
728).

SECTION 3. A public employer shall develop written policies and procedures for the
prompt investigation of a report of workplace harassment. The policies and procedures must:

(1) Provide instruction for maintaining records of workplace harassment.

(2) Establish a process for a victim of workplace harassment to file a complaint, provided
that the process allows a victim to file the complaint within four years from the date on
which the alleged harassment occurred or within the applicable time limitation on the com-
mencement of an action under ORS 659A.875, whichever is greater.

(3) Identify the individual designated by the employer who is responsible for receiving
reports of prohibited conduct, including an individual designated as an alternate to receive
such reports.

{4) Subject to subsection (5) of this section, require the employer to follow up with the
victim of the alleged harassment once every three months for the calendar year following
the date on which the employer received a report of harassment, to determine whether the
alleged harassment has stopped or if the victim has experienced retaliation.

(5) Inform the victim that the employer will follow up in the manner described in sub-
section (4) of this section until and unless the victim objects to such action in writing.

SECTION 4. (1) Except as provided in subsection (2) or (4) of this section, it is an un-
lawful employment practice under ORS chapter 659A for a public employer to enter into an
agreement with an employee or prospective employee, as a condition of employment, con-
tinued employment, promotion, compensation or the receipt of benefits, that contains a
nondisclosure provision, a nondisparagement provision or any other provision that has the
purpose or effect of preventing the employee from disclosing or discussing workplace
harassment:

(a) That occurred between employees or between an employer and an employee in the
workplace or at a work-related event that is off the employment premises and coordinated
by or through the employer; or

{b) That occurred between an employer and an employee off the employment premises.

{2) A public employer may enter into a settlement, separation or severance agreement
that includes one or more of the following provisions only when an employee claiming to be
aggrieved by workplace harassment described under subsection (1) of this section requests
to enter into the agreement:

Enrclled Senate Biil 479 (SB 479-B) Page 2

AN

O\



(a) A provision described in subsection (1) of this section;

(b} A provision that prevents the disclosure of factual information relating to the claim
of discrimination or conduct that constitutes sexual assault; or

(c) A no-rehire provision that prohibits the employee from seeking reemployment with
the employer as a term or condition of the agreement.

(3}(a) An agreement entered into under subsection (2) of this section must provide that
the employee has at least seven days after executing the agreement to revoke the agree-
ment.

{b) The agreement may not become effective until after the revocation period has ex-
pired.

{4) If an employer makes a good faith determination that an employee has engaged in
workplace harassment described under subsection (1) of this section, the employer may enter
into a settlement, separation or severance agreement that includes one or more of the fol-
lowing provisions:

(a) A provision described in subsection (1) of this section;

(b) A provision that prevents the disclosure of factual information that relates to the
workplace harassment; or

(c) A no-rehire provision that prohibits the employee from seeking reemployment with
the employer as a term or condition of the agreement.

(5) An employee may file a complaint under ORS 659A.820 for violations of this section
and may bring a civil action under ORS 659A.885 and recover relief as provided by ORS
659A.885 (1) to (3).

(6) This section does not apply to an employee who is tasked by law to receive confiden-
tial or privileged reports of discrimination, sexual assault or harassment.

SECTION 5. ORS 659A.820, as amended by section 5, chapter 197, Oregon Laws 2017, is
amended to read:

659A.820. (1) As used in this section, for purposes of a complaint alleging an unlawful practice
under ORS 6594.145 or 659A.421 or discrimination under federal housing law, “person claiming to
be aggrieved by an unlawful practice” includes, but is not limited to, a person who believes that the
person:

(a) Has been injured by an unlawful practice under ORS 659A.145 or 65%A.421 or a
discriminatory housing practice; or

(b) Will be injured by an unlawful practice under ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or a discriminatory
housing practice that is about to occur.

(2) Any person claiming to be aggrieved by an unlawful practice may file with the Commissioner
of the Bureau of Labor and Industries a verified written complaint that states the name and address
of the person alleged to have committed the unlawful practice. The complaint must be signed by the
complainant. The complaint must set forth the acts or emissions alleged to be an unlawful practice.
The complainant may be required to set forth in the complaint such other information as the com-
missioner may require. Except as provided in subsection (3) of this section or ORS 654.062, a
complaint under this section must be filed no later than one year after the alleged unlawful practice.

(3) A complaint alleging an unlawful employment practice as described in ORS 659A.030,
659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be filed no later than five years after
the occurrence of the alleged unlawful employment practice.

[(3Xc)] (4)(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection, a complaint may not be
filed under this section if a civil action has been commenced in state or federal court alleging the
same matters.

{b) The prohibition described in paragraph (a) of this subsection does not apply to a complaint
alleging an unlawful practice under ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or alleging discrimination under
federal housing law.

[f4)] (5) If an employer has one or more employees who refuse or threaten to refuse to abide by
the provisions of this chapter or to cooperate in carrying out the purposes of this chapter, the em-

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 3

\LO



ployer may file with the commissioner a verified complaint requesting assistance by conciliation or
other remedial action.

[(5]] (B8) Except as provided in subsection [(6)] (7) of this section, the commissioner shall notify
the person against whom a complaint is made within 30 days of the filing of the complaint. The
commissioner shall include in the notice the date, place and circumstances of the alleged unlawful
practice.

[(6)] (7) The commissioner shall notify the person against whom a complaint alleging an unlawful
practice under ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or discrimination under federal housing law is made
within 10 days of the filing of the complaint. The commissioner shall include in the notice:

(a) The date, place and circumstances of the alleged unlawful practice; and

(b) A statement that the person against whom the complaint is made may file an answer to the
complaint.

SECTION 6. ORS 659A.875, as amended by section 8, chapter 197, Oregon Laws 2017, is
amended to read:

659A.875. (1) Except as provided in subsection (2) of this section[,]:

(a) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging an unlawful employment practice other than a
violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be com-
menced within one year after the occurrence of the unlawful employment practice unless a com-
plaint has been timely filed under ORS 659A.820,

(b) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging a violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or
659A.112 or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be commenced not later than five years after the
occurrence of the alleged violation.

(2} A person who has filed a complaint under ORS 659A.820 must commence a civil action under
ORS 659A.885 within 90 days after a 90-day notice is mailed to the complainant under ORS 659A.880.
This subsection does not apply to a complainant alleging an unlawful practice under ORS 659A.145
or 659A.421 or discrimination under federal housing law.

(3) A civil action alleging a violation of ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 must be commenced not later
than two years after the occurrence or the termination of the unlawful practice, or within two years
after the breach of any settlement agreement entered into under ORS 659A.840, whichever occurs
last. The two-year period shall not include any time during which an administrative proceeding was
pending with respect to the unlawful practice.

(4) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging an unlawful practice in violation of ORS
659A.403 or 659A.406 must be commenced within one year of the occurrence of the unlawful prac-
tice.

(5) The notice of claim required under ORS 30.275 must be given in any civil action under ORS
659A.885 against a public body, as defined in ORS 30.260, or any officer, employee or agent of a
public body as defined in ORS 30.260.

(6) Notwithstanding ORS 30.275 (9)(,):

(a) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 against a public body, as defined in ORS 30.260, or any
officer, employee or agent of a public body as defined in ORS 30.260, bhased on an unlawful employ-
ment practice other than a violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 4 of this
2019 Act must be commenced within one year after the occurrence of the unlawful employment
practice unless a complaint has been timely filed under ORS 65%A.820.

(b} A civil action under ORS 659A.885 against a public body, as defined in ORS 30.260, or
any officer, employee or agent of a public body as defined in ORS 30.260, alleging a violation
of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be commenced not
later than five years afier the occurrence of the alleged violation unless a complaint has
been timely filed under ORS 659A.820.

(7) For the purpose of time limitations, a compensation practice that is unlawful under ORS
652.220 occurs each time compensation is paid under a discriminatory compensation decision or
other practice.

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 4

AW



(8) Notwithstanding ORS 30.275 (2Xb), notice of claim against a public body under ORS 652.220
or 659A.355 must be given within 300 days of discovery of the alleged loss or injury.

SECTION 6a. If Senate Bill 726 becomes law, section 6 of this 2019 Act (amending ORS
659A.875) is repealed and ORS 659A.875, as amended by section 6, chapter __, Oregon Laws
2018 (Enrolled Senate Bill 726), is amended to read:

659A.875. (1) Except as provided in subsection (2) of this section:

(a) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging an unlawful employment practice other than a
violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 2 [of this 2019 Act], chapter __, Oregon
Laws 2019 (Enrolled Senate Bill 728), or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be commenced within
one year after the occurrence of the unlawful employment practice unless a complaint has been
timely filed under ORS 659A.820.

{b) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging a violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or
659A.112 or section 2 [of this 2019 Act), chapter __, Oregon Laws 2019 (Enrolled Senate Bill
728), or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be commenced not later than five years after the occur-
rence of the alleged violation.

{2) A person who has filed a complaint under ORS 659A.820 must commence a civil action under
ORS 659A.885 within 90 days after a 90-day notice is mailed to the complainant under ORS 659A.880.
This subsection does not apply to a complainant alleging an unlawful practice under ORS 659A.145
or 659A.421 or discrimination under federal housing law,

(3) A civil action alleging a violation of ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 must be commenced not later
than two years after the occurrence or the termination of the unlawful practice, or within two years
after the breach of any settlement agreement entered into under ORS 659A.840, whichever occurs
last. The two-year period shall not include any time during which an administrative proceeding was
pending with respect to the unlawful practice.

(4) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging an unlawful practice in violation of ORS
659A.403 or 659A.406 must be commenced within one year of the occurrence of the unlawful prac-
tice.

(5) The notice of claim required under ORS 30.275 must be given in any civil action under ORS
659A.885 against a public body, as defined in ORS 30.260, or any officer, employee or agent of a
public bedy as defined in ORS 30.260.

(6) Notwithstanding ORS 30.275 (9)%

(a) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 against a public body, as defined in ORS 30.260, or any
officer, employee or agent of a public body as defined in ORS 30.260, based on an unlawful employ-
ment practice other than a violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 2 [of this 2019
Act), chapter __, Oregon Laws 201% (Enrolled Senate Bill 726), or section 4 of this 2019 Act
must be commenced within one year after the occurrence of the unlawful employment practice un-
less a complaint has been timely filed under ORS 659A.820.

{(b) A civil action under ORS 659A.885 alleging a violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or
659A.112 or section 2 [of this 2019 Act], chapter __, Oregon Laws 2019 (Enrolled Senate Bill
726), must be commenced not later than five years after the occurrence of the alleged violation
unless a complaint has been timely filed under ORS 659A.820.

(c) A civil action under ORS 859A.885 against a public body, as defined in ORS 30.260, or
any officer, employee or agent of a public body as defined in ORS 30.260, alleging a violation
of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 or section 4 of this 2019 Act must be commenced not
later than five years after the occurrence of the alleged violation unless a complaint has
been timely filed under ORS 659A.820.

(7) For the purpose of time limitations, a compensation practice that is unlawful under ORS
652.220 occurs each time compensation is paid under a discriminatory compensation decision or
other practice.

(8) Notwithstanding ORS 30.275 (2)(b), notice of claim against a public body under ORS 652.220
or 659A.355 must be given within 300 days of discovery of the alleged loss or injury.

SECTION 6b. If Senate Bill 726 becomes law, section 10 of this 2018 Act is amended to read:

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page &6

\\o'L



Sec. 10. The amendments to ORS 659A.820 and 659A.875 by sections 5 and [6] 6a of this 2019
Act apply to:

(1) Conduct prohibited by ORS 658A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 occurring on or after the effec-
tive date of this 2019 Act.

(2) Conduct prohibited by section 4 of this 2019 Act occurring on or after October 1, 2020.

SECTION 7. ORS 659A.885, as amended by section 9, chapter 197, Oregon Laws 2017, and sec-
tion 13, chapter 691, Oregon Laws 2017, is amended to read:

659A.885. (1) Any person claiming to be aggrieved by an unlawful practice specified in sub-
section (2) of this section may file a civil action in circuit court. In any action under this subsection,
the court may order injunctive relief and any other equitable relief that may be appropriate, in-
cluding but not limited to reinstatement or the hiring of employees with or without back pay. A
court may order back pay in an action under this subsection only for the two-year period imme-
diately preceding the filing of a complaint under ORS 659A.820 with the Commissioner of the Bureau
of Labor and Industries, or if a complaint was not filed before the action was commenced, the two-
year period immediately preceding the filing of the action. In any action under this subsection, the
court may allow the prevailing party costs and reasonable attorney fees at trial and on appeal. Ex-
cept as provided in subsection (3) of this section:

(a) The judge shall determine the facts in an action under this subsection; and

(b) Upon any appeal of a judgment in an action under this subsection, the appellate court shall
review the judgment pursuant to the standard established by ORS 19.415 (3).

(2) An action may be brought under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of:

(a) ORS 10.090, 10.092, 25.337, 25.424, 171.120, 408.230, 408.237 (2), 475B.281, 476.574, 652.020,
662.220, 652.355, 653.060, 653.263, 653.265, 653.547, 653.549, 653.601 to 653.661, 659.852, 659A.030,
659A.040, 659A.043, 659A.046, 659A.063, 659A.069, 659A.082, 659A.08B, 659A.103 to 659A.145,
659A.150 to 659A.186, 659A.194, 659A.199, 659A.203, 659A.218, 658A.228, 659A.230, 659A.233,
650A.236, 659A.250 to 659A.282, 659A.277, 659A.290, 659A.300, 659A.306, 659A.309, 659A.315,
659A.318, 659A.320, 659A.355 or 659A.421 or section 4 of this 2019 Act; or

(b) ORS 653.470, except an action may not be brought for a claim relating to ORS 653.450.

(3) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 25.337, 25.424,
652.220, 652.355, 653.547, 653.549, 659.852, 659A.030, 659A.040, 659A.043, 659A.046, 659A.069,
659A.082, 659A.103 to 659A.145, 659A.199, 659A.203, 659A.228, 659A.230, 659A.250 to 659A.262,
659A.280, 659A.318, 659A.355 or 659A.421 or section 4 of this 2019 Act:

{a) The court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section,
compensatory damages or $200, whichever is greater, and punitive damages;

(b) At the request of any party, the action shall be tried to a jury;

{c) Upon appeal of any judgment finding a violation, the appellate court shall review the judg-
ment pursuant to the standard established by ORS 19.415 (1); and

(d) Any attorney fee agreement shall be subject to approval by the court.

{(4) Notwithstanding ORS 31.730, in an action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a vi-
olation of ORS 652.220, the court may award punitive damages if:

(a) It is proved by clear and convineing evidence that an employer has engaged in fraud, acted
with malice or acted with willful and wanton misconduct; or

(b) An employer was previously adjudicated in a proceeding under this section or under ORS
659A.850 for a violation of ORS 652.220.

(5) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 653.060, the
court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section,
compensatory damages or $200, whichever is greater.

(6) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 171.120, 476.574
or 659A.218, the court may award, in addition to the reliel authorized under subsection (1) of this
section, compensatory damages or $250, whichever is greater.

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 6

\L3



(7) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 10.090 or 10.092,
the court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section, a civil
penalty in the amount of $720.

(8) Any individual against whom any distinction, discrimination or restriction on account of
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status or age, if the individual
is 18 years of age or older, has been made by any place of public accommodation, as defined in ORS
659A.400, by any employee or person acting on behalf of the place or by any person aiding or
abetting the place or person in violation of ORS 659A.406 may bring an action against the operator
or manager of the place, the employee or person acting on behalf of the place or the aider or abettor
of the place or person. Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, in an action under this sub-
section:

(a) The court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section,
compensatory and punitive damages;

(b) The operator or manager of the place of public accommodation, the employee or person
acting on behalf of the place, and any aider or abettor shall be jointly and severally liable for all
damages awarded in the action;

(c) At the request of any party, the action shall be tried to a jury;

(d) The court shall award reasonable attorney fees to a prevailing plaintiff;

(e) The court may award reasonable attorney fees and expert witness fees incurred by a de-
fendant who prevails only if the court determines that the plaintiff had no objectively reasonable
basis for asserting a claim or no reasonable basis for appealing an adverse decision of a trial court;
and

(f) Upon any appeal of a judgment under this subsection, the appellate court shall review the
judgment pursuant to the standard established by ORS 19.415 (1).

(9) When the commissioner or the Attorney General has reasonable cause te believe that a
person or group of persons is engaged in a pattern or practice of resistance to the rights protected
by ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or federal housing law, or that a group of persons has been denied
any of the rights protected by ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or federal housing law, the commissioner
or the Attorney General may file a civil action on behalf of the aggrieved persons in the same
manner as a person or group of persons may file a civil action under this section. In a civil action
filed under this subsection, the court may assess against the respondent, in addition to the relief
authorized under subsections (1) and (3) of this section, a civil penalty:

{a) In an amount not exceeding $50,000 for a first violation; and

(b) In an amount not exceeding $100,000 for any subsequent violation.

(10) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 659A.145 or
659A.421 or alleging discrimination under federal housing law, when the commissioner is pursuing
the action on behalf of an aggrieved complainant, the court shall award reasonable attorney fees to
the commissioner if the commissioner prevails in the action. The court may award reasonable at-
torney fees and expert witness fees incurred by a defendant that prevails in the action if the court
determines that the commissioner had no objectively reasonable basis for asserting the claim or for
appealing an adverse decision of the trial court,

(11} In an action under subsection (1) or (9) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 659A.145
or 659A.421 or discrimination under federal housing law:

(a) “Aggrieved person” includes a person who believes that the person:

(A) Has been injured by an unlawful practice or discriminatory housing practice; or

(B) Will be injured by an unlawful practice or discriminatory housing practice that is about to
occur,

(b} An aggrieved person in regard to issues to be determined in an action may intervene as of
right in the action. The Attorney General may intervene in the action if the Attorney General cer-
tifies that the case is of general public importance. The court may allow an intervenor prevailing
party costs and reasonable attorney fees at trial and on appeal.

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 7

\\"



SECTION 8. ORS 659A.885, as amended by sections 9 and 10, chapter 197, Oregon Laws 2017,
and section 13, chapter 681, Oregon Laws 2017, is amended to read:

659A.885. (1) Any person claiming to be aggrieved by an unlawful practice specified in sub-
section (2) of this section may file a civil action in eircuit court. In any action under this subsection,
the court may order injunctive relief and any other equitable relief that may be appropriate, in-
cluding but not limited to reinstatement or the hiring of employees with or without back pay. A
court may order back pay in an action under this subsection only for the two-year period imme-
diately preceding the filing of a complaint under ORS 653A.820 with the Commissioner of the Bureau
of Labor and Industries, or if a complaint was not filed before the action was commenced, the two-
year period immediately preceding the filing of the action. In any action under this subsection, the
court may allow the prevailing party costs and reasonable attorney fees at trial and on appeal. Ex-
cept as provided in subsection (3) of this section:

{a) The judge shall determine the facts in an action under this subsection; and

(b) Upon any appeal of a judgment in an action under this subsection, the appellate court shall
review the judgment pursuant to the standard established by ORS 19.415 (3).

(2) An action may be brought under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of:

(a) ORS 10.090, 10.092, 25.337, 25.424, 171.120, 408.230, 408.237 (2), 475B.281, 476.574, 652.020,
652.220, 652.355, 653.060, 653.263, 653.265, 653.547, 653.549, 653.601 to 653.661, 669.852, 659A.030,
659A.040, 659A.043, 659A.046, 659A.063, 659A.069, 659A.082, 659A.088, 659A.103 to 659A.145,
659A.150 to 659A.186, 659A.194, 659A.199, 659A.203, 659A.218, 659A.228, 659A.230, 659A.233,
659A.236, 659A.250 to 659A.262, 659A.277, 659A.290, 659A.300, 659A.306, 659A.309, 659A.315,
659A.318, 659A.320, 659A.355, 659A.357 or 659A.421 or section 4 of this 2019 Act; or

(b) ORS 653.470, except an action may not be brought for a claim relating to ORS 653.450.

(3} In any action under subsection (1} of this section alleging a violation of ORS 25.337, 25.424,
652.220, 652.355, 653.547, 653.549, 659.852, 659A.030, 659A.040, 659A.043, 659A.046, 659A.069,
659A.082, 659A.103 to 659A.145, G59A.199, 659A.203, 659A.228, 659A.230, 659A.250 to 659A.262,
659A.290, 659A.318, 659A.355, 659A.357 or 659A.421 or section 4 of this 2019 Aect:

(a) The court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section,
compensatory damages or $200, whichever is greater, and punitive damages;

{b) At the request of any party, the action shall be tried to a jury;

{c) Upon appeal of any judgment finding a violation, the appellate court shall review the judg-
ment pursuant to the standard established by ORS 19.415 (1); and

(d) Any attorney fee agreement shall be subject to approval by the court.

(4) Notwithstanding ORS 31.730, in an action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a vi-
olation of ORS 652.220, the court may award punitive damages if:

(a) It is proved by clear and convincing evidence that an employer has engaged in fraud, acted
with malice or acted with willful and wanton misconduct; or

(b) An employer was previously adjudicated in a proceeding under this section or under ORS
659A.850 for a violation of ORS 652.220.

(5) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 653.060, the
court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section,
compensatory damages or $200, whichever is greater.

(6) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 171.120, 476.574
or 659A.218, the court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this
section, compensatory damages or $250, whichever is greater.

(7) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 10.090 or 10.092,
the court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section, a civil
penalty in the amount of $720.

{8) Any individual against whom any distinction, discrimination or restriction on account of
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status or age, if the individual
is 18 years of age or older, has been made by any place of public accommodation, as defined in ORS
659A.400, by any employee or person acting on behalf of the place or by any person aiding or

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 8

\LS



abetting the place or person in violation of ORS 659A.406 may bring an action against the operator
or manager of the place, the employee or person acting on behalf of the place or the aider or abettor
of the place or person. Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, in an action under this sub-
section:

(a) The court may award, in addition to the relief authorized under subsection (1) of this section,
compensatory and punitive damages;

(b) The operator or manager of the place of public accommodation, the employee or person
acting on behalf of the place, and any aider or abettor shall be jointly and severally liable for all
damages awarded in the action;

(c) At the request of any party, the action shall be tried to a jury;

(d) The court shall award reasonable attorney fees to a prevailing plaintifT;

(e) The court may award reasonable attorney fees and expert witness fees incurred by a de-
fendant who prevails only if the court determines that the plaintiff had no objectively reasonable
basis for asserting a claim or no reasonable basis for appealing an adverse decision of a trial court;
and

{f) Upon any appeal of a judgment under this subsection, the appellate court shall review the
judgment pursuant to the standard established by ORS 19.415 (1),

(9) When the commissioner or the Attorney General has reasonable cause to believe that a
person or group of persons is engaged in a pattern or practice of resistance to the rights protected
by ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or federal housing law, or that a group of persons has been denied
any of the rights protected by ORS 659A.145 or 659A.421 or federal housing law, the commissioner
or the Attorney General may file a civil action on behalf of the aggrieved persons in the same
manner as a person or group of persons may file a civil action under this section. In a civil action
filed under this subsection, the court may assess against the respondent, in addition to the relief
authorized under subsections (1) and (3) of this section, a civil penalty:

(a) In an amount not exceeding $50,000 for a first violation; and

{b) In an amount not exceeding $100,000 for any subsequent violation.

(10) In any action under subsection (1) of this section alleging a viclation of ORS 659A.145 or
659A.421 or alleging discrimination under federal housing law, when the commissioner is pursuing
the action on behalf of an aggrieved complainant, the court shall award reasonable attorney fees to
the commissioner if the commissioner prevails in the action. The court may award reasonable at-
torney fees and expert witness fees incurred by a defendant that prevails in the action if the court
determines that the commissioner had no objectively reasonable basis for asserting the claim or for
appealing an adverse decision of the trial court.

(11) In an action under subsection (1) or (9) of this section alleging a violation of ORS 659A.145
or 659A.421 or discrimination under federal housing law:

{a) “Aggrieved person” includes a person whe believes that the person:

{A) Has been injured by an unlawful practice or discriminatory housing practice; or

{B) Will be injured by an unlawful practice or discriminatory housing practice that is about to
oceur.

{b) An aggrieved person in regard to issues to be determined in an action may intervene as of
right in the action. The Attorney General may intervene in the action if the Attorney General cer-
tifies that the case is of general public importance. The court may allow an intervenor prevailing
party costs and reasonable attorney fees at trial and on appeal.

SECTION 9. The Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and Industries shall adopt any
rules necessary to administer and enforce the provisions of sections 1 to 4 of this 2019 Act
no later than 90 days after the effective date of this 2019 Act.

SECTION 10. The amendments to ORS 659A.820 and 659A.875 by sections 5 and 6 of this
2019 Act apply to:

{1) Conduct prohibited by ORS 659A.030, 659A.082 or 659A.112 occurring on or after the
effective date of this 2019 Act.

(2) Conduct prohibited by section 4 of this 2019 Act occurring on or after October 1, 2020.

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B) Page 9

\Lolo



SECTION 11. (1)(a) Sections 1 to 3 of this 2019 Act become operative on January 1, 2020.
(b) Section 4 of this 2019 Act and the amendments to 659A.885 by sections 7 and 8 of this

2019 Act become operative on October 1, 2020.

(2) The Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and Industries may adopt rules and take
any other action before the operative date specified in subsection (1) of this section that is
necessary to enable the Bureau of Labor and Industries to exercise, on and after the opera-
tive date specified in subsection (1) of this section, all of the duties, functions and powers
conferred on the bureau by sections 2 to 4 of this 2019 Act and the amendments to ORS
659A.820, 659A.875 and 659A.885 by sections 5 to 8 of this 2019 Act.

SECTION 12. This 2019 Act takes effect on the 91st day after the date on which the 2019
regular session of the Eightieth Legislative Assembly adjourns sine die.

Passed by Senate April 24, 2019

Repassed by Senate June 12, 2019

Lori L. Brocker, Secretary of Senate

Peter Courtney, President of Senate

Passed by House June 4, 2018

mm-;'i'ina Kotek, Speaker of House

Enrolled Senate Bill 479 (SB 479-B)

Received by Governor:
Approved:

M L B s s e T

" Kate Brown, Governor
Filed in Office of Secrotary of State:
ooV 2019

Bev Clarno, Secretary of State

Page 10

\L



ACTION ITEM — H

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: 2020 Holiday Schedule
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ There are no changes to holiday observances from previous years. Attached is next year
holidays and dates they occur.

o Port office is closed on these dates.

¢ Port field crew is normally reduced to minimal staff or off.

DOCUMENTS
» 2020 Holiday Schedule, 1 page

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

¢ Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve 2020 holiday schedule.

\69



Port of Brookings Harbor
2020 Observed Hohday
Oftice Closures

Holidays Observed

New Year’s Day, Wednesday, January 1
Martin Luther King Jr Day, Monday, January 20
Presidents’ Day, Monday, February 17
Memorial Day, Monday, May 25
Independence Day, Friday, July 3
Labor Day, Monday, September 7
Veterans Day, Wednesday, November 11
Thanksgiving Day, Thursday, November 26
Day After Thanksgiving, Friday, November 27
Christmas Day, Friday, December 25

LA



ACTION ITEM — 1

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: SDIS Longevity Credit and Rate Lock Agreement
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW
« This agreement is for two years, January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021.

» Longevity credit will be $14,589.
» Maximum rate increase is 5% for the year 2021 based on 2020 rates.

¢ Breach of contract will require the Port to return Longevity Credit plus interest and
subject to retroactive rate increases above the five percent.

DOCUMENTS
» SDIS Longevity Credit and Rate Lock Agreement, 1 page

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

» Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve SDIS Longevity Credit and Rate Lock Agreement from January 1,
2020 to December 31, 2021 and authorize Port Manager to sign the agreement.

\10



S | DS Longevity Credit and Rate
SPECIAL DISTRICTS LOCkAgreement

INSURANCE SERVICES

Port Of Brookings Harbor

By signing this Agreement the Member agrees to remain a participant in the Special Districts
Insurance Services (SDIS) Property and Liability Program from January 1, 2020 to December 31,

2021.

In return for this commitment the SDIS Trust agrees to the following:

l. Provide the Member with a Longevity Credit equal to: $14,589

a. Amount to be mailed to the Member in January 2019: $7,294.50
b. Amount to be mailed to the Member in January 2020: $7,294.50

2. A maximum annual rate increase of five percent (5% for policy year January 1, 2021 —
December 31, 2021 based on the Member’s rates for the January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2020

The Member understands that breach of this agreement will require the Member to return the
Longevity Credit plus interest to SDIS and will subject the Member to retroactive rate increases
above the five percent (5%) maximum Rate Lock Guarantee.

* Total contributions assessed may increase more or less than the maximum guaranteed rate for
changes in exposures such as the addition of vehicles, purchase of buildings, increase in
operating budget or the addition of personnel. The rate guarantee does not apply to Excess
Liability, Boiler and Machinery and Crime contributions because these are pass through costs to
re-insurance carriers.

It is so agreed this _3rd  day of December ,2019
Special Districts Insurance Services Port Of Brookings Harbor

Frad s~

Authorized Representative (Member)

Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager
Print Name and Title

1\



INFORMATION ITEM — A

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Project Work Orders 2019-20
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

e Aftached is a revised spreadsheet showing the current repairs, maintenance and smaller
projects for fiscal year budget.

DOCUMENTS
e Project Work Order List, 1 page

L



Port of Brookings Harbor

Projects in 2019
el iy
1|Basin 2 Main Dock Repair at Q Dock Done 2019 - Depleted stockpile of materials estimate 2,500 1,200
2[Install TP Dispensers in Restrooms Done 2019 2,000 1,680
3|Basin 2 Brush Removal from Slopes Cathouse, boatyard and barge areas remain 5,000 3,818
4Install P-11 / 13 Finger Done 2019 - Depleted stockpile of materials estimate 5,000 2,500
5|Paint Pacific Ocean Harvesters Fascia Boards Done 2019 1,500 1,200
6|Paint Retail Buildings Done 2019 10,000 7,000
7|Retail Landscape Islands Brush Removal Done 2019 5,000 5,291
8|Install New Catch Basins at Retail Parking Lot Done 2019 15,000 8,927
9|Relocate Parking Lot Light Poles & Parking Done 2019 25,000 3,151
10|Roof Repairs (POH, Boat Launch & Kite Field) |Done 2019 30,000 29,509
11|Sealcoat & Striping Retail Parking Lot Done 2019 50,000 49,850
12jADA Ramp and Landscaping at Port Office Approved 7/16 - Postponed until after winter 15,000
13|Expand Secured Storage Fencing Approved 7/16 15,000 7,168
14|Install Security Fencing at Gear Storage Approved 1/15 - Postponed until next budget 40,000
15 |Demolition of Green Buitding Approved 4/19 90,000 84,350
16{New Fuel Dock Station Approved 11/19 600,000 6,956
17|Welcoming Signs for Retail Approved 8/19 5,000 1,875
18|Overlay Paving Parking Lot Approved B/19 24,000 23,948
19|Culvert Cleaning Partnering with Curry County 7,500 1,098
20|New Waste Oil Dump Done 2019 5,000 3,139
21|New Restroom & Pull-Thru Sites at RV Park Approved 8/19 - On hold 365,000
22|Suite 102 & 103 Prep for Tenant Approved 8/19 5,000 4,900
23|N Dack Rehuilding Ongoing - Depleted stockpile of materials estimate 50,000 6,500
24|0 Dock Rebuilding Ongoing - Depleted stockpile of materials estimate 50,000 2,500
25|P Dock Rebuilding Ongoing - Depleted stockpile of materials estimate 50,000 3,700
26| Transient Dock Rebuilding Ongoing - Depleted stockpile of materials estimate 50,000 3,000
27|Basin 2 C Dock Rebuilding 35,000
28|Basin 2 D Dock Rebuilding 35,000
29|Basln 2 E Dock Rebuilding 35,000
30|Basin 2 F Dock Rebuilding 35,000
31|Basin 2 G Dock Rebuilding 35,000
32|Basin 2 Main Commercial Dock Rebuilding 50,000
33|Basin 2 Main Sport Dock Rebuilding 50,000
34{Basin 1 Brush Removal (Under Boardwalk) 3,500
35|Instalt Catch Basin at Steel Wall 10,000
36|install Catch Basin at Gear Storage 7.500
37|Install Catch Basins at Basin 2 Comm Lot 5,000
38/Install Additional Parking Lot Light Poles 100,000
39|Cantract Electrical - Gowman Approved 2/19 15,000 9,683
40|Contract Earthwork, Landscape, Grading - 5-R Approved 2/19 20,000 15,352

3




INFORMATION ITEM — B

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Current Port Lease List
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

« Attached is a spreadsheet showing the tenants and the termination end date.

DOCUMENTS

o Port Lease List, 1 page

Yy



Leaseidt
CLO001

CLO006

CLooo?

CLO003

CLooo8
CLooo2
CLO0D4
CL0O005
CLO005
CLoo09
CLO0034
CL0010
CLOOM

CLoO12
CL0013
CLOO14
CLO015
CLoo7
CLoo18
CLoo19
cLooz0
CLOO021
cLoo22
CcLoo38
CL0023
CLO036
CL0025
CLo026
CL0037
cLoo27
CLOO34
CL0028
CLOG29
CLOO30
CLOD31
CLo0o32
CLOO33

Commercial Retail
Bandon Pacific Steel Wall

Term End
10/31/2021

Bandon Pacific/Pacific Seafood Processing/Brookings 24112032

Harbor Cold Storage

Bandon Pacific/Pacific Seafood Processing/Brookings

Harbor Ice House

3/1/2032

Bandon Pacific/Pacific Seafood Processing Old Dock 6/30/2022

& Hoist

Bormnstein Seafood

BC Fisheries LLC
Boardwalk Mail Service
Boat Shop & More, LLC
Boat Shop & More, LLC
Busch Marilyn & Robert
Bounder's Crab Shack
CBN Enterprises
Chetco Seafood

Curry County Sheriff Office

Hallmark Fisheries

Hungry Clam

J Sloane Hair Studio LLC

Kathy's Corner Market

Mountain View Customer Cycles
Oceanside Suites

Pacific Fishing LLC

Pacific Ocean Harvesters

Pacifica Boat Basin, LLC - Restaurant Area
Pacifica Boat Basin, LLC - Beachfront Inn
Pithitude

Portside RV Park

Rogue Credit Union

Seal Cove Realty

Slug'n Stones'n Ice Cream

South Coast Tours LLC

Speir, Joe & Davis, Roy

Speir, Joe F/V:MISS EMILIE
Sporthaven Marina 2

The Bell & Whistle Coffee House, Inc.
Tidewind Sport Fishing

US Coast Guard Lease

Whales Tail Candy & Gifts

Zola's Pizzeria

Port Office

12/31/2023
6/30/2045
5/31/2020
4/30/2021
4/30/2021
month to month
53112021
11/30/2020
month to month
nfa

3/31/2021
53172020
6/30/2020
5/31/2022
2128/2022
6/30/2020
4/30/2020
2/29/2029
5/31/2041
5/31/2041
9/30/2021
month to month
713172021
month to month
10/31/2020
5/31/2022
10/31/2020
10/31/2022
5/1/2031
11/30/2021
5/31/2020

n/a

4/30/2026
month to month
n/a



INFORMATION ITEM — C

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Update on New Marine Fuel Dock Station
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

» Currently waiting on alternative preliminary construction drawings from EMC Engineers /
Scientists.

« From initial conversations with regulatory agencies there could be issues that may
prevent the original idea for a fixed high dock service station.

» There are concerns with functionally of the high dock. Such as lowering the fuel nozzle
down to vessels across the floating dock. We need more time to review alternative
drawings and research other possibilities.

« |f regulatory agencies or functionally prevent servicing the vessels, the Port may need to
rebuild the existing system.

DOCUMENTS

e None

\71b



INFORMATION ITEM — D

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Kathy's Corner Market
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

* Port Office received a call from Vickie's daughter that she had a stroke and is in a
hospital in Eugene, Oregon. She will not be able to return to work in her current
condition and the family is trying to work out a solution.

* The store has not reopened since the medical emergency and the Port has not heard
from the family since December 3.

DOCUMENTS

e None

\ 1



INFORMATION ITEM — E

DATE: December 17, 2019
RE: Port Manager Evaluation 2019
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ | am requesting open public evaluation. Whether good, bad or indifferent comments, |
believe transparency is better than in an Executive Session.

DOCUMENTS

+ General Manager Performance Evaluation, 4 pages

NS



Adopted and Approved by Board
Date 05-17-2016

Rating Scale Definitions (1-5)

Unsatisfactory .................. (1)

Improvement Needed...... (2)

Meets Job Standards....... (3)

Exceeds Job Standards...(4)

General Manager
Performance Evaluation

Date of initial evaluation:

The employee's work performanceisinadequate anddefinitely inferiorto
the standards of performance required for the job. Performance at this
level cannot be allowed to continue.

The employee's work performance does not consistently meet the
needed standards of the position. Serious effort is needed to improve
performance.

The employee's work performance consistently meets the standards of
the Standard position.

The employee's work performance isfrequently or consistently above the
level of Standard a satisfactory employee, but has not achieved an
overall level of outstanding performance.

Outstanding......coccvvevvenneen (5) The employee's work performance is consistently excellent when
compared to the standards of the job.

No Observation ............ (N/O) The employee's work performance was notobserved.

1. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AND ACHIEVEMENTS

A. Board of Commissioners Relationships

1. Effectively implements policies and programs

approved by the board of commissioners ........c.ccccvrveevecnee. 1 2 3 4 5 NO
2. Reporting to the board of commissioners is timely,

clear, concise and thorough ..........ccecraeere e rvssenens 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
3. Accepts direction/instructions in a positive manner.......... 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
4, Effectively aids the board of commissioners in

establishing long range goalS......cccv v sininsennne 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
5. Keeps the board of commissioners informed of

current plans, and activities of administration and
new developments in technology, legislation,

governmental praclices and regulations, efc. ... 2 3 4 5 N/Q
a. Provide the board of commissioners with clear report

of anticipated issues, opportunities and risks that

could come before the board.........c.cocviviviiiiniiinniniinnnns, 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
7. Comments:

N9



Adopted and Approved by Board
Date 05-17-2016

B. Public Relations

1. Projects a positive public image......cccuvvvemnreinrvrneerinns 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
2. Courteous to the public at all times ...........ccccceeeeeerernnennn. 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
3. Maintains effective relations with media..........c.ccoceceeenee, 1 2 3 4 5 NO
4, Comments:

C. Effective Leadership of Staff

1. Delegates appropriate responsibilities...........cecoiveeeerinnee. 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
2. Staff feels empowered .........c.occeevinniiciccienniennnre e 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
3. Training and education provided ...........ccccevvuireerersrsesneseses 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
4. Public relations. How does public view stafi? .................. 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
5. Comments:

D. Fiscal Management

1. Prepares realistic annual budget...........ccoervvevrrinrerarienns 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
2. Controls expenditures in accordance with approved

BUAGEL. ....orivirrrcencrrcerrenerssernseneeraressessreresessensesereseras 1 2 3 4 5 N/O
3. Keeps board of commissioners informed about

revenues and expenditures, actual and projected...........1 2 3 4 5 N/O
4, Ensures that the budget addresses the Port

Commission’s goals and objectives, including

FEAUADIIY ..vovvecverrerereeseeeesssessesrsesesssecreaseseeones 1 2 3 4 5 NO
5. Comments:

E. Communication

1. Oral communication is clear, concise and articulate........ ] 2 3 4 5 N/O
2. Written communications are clear, concise and accurate.

1 2 3 4 5 N/O
3. Comments:




Adopted and Approved by Board
Date 05-17-2016

F. Personal Traits

1

2.

INIAHVE ..cvii e e e
N 1 Ta Ta 23T PR P PP PUPORPRTRRIRt
Fairness and impartiality .........cccccceeeecciiienesssssssnrnnnnens
CreatiVity ...t e

Time Management. ..........cccoiiiiniesiiiiioeeeeeveessssneens

Comments:

N/O
N/O
N/O
N/O

N/O

G. Intergovernmental Affairs

1.

Maintains effective communication with local,

regional, state and federal government agencies...............

Financial resources (grants) from other agencies are

PUISUBT....cuiiiieerrcrirencnceeesemnne st ssas s sssssssssesenssseonsnsmvnsnaes

Contributions to good government through regular
participation in local, regional and state committees

and Organizations ........cooivrcrs s srresees

Lobbies effectively with county, legislators and state

agencies regarding Port programs and projects ................

Comments:

N/O

N/O

N/O

N/O

ACHIEVEMENTS RELATIVE TO OBJECTIVES FOR THIS EVALUATION PERIOD:

This section will measure the effectiveness of the Future Goals and Objectives (Sec. IV) from
year. These goals were based upon discussions from the previous year.

.........

Comments:

last

N/Q

\B\



O

, Adopted and Approved by Board
Date 05-17-2016

. SUMMARY RATING

1. Overall Performance Rating - considering the results
obtained against established performance standards
as well as overall job performance, the following
rating is provided: ... 1 2 3 4 5

2. Comments:

N/O

v FUTURE GOALS ANDOBJECTIVES

Prioritize specific goals and objectives to ba achieved inthe next evaluation period. Goals should reflect
policies and strategies identified in the Port's Strategic Business Plan. {Plan)(Goal)(Strategy)

This Performance Evaluation Survey was completed by:

(Name of Commissioner)



